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General Notice No. 1240 of2020

legal supplement
The undermentioned Acts and Government 

Notices are published in the Legal Supplement to 
this number of the Government Gazette:

The Courts (Amendment) Act 2020.
(Act No. 9 of 2020)

The Real Estate Agent Authority Act 2020
(Act No. 10 of 2020)

The District Council of Moka (Amendment) 
(Fair) Regulations 2020.

(Government Notice No. 203 of 2020)

The District Council of Moka (Amendment 
No. 2) (Fair) Regulations 2020.

(Government Notice No. 204 of 2020)

The Rodrigues Consumer Protection (Control 
of Price of Taxable and Non-taxable Goods) 
(Amendment No. 23) Regulations 2020.

(Government Notice No. 205 of 2020)

The Rodrigues Consumer Protection (Control 
of Price of Taxable and Non-taxable Goods) 
(Amendment No. 24) Regulations 2020.

(Government Notice No. 206 of 2020)

The Companies (Payment of Fees to Registrar) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2020.

(Government Notice No. 207 of 2020)

The Dental Council (Medical Institutions) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2020.

(Government Notice No. 208 of 2020)

The Economic Development Board (Smart City 
Scheme) (Amendment) Regulations 2020.

(Government Notice No. 209 of 2020)

The Financial Services (Administrative 
Penalties) (Amendment) Rules 2020.

(Government Notice No. 210 of 2020)

The Financial Services (Investment Banking) 
(Amendment) Rules 2020.

(Government Notice No. 211 of 2020)

The Securities (Licensing) (Amendment) Rules 
2020.

(Government Notice No. 212 of 2020)

Prime Minister’s Office, 
Port Louis. 

This 5th September, 2020.

General Notice No. 1241 of2020

THE PENSIONS ACT

By virtue of the powers conferred upon me bt 
Section 2 of the Pensions (Amendment) Act of 
1971, I hereby approve that that service with the 
“Special Education Needs Authority” be defined 
as “approved service” for the purpose of 
Pensions Act.

Dated this 15 January 2020.

Mr Marie Cyril Eddy Boissezon
Acting President

General Notice No. 1242 of2020

APPOINTMENT OF PUISNE JUDGE

The President of the Republic of Mauritius, 
has, in accordance with the power vested in him 
under Section 77(3) of the Constitution, and acting 
in accordance with the advice of the Judicial and 
Legal Service Commission, appointed:

1. Honourable Miss Mohanasundary 
NAIDOO, Master and Registrar and Judge in 
Bankruptcy;

2. Honourable Mr Luchmyparsad 
AUJAYEB, Deputy Master and Registrar and 
Judge in Bankruptcy;

3. Honourable Mrs Prameeta Devi Rasheela 
CHITTOO, Assistant Solicitor-Gereral;

4. Honourable Mr Denis Claude Nelson 
Désiré MOOTOO, Senior Assistant Director of 
Public Prosecutions; and

5. Honourable Mrs Carol GREEN 
JOKHOO, Assistant Solicitor-General

as Puisne Judges with effect from the 
1st September 2020.

01 September 2020.

The State House, 
Le Réduit.
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General Notice No. 1243 of2020

POST DECLARED VACANT

The Public Service Commission has, in 
accordance with regulation 43 of the Public Service 
Commission Regulations 1967, as subsequently 
amended, decided to declare vacant with effect 
from 05 June 2019, the office of Trainee Midwife 
in the Ministry of Health and Wellness held by 
Miss Madhvi PURMESSUR for being absent 
from duty without leave.

The Public Service Commission has, decided 
that the enlistment of Mr Allan BEEHARRY 
as Trainee Nurse be terminated forthwith in the 
Ministry of Health and Wellness, in accordance 
with paragraph 4 of his offer of enlistment.

The Public Service Commission has, in 
accordance with regulation 43 of the Public 
Service Commission Regulations, decided to 
declare vacant with effect from 04 December 2019 
the post of Management Support Officer held by 
Miss Tawheeda Bibi JAUMDALLY, for failing 
to return to duty on expiry of leave.

APPOINTMENT

Dr Swaraj RAMASAWMY, Deputy Permanent 
Secretary, Ministry of Health and Wellness has 
been assigned the duties of Permanent Secretary at 
the Ministry of Health and Wellness from 22 July 
to 05 August 2020, during the absence on leave of 
Mrs Shabina LOTUN, Permanent Secretary.

Mr Devendre GOPAUL, Deputy Permanent 
Secretary, has been assigned the duties of 
Permanent Secretary as from 25 August 2020 and 
until further notice at the Prime Minister's Office 
(Defence and Home Affairs Division).

Mrs Zahira Bibi AULADIN- 
AUCKBURALLY, Deputy Permanent Secretary, 
Ministry of Land Transport and Light Rail has 
been assigned the duties of Permanent Secretary 
as from 25 August 2020 and until further notice 
at the Ministry of National Infrastructure and 
Community Development (National Infrastructure 
Division).

Ministry of Public Service, 
Administrative and Institutional Reforms

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 1244 of2020

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given, that I have decided 
to acquire compulsorily two(2) portions of land 
on behalf of the State of Mauritius, hereinafter 
described, located at St Jean Road, Quatre 
Bomes in the district of Plaines Wilhems for the 
public purpose of accommodating a footpath, 
drain, proposed utility corridor and electric 
mast in connection with the Metro Express 
Project (Phase II).

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 58 (SJ 49A) of the extent of 
forty nine and sixth hundredths square metres 
(49.06m2) [PIN 1721320114, PCR 8969/2020] 
is excised from two contiguous plots of land of 
the extent of one hundred and eighteen and half 
toises (118 !4 Ts) each belonging to “SYNDICAT 
DE COPROPRIETAIRE DE RESIDENCE 
BUS WELL”, by virtue of title deed transcribed in 
volume TV 1795/10 and is bounded as follows:-

- Towards the North West, by surplus 
of land belonging to “SYNDICAT DE 
COPROPRIETAIRE DE RESIDENCE 
BUS WELL”, on two lines measuring forty 
one metres and eighty eight centimetres 
(41.88m) and five metres and twenty five 
centimetres (5.24m) respectively.

- Towards the South East, by a pavement one 
metre and forty five centimetres (1.45 m) 
wide, bordering a drain one metre (1.00m) 
and a reserve one metre (1.00m) wide along 
St Jean Road (A8), on forty seven metres 
and six centimetres (47.06m).

- Towards the South West, by Portion No. 
57 (SJ 48) already acquired by the State of 
Mauritius by virtue of TV202007/001152, 
on one metre and thirteen centimetres 
(1.13m).

Portion No. 58 (SJ 49B) of the extent of 
fourteen and thirty hundredths square metres 
(14.30m2) [PIN 1721320113, PCR 8969/2020] is 
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excised from two contiguous plots of land of the 
extent of one hundred and eighteen and half toises 
(118 ‘A Ts) each belonging to “SYND1CAT DE 
COPROPRIETAIRE DE RESIDENCE

BUS WELL”, by virtue of title deed transcribed 
in volume TV 1795/10 and is bounded as follows:-

- Towards the North East, by Avenue Buswell, 
on twelve metres and sixteen centimetres 
(12.16m).

- Towards the South East, by a pavement one 
metre and forty five centimetres (1.45m) 
wide, bordering a drain one metre (1.00m) 
wide along St Jean Road (A8), on one metre 
and ninety eight centimetres (1.98m).

- Towards the South West, by surplus 
of land belonging to “SYNDICAT DE 
COPROPRIETAIRE DE RESIDENCE 
BUSWELL”, partly on a developed length 
measuring two metres and thirty four 
centimetres (2.34m), and partly on four lines 
measuring seven metres and five centimetres 
(7.05m), fifty six centimetres (0.56m), two 
metres and eighty seven centimetres (2.87m) 
and forty nine centimetres (0.49m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit, referenced 
ACQ/75/000671, drawn up by Mr. Naheed Idbal 
TORABALLY, Government Land Surveyor on 
10/08/2020.

The plan may be inspected by the public at 
the Archives Section on the second floor, at the 
Ministry of Housing and Land Use Planning, 
Plot 52, Ebene Tower, Ebene Cybercity during 
office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days 
of the second publication of this Notice in the 
Government Gazette, a written declaration of the 
nature of his interest in the land and of the amount 
and details of his claim for compensation.

Date: 24/08/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO 
Deputy Prime Minister 

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning 
Minister of Tourism 

Ebene Tower 
Ebene

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 1245 of2020

LAND ACQUISITION ACT
(Notice given under Section 8)

Notice is hereby given that I have decided to 
acquire compulsorily on behalf of the State of 
Mauritius a portion of land, heinafter described, 
situate at Belle Vue Pilot, Fond Du Sac in the 
district of Pamplemousses for the public purpose 
of the Construction of drains in the context of 
Flood Mitigation Measures at Fond du Sac.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 22 of the extent of one 
thousand and sixty square metres (1060m2) 
[PIN 1206090359] excised from a portion of land 
of the extent of fifty thousand four hundred and 
thirty nine square metres (50,439m2) belonging to 
Mr. Jairaj RAMKISSOON, bom on 11/08/1949 
and holding a National Identity Card bearing 
No. R110849012186G as evidenced by a deed 
transcribed in Volume TV201702/002006 and is 
bounded as follows:-

Towards the North East by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.66m wide as morefully described 
on the plan mentioned below on eight metres and 
forty three centimetres (8.43m).

Towards the South East by the surplus of land 
belonging to Mr. Jairaj RAMKISSOON on one 
hundred and twenty five metres and seventy seven 
centimetres (125.77m).

Towards the South West by the axis of a common 
and party road 3.05m wide on eight metres and 
forty eight centimetres (8.48m).

Towards the North West by the axis of a common 
and party road 3,05m wide on one hundred and twenty 
five metres and forty two centimetres (125.42m).

The whole as morefully shown on a plan 
registered at the Cadastre Unit as ACQ/75/000623 
and PCR 3398/2020, drawn up by Mr. Rishi 
Kumar Bhekharee, Government Land Surveyor 
on 27/02/2020.
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The plan may be inspected by the Public at the 
Archives Office of the Ministry of Housing and 
Lands, Ebene Tower, Ebene during office hours.

Every interested person is required to give to 
the Authorised Officer within fourteen (14) days of 
the second publication of this Notice in the Gazette 
a written declaration of the nature of his interest in 
the land and the amount and details of his claim for 
compensation.

Date: 24/07/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO
Deputy Prime Minister

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning
Minister of Tourism

Ebene Tower,
Ebene

First Publication

General Notice No. 1246 of2020

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 6)

Notice is hereby given that five (5) portions of 
land situate at Trianon, in the district of Plaines 
Wilhems are likely to be acquired by the State of 
Mauritius for the public purpose of construction 
of a new road link between motorway M3 and 
Ml at Hillcrest.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 67 (Serial No. 67) of an 
approximate extent of eighty square metres (80 m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of an extent 
of two thousand three hundred and fourteen and 
thirty five hundredths square metres (2314.35m2) 
belonging to CYBER AND ROSES LTD as 
evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV201702/001759 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by land being acquired 
from Mrs Danwantee ISSORY.

Towards the South East by land being acquired 
from Mr Jaydeo SEEBURRUN.

Towards the South West by land being acquired 
from Mr Oomesh RAMBURRUN.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 69 (Serial No. 69) of an 
approximate extent of eighty five square metres 
(85 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of an extent of two thousand three hundred and 
fourteen and thirty five hundredths square metres 
(2314.35m2) belonging to Mr & Mrs Basant 
RAGOOMUNDUN as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 2280/42 and is bounded 
as follows:-

Towards the North East by Portion No. 70 
(Serial No. 70) hereinafter described.

Towards the South East by land being acquired 
from Mr Jaydeo SEEBURRUN.

Towards the South West by land being acquired 
from Mrs Danwantee ISSORY.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 70 (Serial No. 70) of an 
approximate extent of ten square metres (10 m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
four thousand two hundred and twenty one square 
metres (4221m2) belonging to Mr & Mrs Basant 
RAGOOMUNDUN as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 2280/42 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East land being acquired 
from Mr Jaydeo SEEBURRUN.

Towards the South West by Portion No. 69 
(Serial No. 69) above described.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 73 (Serial No. 73) of an approximate 
extent of sixty square metres (60 m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of four 
thousand six hundred and fifty seven square metres 
(4657m2) belonging to STAMFORD TENTH 
LTD as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume TV 8459/23 is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by a common road.
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Towards the East by land being acquired from 
TOURMALINE TURQUOISE LTD.

Towards the South by the surplus of land.

Towards the West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 74 (Serial No. 74) of an 
approximate extent of one hundred and sixty five 
square metres (165 m2) is to be excised from a 
portion of land of an extent of three arpents and 
twenty four square perches (3A24P) or thirteen 
thousand six hundred and seventy five and thirty 
hundredths square metres (13675.30m2) belonging 
to Mr Nundun JHAMNA as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 1691/84 is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by land being acquired 
from BERLUTI INVESTMENTS LTD.

Towards the East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land.

Towards the West by land being acquired from 
Mr Deoraj JHAMNA.

Date: 23/08/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO
Deputy Prime Minister

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning
Minister of Tourism

Ebène Tower
Ebène

First Publication

General Notice No. 1247 of2020

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT

(Notice given under Section 6)
Notice is hereby given that thirty-one (31) 

portions of land situate at Bel Air in the district 
of Flacq are likely to be acquired by the State of 
Mauritius for the public purpose of upgrading 
of Flacq-Mahebourg Road (B28) from Deux 
Freres to Bel Air.

DESCRIPTION

Portion No. 1 (Serial No. 1) of an approximate 
extent of five square metres (5 m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
thirteen and sixty eight hundredths square perches 

(0A 13 68/100 P) or five hundred and seventy 
seven and forty two hundredths square metres 
(577.42 m2) belonging to Mr Abdool Cader 
OOZEER as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume TV 1726/62 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 2 
(Serial No. 2) hereinafter described.

Towards the South West by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 2 (Serial No. 2) of an approximate 
extent of ten square metres (10 m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
thirteen and fifty three hundredths square perches 
(0A 13 53/1 OOP) or five hundred and seventy one 
and eight hundredths square metres (571.08 m2) 
belonging to Mr Indiren Narayana GOUNDAN 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 1754/74 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by a pavement.

Towards the South West by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 1 
(Serial No. 1) above described.

Portion No. 3 (Serial No. 3) of an approximate 
extent of one thousand and five hundred square 
metres (1500 m2) is to be excised from a portion 
of land being all that remains of three contiguous 
portions of land of an extent of eleven arpents 
and eighty two square perches (11A82P) or four 
hectares nine thousand eight hundred and ninety 
square metres (4ha 9890 m2), five arpents (5A00P) 
or two hectares one thousand one hundred and four 
square metres (2 Ha 1104 m2) and one thousand 
arpents (1000A00P) or four hundred and twenty 
two hectares and eight hundred and seventy square 
metres (422ha 870 m2) belonging to ALTEO 
LIMITED (formerly FLACQ UNITED ESTATE 
LIMITED) as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 522/323 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 4 
(Serial No. 4) hereinafter described.
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Towards the South West by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the North West by State Land.

Portion No. 4 (Serial No. 4) of an approximate 
extent of one thousand one hundred square 
metres (1100 m2) is to be excised from a portion 
of land being all that remains of an original 
extent of one thousand four hundred and twenty 
five arpents (1425A00P) or six hundred and one 
hectares and four thousand seven hundred and 
forty square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) belonging 
to ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP RIVER 
BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by State Land.

Towards the South West by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 3 
(Serial No. 3) above described.

Portion No. 5 (Serial No. 5) of an approximate 
extent of one thousand one hundred square 
metres (1100 m2) is to be excised from a portion 
of land being all that remains of an original 
extent of one thousand four hundred and twenty 
five arpents (1425A00P) or six hundred and one 
hectares and four thousand seven hundred and 
forty square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) belonging 
to ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP RIVER 
BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South East by State Land.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land.

Towards the North West by an Estate Road.

Portion No. 6 (Serial No. 6) of an approximate 
extent of eight hundred square metres (800 m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land being all that 
remains of an original extent of one thousand four 
hundred and twenty five arpents (1425A00P) or six 
hundred and one hectares and four thousand seven 
hundred and forty square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) 
belonging to ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP

RIVER BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South East by Estate Road.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land.

Towards the North West by State Land.

Portion No. 7 (Serial No. 7) of an approximate 
extent of three hundred and fifty square metres 
(350 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
being all that remains of an original extent of one 
thousand four hundred and twenty five arpents 
(1425A00P) or six hundred and one hectares 
and four thousand seven hundred and forty 
square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) belonging to 
ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP RIVER 
BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South East by an Estate Road.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land.

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 8 (Serial No. 8) of an approximate 
extent of two hundred and twenty square metres 
(220 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
being all that remains of one thousand four 
hundred and twenty five arpents (1425A00P) or six 
hundred and one hectares and four thousand seven 
hundred and forty square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) 
belonging to ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP 
RIVER BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by an Estate Road.

Towards the South West by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 9 (Serial No. 9) of an approximate 
extent of two hundred and fifty square metres 
(250 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
being all that remains of one thousand four 
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hundred and twenty five arpents (1425A00P) or six 
hundred and one hectares and four thousand seven 
hundred and forty square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) 
belonging to ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP 
RIVER BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South by the surplus of land.

Towards the West by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land

Portion No. 10 (Serial No. 10) of an 
approximate extent of ninety square metres (90 m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land being all that 
remains of one thousand four hundred and twenty 
five arpents (1425A00P) or six hundred and one 
hectares and four thousand seven hundred and 
forty square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) belonging 
to ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP RIVER 
BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by surplus of land.

Towards the South West by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the North West by an Estate Road.

Portion No. 11 (Serial No. 11) of an approximate 
extent of three hundred square metres (300 m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land being all that 
remains of one thousand four hundred and twenty 
five arpents (1425A00P) or six hundred and one 
hectares and four thousand seven hundred and 
forty square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) belonging 
to ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP RIVER 
BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the North East by Grand River South 
East Road (B 112).

Towards the South by the surplus of land.

Towards the West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 12 (Serial No. 12) of an 
approximate extent of three thousand square 
metres (3000 m2) is to be excised from a portion 
of land being all that remains of one thousand four 
hundred and twenty five arpents (1425A00P) or six 
hundred and one hectares and four thousand seven 
hundred and forty square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) 
belonging to ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP 
RIVER BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the West partly by the surplus of land 
and partly by Flacq - Mahebourg Road (B 28).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 13 (Serial No. 13) of an approximate 
extent of two thousand five hundred square metres 
(2500 m2) is to be excised from a portion of 
land being all that remains of one thousand four 
hundred and twenty five arpents (1425A00P) or six 
hundred and one hectares and four thousand seven 
hundred and forty square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) 
belonging to ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP 
RIVER BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South West by the surplus of land. 

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 14 (Serial No. 14) of an approximate 
extent of seven thousand five hundred square 
metres (7500 m2) is to be excised from a portion 
of land being all that remains of one thousand four 
hundred and twenty five arpents (1425A00P) or six 
hundred and one hectares and four thousand seven 
hundred and forty square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) 
belonging to ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP 
RIVER BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.
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Towards the South East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South West by the surplus of land.

Towards the North by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Portion No. 15 (Serial No. 15) of an 
approximate extent of five thousand square metres 
(5000 m2) is to be excised from a portion of 
land being all that remains of one thousand four 
hundred and twenty five arpents (1425A00P) or six 
hundred and one hectares and four thousand seven 
hundred and forty square metres (601 Ha 4740 m2) 
belonging to ALTEO LIMITED (formerly DEEP 
RIVER BEAU CHAMP LTD) as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 523/163 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South partly by a cemetery and 
partly by Flacq - Mahebourg Road (B 28).

Towards the South West by the surplus of land.

Towards the West by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Portion No. 18 (Serial No. 18) of an approximate 
extent of one hundred and fifty square metres 
(150 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land of 
an extent of two arpents and eight and a half square 
perches (2A 08 1/2P) or eight thousand and eighty 
and fifty one hundredths square metres (8800.5 Im2) 
belonging to Heirs Ayoob CASSAMALLY (also 
known as Ayoob MUGHUN) as evidenced by 
title deeds transcribed in Volumes TV 911/51 & 
TV 2317/19 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by land being acquired 
from Mr Vishwanath SARAGADA.

Towards the South West by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the North West by land being acquired 
from Mr Iqbal Mohammad CASSAMALLY.

Portion No. 20 (Serial No. 20) of an approximate 
extent of two hundred and thirty square metres 
(230 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of an extent of two arpents and sixty five square 
perches (2A65P) or eleven thousand one hundred 
and eighty five and thirty one hundredths square 
metres (11185.31 m2) belonging to Heirs Ahcoob

CASSAMALLY as evidenced by title deed 
transcribed in Volume TV 736/127 and is bounded 
as follows: -

Towards the North East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South East by Portion No. 21 
(Serial No. 21) hereinafter described.

Towards the South West by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the North West by Portion No. 19 
(Serial No. 19) above described.

Portion No. 23 (Serial No. 23) of an 
approximate extent of seventy five square metres 
(75 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land of an 
extent of one thousand six hundred and eighty five 
square metres (1685m2) belonging to Mr Kreshna 
CAHANOO as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 377/80 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South East by Portion No. 24 
(Serial No. 24) hereinafter described.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land.

Towards the North West by Portion No. 22 
(Serial No. 22) above described.

Portion No. 25 (Serial No. 25) of an approximate 
extent of seventy five square metres (75 m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of three 
thousand three hundred and thirty five square metres 
(3335 m2) belonging to (i) Mr Ravindranath 
GOBHURDHUN for the usufruct and
(ii)(a)  Ms Deepa Suman Devi GOBHURDHUN 
(b) Ms Sevika GOBHURDHUN for the bare 
ownership as evidenced by title deed transcribed in 
Volume TV 7202/61 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by Portion No. 24 
(Serial No. 24) above described.

Towards the North East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South by Portion No. 26 
(Serial No. 26) hereinafter described.

Towards the South West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 27 (Serial No. 27) of an 
approximate extent of twenty square metres 
(20 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of an extent of twenty five square perches (25P) 
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or one thousand and fifty five and twenty two 
hundredths square metres (1055.22m2) belonging 
to Mr & Mrs Seewoopoojhan KUREEMUN 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 1914/135 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by the land belonging to 
Mr Sadeo KUREEMUN.

Towards the East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South by Portion No. 28 
(Serial No. 28) hereinafter described.

Towards the West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 28 (Serial No. 28) of an 
approximate extent of one hundred square metres 
(100 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of an extent of five thousand nine hundred and 
thirty seven square metres (5937 m2) belonging to 
Mr Surendranath GOBHURDHUN as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 8246/52 
and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by Portion No. 27 
(Serial No. 27) above described.

Towards the East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South by Portion No. 29 
(Serial No. 29) hereinafter described.

Towards the West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 29 (Serial No. 29) of an approximate 
extent of forty square metres (40 m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of one 
thousand four hundred and seventy seven and thirty 
hundredths square metres (1477.30 m2) belonging 
to Mrs Nandini BHOLLOO as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 8880/22 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by Portion No. 28 
(Serial No. 28) above described.

Towards the East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South by Portion No. 30 
(Serial No. 30) hereinafter described.

Towards the West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 30 (Serial No. 30) of an 
approximate extent of ten square metres (10 m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of an extent 

of twelve and a half square perches (0A 12 */2 P) 
or five hundred and twenty seven and sixty one 
hundredths square metres (527.61m2) belonging to 
Mr Jagessur GREEDHARRY as evidenced by 
title deed transcribed in Volume TV 1007/78 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by Portion No. 29 
(Serial No. 29) above described.

Towards the East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South by the surplus of land.

Towards the West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 31 (Serial No. 31) of an 
approximate extent of ten square metres (10 m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of an extent 
of five square perches (0A05P) or two hundred 
and eleven and four hundredths square metres 
(211.04m2) belonging to Mr Bhanupratab 
BOOLUCK as evidenced by title deed transcribed 
in Volume TV 201805/002014 and is bounded as 
follows: -

Towards the North by the surplus of land.

Towards the East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South by Portion No. 33 
(Serial No. 33) hereinafter described.

Towards the West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 32 (Serial No. 32) of an 
approximate extent of fifty square metres 
(50 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
of an extent of nine hundred and ninety one and 
nine tenths square metres (991.9 m2) belonging to 
Mr Indralall BOOLUCK as evidenced by title 
deed transcribed in Volume TV 1777/112 and is 
bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by the surplus of land.

Towards the East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South by reserves of a canal.
Towards the West by Flacq - Mahebourg 

Road (B 28).

Portion No. 33 (Serial No. 33) of an 
approximate extent of thirty square metres (30 m2) 
is to be excised from a portion of land of an extent 
of two hundred and ten square metres (210 m2) 
belonging to Mr Bhanupratab BOOLUCK as 
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evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 201805/002016 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by Portion No. 31 
(Serial No. 31) above described.

Towards the East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South by reserves of a canal.

Towards the West by the surplus of land.
Portion No. 34 (Serial No. 34) of an 

approximate extent of fifty square metres (50 
m2) is to be excised from a portion of land of 
an extent of two thousand and sixty eight and 
sixty five hundredths square metres (2068.65 m2) 
belonging to Mr & Mrs Dhurmeshdev JAUNKY 
as evidenced by title deed transcribed in Volume 
TV 2294/55 and is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by land belonging to Mrs 
Bibi Tahera FOKEERMOHAMUD.

Towards the East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South by Portion No. 35 
(Serial No. 35) hereinafter described.

Towards the West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 38 (Serial No. 38) of an approximate 
extent of thirty square metres (30 m2) is to be 
excised from a portion of land of an extent of four 
thousand two hundred and twenty and eighty seven 
hundredths square metres (4220.87 m2) belonging 
to Heirs Mamode Aniff HEENAYE as evidenced 
by title deed transcribed in Volume TV 323/93 and 
is bounded as follows: -

Towards the North by the surplus of land.

Towards the East by the surplus of land.

Towards the South by land belonging to Abdool 
RaoufMUNGUR.

Towards the West by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Portion No. 39 (Serial No. 39) of an 
approximate extent of twenty square metres 
(20 m2) is to be excised from a portion of land 
being occupied by Mr Mootaloo LATCHANAH 
and is bounded as follows:-

Towards the North by a common road.

Towards the East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South by Portion No. 40 
(Serial No. 40) hereinafter described.’

Towards the West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 41 (Serial No. 41) of an 
approximate extent of one hundred and twenty 
five square metres (125 m2) is to be excised from a 
portion of land occupied by Mr Roghoo ARJOON 
is bounded as follows -

Towards the North by land belonging to 
Mr Seemadree MUTHYALU.

Towards the East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the South by land belonging to 
Mr Feroz MUNGUR.

Towards the West by the surplus of land.

Portion No. 42 (Serial No. 42) of an 
approximate extent of ten square metres (10 m2) is 
to be excised from a portion of land of an extent of 
eight hundred and forty-four square metres (844m2) 
belonging to Mr Lutchumaya BUNGARADU 
as evidenced by title deeds transcribed in Volume 
TV201412/000135 and is bounded as follows -

Towards the South East by Flacq - Mahebourg 
Road (B 28).

Towards the North West by the surplus of land.

Towards the North East by land belonging by 
Mr Jankee DEENOO.

Date: 23/08/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO
Deputy Prime Minister

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning
Ebène Tower 

Ebène

General Notice No. 1248 of2020

THE LAND ACQUISITION ACT 
(Notice given under Section 8)

CORRIGENDUM

In the Notice given under Section 8 of the Land 
Acquisition Act dated the 26/02/2018 containing 
the description of a portion of land being Portion 
No. 22 (Serial No. 22) [PIN: 1317010237] situate 
at Cap Malheureux, in the district of Riviere Du 
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Rempart for the public purpose of construction 
of a bypass at Cap Malheureux published in the 
Government Gazette in its issues on 10/03/2018 
and 24/03/2018 under General Notices No. 371 
of 2018 and No. 481 of 2018 and transcribed on 
15/05/2018 in Volume TV201805/000974, the 
words and figures “is excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of forty five arpents and fifty 
three and nine tenths square perches (45A 53.9P) 
or nineteen hectares and two thousand two hundred 
and fourteen square metres (19Ha 2214m* 1 2)” are 
hereby deleted and replaced by the following 
words and figures “is excised from a portion of 
land of an extent of forty five arpents and fifty five 
square perches (45A 55P) or nineteen hectares and 
two thousand two hundred and fifty seven square 
metres (19Ha 2257m2)” wherever they appear.

General Notice No. 1249 of2020

CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

(Notice served by the State of Mauritius under 
Section 9(3))

1. Take notice you, the here under named and 
styled as neighbouring/adjoining owner(s), that 
I, Mr. N. I. Torabally (Government Land 
Surveyor), will on Wednesday the 30th day 
of September 2020 as from 10.00 hrs in the 
morning proceed to survey and establish the 
boundary limit along St Jean Road A8 with 
respect to the adjoining plots of land at Quatre 
Bomes in the district of Plaine Wilhems. which 
the State of Mauritius intends to establish for the 
implementation of the Metro Express Project.

2. Take further notice that you are hereby 
summoned to attend the survey operations 
on the aforementioned day, date and time. In 
addition, you are requested to bring along all 
title deeds and plans or whatever like documents 
concerning your property and to produce them to

Date: 23/08/2020

The Honourable Louis Steven OBEEGADOO 
Deputy Prime Minister

Minister of Housing and Land Use Planning 
Minister of Tourism 

Ebène Tower 
Ebène 

me so as to enable me to establish the boundary 
line separating the Former Railway Limit from 
your property.

3. Take notice that the said survey will be carried 
out by me, or in case of impediment, by any 
other Government Land Surveyor deputed by 
me on the aforesaid day, date, time, place and 
will continue on the following days if need be 
whether you be present or not.

Dated this 2nd day of September two thousand 
and twenty at the Survey Office, Ministry of 
Housing and Lands, 3rd Floor, Ebene.

N. I. Torabally 
Government Land Surveyor

NOTICE TO BE SERVED ON:-

(a) Maheswaree Naraini MADHUB - Route St Jean, 
Quatre Bornes

(b) Gowmatee Madhubala MADHUB - Eperviers Ave, 
Sodnac, Quatre Bornes

(c) Indranee Madhumattee MADHUB - c/o 
Maheswaree Naraini MADHUB

(d) Vanprastee Premanady MADHUB - Les colonials 
Apartments, Floreal

(e) Oomeshwarnath Beny MADHUB - Route St Jean, 
Quatre Bomes

(f) Soosilah Davy MADHUB - Route St Jean, Quatre 
Bomes

General Notice No. 1250 of2020

THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT

(Notice given under Section 9 (3))

Notice is hereby given that I, Government 
Land Surveyor, am to survey 5 portions of State 
Land, situate at Trianon (Phoenix) in the District 
of Plaines Wilhems being the Sodnac State 
Secondary School grounds, as evidenced by deeds 
transcribed in Volume TV 2332/50, TV 5031/40, 
TV 5083/30, TV 5271/63, TV 5480/39 and 
TV 5960/14.

DESCRIPTION

The said portions of land being of an aggregate 
extent of twenty six thousand one hundred 
and eighty two square metres and twenty five 
hundredths (26,182.25m2) is bounded as follows.
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Towards the North by the properties belonging 
to St. Nicholas Grammar School Ltd., Howe Chien 
Hwa, Sodnac Hights Ltd.

Towards the East by the property belonging to 
Société des Co-Propriétaires de Phoenix Central.

Towards the South by a common road.

Towards the West by reserves along Phoenix 
Sodnac Link Road.

The said survey will start on Monday the twenty 
first day of September two thousand and twenty at 
1 OhrsOO and will continue on the following days if 
need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties are 
hereby called upon to be present at the aforesaid 
time and date and to produce their title deeds or 
any other documents which may be of help to me.

Dated at the Office of the Ministry of Housing 
and Land Use Planning, Ebene this third day of 
September two thousand and twenty.

Zafrullah-bin-Ismet Sookia
Government Land Surveyor

General Notice No. 1251 of2020

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF NAME
ABC AUTOTECH LTD

ABC AUTOTECH LTD, an authorised dealer 
in imported second-hand motor vehicles, having 
complied with provisions of Regulations 11 of 
the Consumer Protection (Importation and Sale of 
Second-hand Motor Vehicles) Regulations 2004, 
has been authorised to amend its name from ABC 
AUTOTECH LTD TO GinMori Auto Ltd with 
effect from 09th July 2020.

03 September 2020.

Ministry of Commerce and 
Consumer Protection 

imported second-hand motor vehicles, having 
complied with provisions of Regulations 9 of the 
Consumer Protection (Importation and Sale of 
Second-hand Motor Vehicles) Regulations 2004, 
has been authorised to change the address of its 
business premises from Royal Road, Terminus, 
Triolet to 55A, Lot C, Sir Abdool Rajack 
Mohammed Street, Port Louis with effect from 
03 July 2020.

08 July 2020

Ministry of Commerce and Consumer Protection

Second and Last Publication

General Notice No. 1253 of2020

MINISTRY OF ENVIRONMENT, SOLID WASTE 
MANAGEMENT AND CLIMATE CHANGE

NOTICE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION OF 
EIA REPORT BY BEAUPORT 

INDUSTRIES LTD

Notice is hereby given under Section 20 of 
the Environment Protection Act 2002 by the 
Department of Environment, Ministry of 
Environment, Solid Waste Management and 
Climate Change that an application for an EIA 
Licence has been submitted on 25 August 2020 
under Section 18(1) of the Act for a scheduled 
undertaking and that the EIA report shall be opened 
for public inspection.

(a) The undertaking concerns the proposed 
modification of existing coastline, 
construction of groynes and beach 
nourishment at Constance Prince Maurice 
Hotel by Beauport Industries Ltd.

(b) The location of the proposed undertaking is at 
Poste de Flacq, in the District of Flacq.

(c) The report may be inspected during normal 
office working hours (i.e. 08.45 hrs to 12.00 
hrs and 12.30 hrs to 16.00 hrs) at the Resource 
Centre of the Department of Environment, 
Ground Floor, Ken Lee Tower, Cnr. Barracks 
and St. Georges Streets, Port Louis and at the 
District Council of Flacq

The report may also be inspected on the 
portal of the Economic Development 

General Notice No. 1252 of2020

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF ADDRESS
FREEWAY AUTOMOBILE LTD

Notice is hereby given that FREEWAY 
AUTOMOBILE LTD, an authorised dealer in
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Board at the following address: 
https://business.edbmauritius.org and public 
comments should be submitted online at 
the above address by 16 September 2020 
at latest.

27 August 2020

Department of Environment 
Ministry of Environment, 

Solid Waste Management and 
Climate Change 

Military Road near Ex British 
American Tobacco (BAT);

(iii) Ste Marie Road, Ste Croix and the 
lateral roads from its junction with 
Le Cornu Street up to Pieton Père 
Laval Street; and,

(iv) Pieton Père Laval and the lateral 
roads from its junction from 
Pamplemousses Road, Ste Croix 
up to Père Laval Church except for 
authorized vehicles.

3. ONE WAY STREETS ON TUESDAY 08.09.2020 
AS FROM 1600 HRS TO 0600 HRS ON 
WEDNESDAY 09.09.2020 FOR BUSES ON 
SPECIAL TRIP - ESSENTIAL SERVICES - 
POLICE

(i) Cocoterie Road, Ste Croix from Cocoterie 
Roundabout up to its junction with Nicolay 
Road and Ducray Street, Ste Croix;

(ii) Ducray Street from its junction with 
Nicolay Road to that with Pamplemousses 
Road; and,

(iii) Pamplemousses Road from its junction 
with Ducray Street up to Vallee des Pretres 
Cross Road (Media Building).

4. ONE WAY STREET (FROM 0600 HRS TO 1800 
HRS ON WEDNESDAY 09.09.2020)

Allee Père Laval Street from its junction with 
Pamplemousses Road up to Pere Laval Church will 
be a One Way Street.

5. DIVERSION OF VEHICULAR TRAFFIC ON 
TUESDAY 08.09.2020 AS FROM 1600 HRS TO 
0600 HRS ON WEDNESDAY 09.09.2020

(i) All vehicles proceeding towards the North 
including motor buses on routine trips 
motoring along Royal Street will, when 
reaching at junction Nicolay Road and 
Military Road, be diverted onto Military 
Road towards Quay “D” Roundabout then 
onto the New Trunk Road to proceed to the 
North;

(ii) Vehicular traffic coming from the North on 
Old Royal Road, Terre Rouge will, when 
reaching junction Pamplemousses Road 
and Riche Terre Branch Road be diverted 

General Notice No. 1254 of2020

FATHER LAVAL PILGRIMAGE

ON TUESDAY 08th AND 
WEDNESDAY 09th SEPTEMBER, 2020

By virtue of authority conferred upon me by 
Section 25(3) of the Police Act and Section 181 
of the Road Traffic Act, the following traffic 
arrangements as hereunder will be made on 
Tuesday 8th and Wednesday 9th September, 2020 
in Metropolitan (North) Division on the occasion 
of “Father Laval Pilgrimage”.

2. CLOSED STREETS

The following streets will be closed to vehicular 
traffic and declared as pedestrian zones except in 
the event of emergency:-

(a) ON TUESDAY 08.09.2020 AS FROM 
1200 HRS TO 0600 HRS ON WEDNESDAY 
09.09.2020

Allee Père Laval from its junction with 
Pamplemousses Road up to Père Laval 
Church, Ste Croix and all its lateral streets.

(b) ON TUESDAY 08.09.2020 AS FROM 1600 
HRS TO 0600 HRS ON WEDNESDAY 
09.09.2020 OR AS AND WHEN DECIDED 
BY THE POLICE

(i) Pamplemousses Road from its 
junction with Riche Terre Branch 
Road up to that with Ducray Street, 
Ste Croix;

(ii) Nicolay Road, Ste Croix and the 
lateral roads from Abercrombie 
Roundabout up to its junction with

https://business.edbmauritius.org
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onto Riche Terre Road towards Riche Terre 
Roundabout to New Trunk Road to proceed 
towards the South; and,

(iii) Buses on routine trips towards the North 
will use the New Trunk Road up to Terre 
Rouge Roundabout, then be diverted into 
Old Royal Road, Terre Rouge to disembark 
and embark passengers and back to New 
Trunk Road through Riche Terre Road to 
proceed towards the North.

6. ROUTE FOR VEHICULAR TRAFFIC 
MOTORING ALONG NEW TRUNK ROAD 
AND BOUND FOR VALLEE DES PRETRES 
AND PLAINE VERTE - ON TUESDAY 
08.09.2020 AS FROM 1600 HRS TO 0600 HRS 
ON WEDNESDAY 09.09.2020

Vehicular traffic motoring along New Trunk 
Road either from the North or from the South or 
from the direction of Tombeau Bay and proceeding 
either towards Vallee des Pretres or Plaine Verte 
will, when reaching Quay “D: Roundabout be 
diverted onto Military Road, Pamplemousses 
Street, Plaine Verte and then proceed towards their 
respective destinations.

7. ROUTE TO PERE LAVAL CHURCH FOR 
OFFICIAL VEHICLES

All official vehicles will use the New Trunk 
Road and exhibiting a “PASS” when proceeding 
towards Père Laval Church and reaching Cocoterie 
Roundabout be diverted onto Cocoterie Road 
via Ducray Street onto Pamplemousses Road 
then Pieton Père Laval - Ste Croix Road and 
Ste Marie Road.

8. WAY OUT FOR OFFICIAL VEHICLES FROM 
PERE LAVAL CHURCH - STE CROIX

Official vehicles leaving Père Laval Church 
and proceeding towards Khadafi Square will do so 
along Ste Marie Road straightaway up to Cite La 
Cure Bus Stand or via Sophia Lane and thereafter, 
exit along Bernardin de St Pierre Street and Vallee 
des Pretres Cross Road towards their destination.

9. ROUTE FOR VEHICLES PROCEEDING 
TOWARDS CITE LA CURE

Vehicles proceeding towards Cite La Cure will 
have to use Bernardin de St Pierre Street, Vallee 
des Pretres.

10. PARKING OF VEHICLES
" •

Vehicles should be parked at the following 
reserved parking spaces:

1. Cite La Cure Bus Stand,

2. Along the thoroughfares of Morcellement La 
Vallee; and,

3. In the yard of St Gabriel College.

11. PROHIBITED PARKING AREAS

No vehicles will be allowed to park along the 
following thoroughfares:-

(a) Pamplemousses Road from its junction 
with Riche Terre Road near Bazire Bridge, 
Ste Croix up to Vallee des Pretres Cross 
Road;

(b) Nicolay Road from its junction with Military 
Road up to Abercrombie Roundabout;

(c) Cocoterie Road from its junction with 
Nicolay Road up to Cocoterie Roundabout;

(d) Pieton Pere Laval from its junction with 
Pamplemousses Road up to that with Ste 
Croix and Ste Marie Roads; and,

(e) Ste Marie Road from its junction with Ste 
Croix Road up to that with Sophia Lane.

12. BUSES

(a) DISEMBARKATION POINT ON TUESDAY 
08.09.2020 AS FROM 1600 HRS TO 
0600 HRS ON WEDNESDAY 09.09.2020

(i) All Special Route Buses as well as 
those from Port Louis on routine trips 
and bound for Pere Laval Church 
will disembark their passengers 
along Ducray Street, Ste Croix; and,

(ii) Buses from the Northern and 
Eastern part of the island and 
bound for Père Laval Church will 
disembark passengers at the bus 
stop near Dhanush Stone Crusher, 
Terre Rouge.

(b) EMBARKATION POINT ON TUSEDAY 
08.09.2020 AS FROM 1600 HRS TO 
0600 HRS ON WEDNESDAY 09.09.2020
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(i) Special Route Buses awaiting 
passengers will park on the left 
of the road along Military Road 
when facing Ex British American 
Tobacco (BAT).

(ii) Buses on routine trips will embark 
passengers as hereunder:-

(a) At an improvised bus stop 
along Pamplemousses Road 
near Riche Terre Branch Road 
for passengers bound for the 
Northern and Eastern part of the 
island; and,

(b) At the bus stop located along 
Pamplemoussses Road, Ste 
Croix near Pyneeandee Shop 
(near junction of Ducray Street) 
for passengers bound for Port 
Louis and for the Southern part 
of the island.

13. BUS STOP (On TUESDAY 08.09.2020 as 
from 1600 hrs to 0600 hrs on WEDNESDAY 
09.09.2020)

The bus stop along Nicolay Road adjacent to 
Abercrombie Police Married Quarters and that 
along Pamplemousses Road near Abercrombie 
Police Station and all other bus stops within the 
declared prohibited zones will not be operational 
as embarkation and disembarkation points for all 
passengers.

14. TAXI STAND ABERCROMBIE

As from 1600 hrs on Tuesday 08.09.2020 to 
0600 hrs on Wednesday 09.09.2020, the actual 
Abercrombie Taxi Stand at Pamplemousses Street, 
Ste Croix will not be operational.

15. ON TUESDAY 08.09.2020 AS FROM 0600 HRS 
TO 1600 HRS ROUTE FOR VEHICULAR 
TRAFFIC MOTORING ALONG THE NEW 
TRUNK ROAD AND BOUND FOR VALLEE' 
DES PRETRES AND PLAINE VERTE.

(i) Vehicular traffic motoring along the 
New Trunk Road either from the North 
or from the South or from the direction 
of Tombeau Bay and proceeding either 
towards Vallee des Pretres or Plaine Verte 

will, when reaching Cocoterie Round 
About be diverted onto Cocoterie Road - 
Nicolay Road - Abercrombie Round About 
- Pamplemousses Road towards their 
respective destinations;

(ii) Vehicular traffic including motor buses on 
routine trips motoring along Allee Pere 
Laval Street to Pere Laval Church will not 
be allowed to use the same road for their 
return journey; and,

(iii) Vehicular traffic coming from Cite La Cure 
will do so via Bernardin de St Pierre Street 
or Pieton Pere Laval Street, Ste Croix to 
proceed to Khadafi Square and Immigration 
Bus Stand.

16. JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS

Non compliance with these regulations may 
entail judicial proceedings.

The cooperation and understanding of the public 
would be much appreciated. Police will be on spot 
to give directives.

3rd September, 2020

Mr K. Servansing, PMSM 
Commissioner of Police

Office of the Commissioner of Police
Police Headquarters
Line Barracks
Port Louis

General Notice No. 1255 of2020

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise 
Mrs Sushmah Sohodeb (born Ramphull) to 
change her name Sushmah into that of Reshmah 
so that in future she shall bear the name and 
surname of Reshmah Ramphull.

Date: 31st August 2020.

K. Davay (Ms) 
State Counsel
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General Notice No. 1256 of2020

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise 
Bhipin FOWDUR to change his name Bhipin 
into those of Gavin Bhipin so that in future he 
shall bear the names and surname of Gavin
Bhipin FOWDUR.

Date: 28.08 2020.

U. Rawat Neerooa (Mrs) 
Ag. Senior State Counsel

General Notice No. 1257 of2020

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that the Honourable 
Attorney General is pleased to authorise 
Sourunsingh GYA to change his name 
Sourunsingh into those of Soorunsingh Roshan 
so that in future he shall bear the names and 
surname of Soorunsingh Roshan GYA.

Date: 25th August 2020

K. Domah (Ms) 
State Counsel
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General Notice No. 1258 of2020

NATIONAL LAND TRANSPORT AUTHORITY
ROAD TRANSPORT DIVISION

Notice is hereby given that the following applications have been received by the Authority and the 

Authority will shortly hear the said applications.

APPLICATION FOR PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER S LICENCE

S.N LICENCE NO NAME OF APPLICANT
WEIGHT 

OF 
VEHICLE

BASE OF 
OPERATION

DESCRIPTION OF 
GOODS

1494 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20576
RAYA AZMOTH 

Marie Arianne Aurelie 
(Bom RAYA)

NYP 
5700kg 

GV

IB, Emmaüs Lane, 
Coromandel General Goods

1495 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20577 BURAHEE 
Ehmadally

NYP 
17000kg 

GV

Mosque Road, 
Upper Vale General Goods

1496 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20578 FLEURY
Louis Cliff Winley

NYP 
3390kg 

GV

St Joseph, 
Grand Gaube General Goods

1497 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20579
SOMAH

Aarthi
774ZN97 
4960kg Mon Repos, 

Bambous General Goods
(Bom DOORJEAN) GV

1498 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20580 RAMCHURN
Koushal

2777ZK93 
7780kg 

GV

Vyapouri Lane, 
Valetta General Goods

NYP Industrial Zone, 
Phoenix

General Goods
1499 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20581 Agiliss Ltd 25000kg &

GV Containers

NYP Industrial Zone, 
Phoenix

General Goods
1500 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20582 Agiliss Ltd 25000kg &

*
GV Containers

NYP Industrial Zone, 
Phoenix

General Goods
1501 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20583 Agiliss Ltd 25000kg &

GV Containers

NYP Industrial Zone, 
Phoenix

General Goods
1502 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20584 Agiliss Ltd 25000kg &

GV Containers
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1503 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20585 Agiliss Ltd
NYP 

25000kg 
GV

Industrial Zone, 
Phoenix

General Goods 
& 

Containers

1504 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20586 SOOMARAH
Manish

NYP 
4500kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Plaine des Roches General Goods

1505 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20587 RAMSOHOK
Rajesh Kumar

NYP 
12000kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
St Julien d'Hotman
b

General Goods

1506 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20588 RAMSOHOK
Rajesh Kumar

NYP 
12000kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
St Julien d'Hotman General Goods

1507 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20589 DIDIE
Louis James Kelly

NYP 
7000kg 

GV

Avenue Elipée, 
Bambous General Goods

1508 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20590 COOSHNA 
Mithradev

NYP 
3460kg 

GV

Allée Manguier, 
Cascavelle, 
Bambous

General Goods

1509 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20591 REEDOY
Ramlagan

NYP 
6300kg 

GV

Rose Street, 
Cité St Aubin, 

Rivière des 
Anguilles

General Goods

1510 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20592 BALISSON 
Dipak

NYP 
4000kg 

GV

Morcellement
Gobin, Surinam

General Goods 
& 

Waste

1511 NTA/PUB/A/LC/20593
BEEHARRY 

Anousha 
(Born VINKTAREMDOO)

NYP 
8295kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Isidore-Rose, Flacq General Goods

APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF PUBLIC ‘A’ CARRIER’S LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

VEHICLE 
NUMBER & 
MAXIMUM 

GROSS 
WEIGHT

BASE OF 
OPERATION

GOODS TO BE 
CARRIED

1512 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19115 TEELUCK 
Manjeeta

1747ZJ92 
7790kg 

GV

Laborde Street, 
Bois Rouge, 

Pamplemousses

From: General Goods

To: General Goods &
Waste
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VEHICLE 
NUMBER &

S.N REF NO NAME OF 
APPLICANT

MAXIMUM 
GROSS 

WEIGHT

BASE OF 
OPERATION

GOODS TO BE 
CARRIED

1513 NTA/PUB/A/LC/19591 Bojess Ltd 88FZ12 
34480kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Rivière du Poste

From: General Goods

To: General Goods & 
Sugar in Bulk

1514 NTA/PUB/A/LC/18244 Bojess Ltd 80DZ08 
34600kg 

GV

Royal Road, 
Rivière du Poste

From: General Goods

To: General Goods & 
Sugar in Bulk

1515 NTA/PUB/A/LC/8811 
(23665/A)

RAJARETNAM 
Rajakrishna

4147SP05
13500kg 

GV

Cantin Road, 
Vacoas

From: Effluents

To: General Goods & 
Effluents

1516 NTA/PUB/A/LC/4192
(34334/A)

APPALASAWMY 
Ranjeev

7283OC16 
25820kg 

GV

René Maingard 
Street, 

Roches Brunes

From: General Goods

To: General Goods & 
Water Tank

1517 NTA/PUB/A/LC/13242 APPALASAWMY 
Ranjeev

7590AG19 
29530kg 

GV

Lot 32, 
Morcellement 

St Daniel, 
Roches Brunes

From: General Goods

To: General Goods & 
Water Tank

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(TAXI) LICENCE

To: GOLAUP Fezal Muslim

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT
VEHICLE 
NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

75 17089/C From: (Late) Ahmad Fazroon JHOURY Taxi Car
537ZY11

Vallée Pitot

To: Heirs Ahmad Fazroon JHOURY to be 
represented by Bibi Rozida JHOURY

76 16603/C From: GOLAUP Muslim Taxi Car
1326ZY09

Vallée Pitot
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APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF BASE OF OPERATION OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(CONTRACT CAR) LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT
VEHICLE
NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

763 24300/D-2/D Rental Direct Ltd 3 Cars
6744AG17 
7861SP17

11554DC19

From: 246, Avenue Pelicans, 
Morcellement Chazal, Flic-en-Flac

To: A2, Level 4, Belfort Tower, Comer 
Dauphin and Joseph Riviere Streets, 
Port-Louis

APPLICATION FOR TRANSFER OF PUBLIC SERVICE VEHICLE 
(CONTRACT BUS) LICENCE

S.N REF NO
VEHICLE

NAME OF APPLICANT NUMBER BASE OF OPERATION

25 27144/E From: Danraj MEETTOOK 5686DC05
14-Seater

From: 5eme Mile, Beau Bassin

To: Reshme MEETTOOK To: Royal Road, Tyack

26 30939/E From: Kesso MAUDHOO 1723AP09 
14-Seater

From: Gandhi Road, Lallmatie

To: Saeeda Begum MAUDHOO To: X03, Residence Soleil, Poste de Flacq

APPLICATION FOR VARIATION OF ROUTE OF ROAD SERVICE LICENCE

S.N REF NO NAME OF APPLICANT

38 NTA 20/63/6397 Highway Express Co Ltd

ITINERARY

From: Route 9/9A (Curepipe to Mahebourg via 
Lapeyre Hill), 90 (Curepipe to Blue Bay) and 252 
(Curepipe to Mahebourg via La Vigie)

To: Route 198 (Port-Louis - Mahebourg)
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Any person legally entitled to do so may set out his/her objection/s or other representation/s together with 
his/her name and address and must give the reasons thereof in writing so that these may reach the Secretary 
to the Licensing Committee, National Land Transport Authority, MSI Building, Royal Road, Les Cassis, 
Port Louis not later than on the seventh day of publication of this notice, in the Government Gazette. Any 
objection, that reaches the Secretary to the Licensing Committee after the prescribed time limit will not be 
entertained.

MSI Building
Les Cassis
Port Louis
02 September 2020
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General Notice No. 1259 of2020

TRADEMARK NOTICES

Data Identification Codes
The data identification codes appearing in the tables below are WIPO standards and are known as 
Internationally recognised Numbers for the Identification of Data (INID) Codes.

INID Codes For Marks
Code Interpretation Code Interpretation Code Interpretation

(310) Application (151) Registration Date (Hl) Registration Number
Number

(511) Nice Classification (730) Applicant’s Name & Address
(320) Filing Date

(540) Description of the Mark (740) Representative’s Name &
(330) Priority Data

(526) Disclaimer
Address

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 
(Regulation 51)

Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been accepted under Section 38 of the Patents, 
Industrial Designs & Trademarks Act 2002: -

(310) 31037/2020 (320) 20/02/2020
(730) TOTAL SA

2, place Jean Millier, La Défense 6, 92400 
Courbevoie, France

(740) KASHISH International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (37)
(54°) QUARTZ

(310) 31246/2020 (320) 01/06/2020
(330) 19/4599867 18/11/2019 FR
(730) METROPOLE TELEVISION

89 avenue Charles de Gaulle, 92200 
Neuilly sur Seine, France

(740) Pravin Barthia,Trademark Agent
ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis

(511) (9, 38 and 41)
(540) M6 INTERNATIONAL

(310) 31247/2020 (320) 01/06/2020
(330) 4598428 13/11/2019 FR
(730) Qair

Chemin de MaussacDomaine de Patau 
34420 Villeneuve-lès-Béziers 
France

(740) Pravin Barthia,Trademark Agent
ENSaffica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street 
Port-Louis

(511) (35,36,37,39,40,41 and 42)
(540) QAIR

(310) 31294/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(330) 018180576 15/01/2020 EU
(730) Eton Systems AB

Djupadal, 507 15 Ganghester, Sweden
(740) Kashish International Limited

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bomes
(511) (7)
(540) ETON
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(310) 31281/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(330) 88668105 24/10/2019 US;

88668109 24/10/2019 US and 
88668110 24/10/2019 .US

(730) L Catterton Management Limited
599 West Putnam Avenue, Greenwich, 
Connecticut 06830, U.S.A.

(740) Ally Meeajan (Barrister)
C/o Pravir Palayathan, Royal Road, 
Gentilly Moka

(511) (35, 36 and 37)
(540) L CATTERTON (Stylised)

HCatterton

(310) 29130/2019 (320) 10/04/2019
(730) Gymshark Limited

GSHQ, Blythe Valley Business Park
3 Central Boulevard, Solihull, B90 8AB 
United Kingdom

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bornes

(511) (18, 21,25, 28 and 35)
(540) Shark Head Logo

(310) 30168/2019 (320) 27/09/2019
(730) TOTAL SA

2, place Jean Millier, La Défense 6, 
92400 Courbevoie, France

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bornes

(511) (4, 7, 9, 37 and 40)
(540) TOTAL & Globe device (colour) (2019)

Total

(310) 30838/2020 (320) 17/01/2020
(730) QTERMINALS

15th Floor, Shoumouk Tower A, St. 985
Zone 23, Fareej Bin Mahmoud, Doha
Qatar

(740) Mr André Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (35 and 39)
(540) QTERMINALS Logo

QTERMINALS

(310) 29129/2019 (320) 10/04/2019
(730) Gymshark Limited

GSHQ, Blythe Valley Business Park
3 Central Boulevard, Solihull, B90 8AB, 
United Kingdom

(740) Kashish International Limited, (IP Agent) 
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (18, 21, 25, 28 and 35)
(540) GVMSHARK

(310) 31327/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(730) Chosen Foods, LLC

1747 Hancock Street, Suite A, San Diego, 
California 92101
United States of America

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (29 and 30)
(540) CHOSEN FOODS
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(310) 31301/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(730) ZHEJIANG SEMIR GARMENT

CO., LTD.
No. 98 Nanhui Road, Louqiao Industrial 
Park, Ouhai District,Wenzhou, Zhejiang, 
People’s Republic of China

(740) Kashish International Limited
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (18 and 25)
(540) Balabala (Stylized)

Balabala

(310) 31310/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(730) ZHEJIANG SEMIR GARMENT

CO., LTD.
No. 98 Nanhui Road, Louqiao Industrial
Park, Ouhai District, Wenzhou, Zhejiang, 
People’s Republic of China

(740) Kashish International Limited
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (18 and 25)
(540) SEMIR (Stylized)

SEMIR

(310) 31321/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(330) 3441473 (Class 18 & 25) 04/11/2019 UK 

and 3445960 (Class 24) 21/11/2019 UK
(730) Gymshark Limited

G.S.H.Q. Blythe Valley Park, 3 Central 
Boulevard, Solihull, B90 8AB, United 
Kingdom

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (18, 24 and 25)
(540) GYMSHARK FITNESS Muscle

Shark Logo

(310) 31295/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(730) LC WAiKIKi MAGAZACILIK 

HIZMETLERi T1CARET ANONIM 
§iRKETl
Evren Mahallesi, Gülbahar Caddesi, 
No:96, Bagcilar-Istanbul, Turkey

(740) Kashish International Limited
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bomes

(511) (3, 18, 25 and 35)
(540) lew (Stylized)

LCW
(310) 31330/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(330) 550271 (Class 24) 08/11/2019 PK and

3446089 (CL 26 & 40) 21/11/2019 UK
(730) Gymshark Limited

G.S.H.Q. Blythe Valley Park, 3 Central
Boulevard, Solihull, B90 8AB
United Kingdom

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (24, 26 and 40)
(540) GYMSHARK

(310) 31333/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(730) BA&SH

67 avenue Raymond Poincare, 75116 Paris, 
France

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bomes

(511) (25)
(540) BA&SH (Stylized) (and logo)

ba&sh
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(310) 31334/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(330) 194606557 10/12/2019 FR
(730) GUY HOQUET L’lMMOBILIER

39 avenue Paul Vaillant Couturier
94250 Gentilly, France

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches A 'enue, Quatre Bomes

(511) (35, 36 and 41)
(540) GUY HOQUET

(310) 31335/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(730) The Bank of N.T. Butterfield &

Son Limited
65 Front Street, Hamilton, Bermuda

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autmches Avenue, Quatre Bomes

(511) (35)
(540) BUTTERFIELD & WYVERN Device

Stacked 2019

BUTTERFIELD

(310) 31336/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(730) The Bank of N.T. Butterfield & Son Limited

65 Front Street, Hamilton, Bermuda
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bomes
(511) (35)
(540) BUTTERFIELD & WYVERN Device 

Vertical 2 color 2019

BUTTERFIELD

(310) 31337/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(730) The Bank of N.T. Butterfield &

Son Limited
65 Front Street, Hamilton, Bermuda

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bomes

(511) (35)
(540) WYVERN DEVICE 2019

(310) 31338/2020 (320) 02/06/2020
(730) The Bank of N.T. Butterfield &

Son Limited
65 Front Street, Hamilton, Bermuda

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bomes

(511) (35)
(540) BUTTERFIELD

(310) 31417/2020 (320) 11/06/2020
(330) 018165722 13/12/2019 EU
(730) Paulaner Brauerei Gruppe GmbH & 

Co. KGaA Ohlmüllerstr. 42, 81541, 
Munich, Germany

(740) Vashish Bhugoo, Attomey-at-Law
8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B, Georges 
Guibert Street, Port Louis

(511) (32 and 43)
(540) Paulaner München (word and device)
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(310) 31677/2020 (320) 20/07/2020
(730) Mauritian Commodities & Allied Services

Co Ltd
No. 5, President John Kennedy Street
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius

(740) Ms. Aruna Radhakeesoon,
Attomey-at-Law
Rogers Legal, 5th Floor, Rogers House, 
No. 5, President John Kennedy Street 
Port Louis

(511) (1,4, 39 and 40)
(540) MAURITIAN COMMODITIE

& APPLIED SOLUTIONS

(310) 31686/2020 (320) 20/07/2020
(730) Brink's Network, Incorporated

1801 Bayberry Court, Richmond, Virginia 
23226, U.S.A.

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis 

(511) (6 and 36) 
(54°) BRINK’S COMPLETE

(310) 31678/2020 (320) 20/07/2020
(730) Mr Mohammad Dilanee PEEROO

25 Corderie Street, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (3)
(540) Gia- Masala bathi (logo)

(310) 31680/2020 (320) 20/07/2020
(730) LE CRACK LTEE

Wong Ching Bldg, Place Margeot,
Rose-Hill ,1712-04, Republic of Mauritius

(740) Yusuf Nazroo, IP Agent
No. 12, Frère Félix De Valois Street 
Port-Louis

(511) (35)
(540) Crafty Jo (special form) & Logo

(310) 31676/2020 (320) 20/07/2020
(730) Mauritian Commodities & Allied 

Services Co Ltd
No. 5, President John Kennedy Street, 
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius

(740) Ms. Aruna Radhakeesoon 
Attomey-at-Law, Rogers Legal 
5th Floor, Rogers House, No. 5 
President John Kennedy Street 
Port Louis

(511) (1,4, 39 and 40)
(540) MCAS, Mauritian Commodities & 

Applied Solutions (LOGO) 

AM CAS

(310) 31687/2020 (320) 20/07/2020
(730) H. Vaulbert de Chantilly Ltd (HVC LTD) 

Bonair Industrial Zone, Bonair Road, 
Triolet, Republic of Mauritius

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) (32 and 35)
(540) FRUITOPIE and Logo

«« 
FRUITOPIE
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(310) 31688/2020 (320) 20/07/2020
(730) AUMARY SWASTEE

Vieux Grand Port,
Republic of Mauritius

(740) AUMARY SWASTEE
Vieux Grand Port

(511) (29 and 31)
(540) Xtrabon - SMARR (and logo)

Xtrabon)ogry

(310) 31693/2020 (320) 21/07/2020
(730) Hurrucknandun Panray BUSAWON 

Cemetery Road, Circonstance, St-Pierre, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Prakash Gungabissoon, Attorney at Law 
4th Floor, B.V.R House, Lislet Geoffrey 
Street, Port Louis

(511) (35 and 41)
(540) VHP ACADEMY (and logo)

VHP ACADEMY

(310) 31697/2020 (320) 22/07/2020
(730) Gonandan-Caremben Goindamah

Domaine La Colombe, Flacq
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Gonandan-Caremben Goindamah
Domaine La Colombe, Flacq

(511) (30 and 35)
(540) Puli (and logo)

PUU

(310) 31754/2020 (320) 29/07/2020
(730) Great Wall Motor Company Limited 

2266 Chaoyang South Street, Baoding, 
Hebei 071000
People’s Republic of China

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19, Church Street, 
Port Louis

(511) (35)
(540) GWM logo

(310) 31755/2020 (320) 29/07/2020
(730) Great Wall Motor Company Limited

2266 Chaoyang South Street, Baoding, 
Hebei 071000,
People’s Republic of China

(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent
ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19, Church Street, 
Port Louis

(511) (12, 35 and 37)
(540) GWM (and logo)

GWM

(310) 31764/2020 (320) 30/07/2020
(730) SIP & CO LTD

Autoroute St Jean, Phoenix, Republic of 
Mauritius

(740) R.C. Payen, Trademark Agent
IBL LTD, Ground Floor, IBL House
Caudan Waterfront, Port Louis

(511) (3 and 5)
(540) BIOTOP Stylized (and logo)
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(310) 31817/2020 (320) 07/08/2020
(730) Sharma Limited

Batterie D'artois, Le Goulet
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Sharma Limited
Batterie D'artois, Le Goulet

(511) (3, 16,24,25,39,41,43 and 44)
(540) OCEAN'S CREEK BEACH HOTEL - A 

SHANTI COLLECTION (and logo)

Oceans Creek

(310) 31823/2020 (320) 10/08/2020
(730) Sylvain Frederic VAYTHILINGON

General Hall, Les Casernes, Curepipe, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Sylvain Frederic VAYTHILINGON
General Hall, Les Casernes, Curepipe

(511) (3 and 35)
(540) Lys (le choix de la pureté) (and logo)

J*""' \ x,
(* /. . / .Mi

/jr choix de la pureté

(310) 31827/2020 (320) 10/08/2020
(730) Lutchmee Gujadur-Chintalloo

Seven Hill Bldg,Verdun
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (29 and 35)
(540) LAKAZ PÉSSÈRE (and logo)

LAKAZ 
PÉSSÈRE

(310) 31828/2020 (320) 10/08/2020
(730) Lutchmee Gujadur-Chintalloo

Seven Hill Bldg,Verdun
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (25 and 41)

<540> FAST FORWARD

(310) 31831/2020 (320) 11/08/2020
(730) NADAL-CADER Ingrid Marie-Michèle

28, Strafford Mayor, Plaisance
Rose-Hill, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (35 and 38)
(540) MAJESTY - Street charism (and logo)

MAJESTY
itreet

(310) 31832/2020 (320) 11/08/2020
(730) AEROGEL+LTD

47, Dr Hassen Sakir Street, Port-Louis,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (land 40)
(540) Aerowder (and logo)

Aerowder
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(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

31834/2020 (320) 11/08/2020
AEROGEL+LTD
47, Dr Hassen Sakir Street, Port-Louis,
Republic of Mauritius
(2 and 40)
Aerogarde (redefining insulation) (and 
logo)

(310) 31835/2020 (320) 11/08/2020
(730) Mohammad Irfaan MOOSBALLY

35 Rue Hibiscus, Montreal II, Coromandel, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (24 and 25)
(540) CROATE (and logo)

CD
CROATE

(310) 31836/2020 (320) 11/08/2020
(730) Mohammad Irfaan MOOSBALLY

35 Rue Hibiscus, Montreal II,
Coromandel, Republic of Mauritius

(511) (11 and 25)
(540) INNATO (and logo)

(310) 31837/2020 (320) 11/08/2020
(730) BANK ONE LIMITED

16, Sir William Newton Street, Port Louis, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (16, 35 and 41)
(540) BOLD - BANK ONE LEADERSHIP 

DISCUSSIONS (and logo)

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

31838/2020 (320) 11/08/2020
Armoogum Saroja
82, Racket Road, Grand Baie Bazaar,
Republic of Mauritius
(14and^35)
ELEGANCIA Gems & Sterling (and 
logo)

(310) 31839/2020 (320) 11/08/2020
(730) Kartiyoben VENETHEETHAN

Shivala Road, L'Agrement, St-Pierre,
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (25 and 35)
(540) SEE EVER (LOGO)

IRVIRH
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(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

31840/2020 (320) 11/08/2020
ROLF Lubricants GmbH
Gebäude 9115,Chempark Leverkusen,
Friedrich-Ebert-Straße 325, 51373,
Leverkusen , Germany
Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent of
ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port-Louis
(4)
ROLF LOGO

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

31842/2020 (320) 12/08/2020
MARCI RENDEZVÉNY LTD
Dahlia Avenue, Belle-Mare
Republic of Mauritius
(35 and 41)
MARCI RENDEZVÉNY (and logo)

MARCI 
RENDEZVÉNY

(310) 31846/2020 (320) 12/08/2020
(730) NUCO ENGINEERING LTD

Soreze, Pailles, Republic of Mauritius
(511) (7 and 12)
(540) NTN-SNR (and logo)

NTN

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

31850/2020 (320)
Zubair Sulaiman Mir 
Guibies Branch Rd, Pailles 
Port Louis
Republic of Mauritius
(30)
Topzz Pizza and Logo

12/08/2020

(310) 31852/2020 (320) 12/08/2020
(730) Elodie MAVA-LOUISE

C3 Cité St Joseph, Montagne-Blanche, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (29 and 30)
(540) ELOVE (and logo)

ilEloveJ

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

31854/2020 (320) 13/08/2020
Atria Africa
Suite 302, NG Tower, Cybercity, Ebene,
Republic of Mauritius
(36)
ATRIA (and logo)
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(310) 31855/2020 (320) 13/08/2020
(730) KM Orizzon Ltd

2nd Floor, Quartier General, Old 
Post Office Road, Industrial Zone, 
St. Pierre, Republic of Mauritius

(740) Me. Gerard H de Froberville 
ENSafrica (Mauritius)
19 Church Street, Port Louis

(511) (9, 16,25, 35 and 42)
(540) eazzy SIMPLIFY FOR ALL (and 

logo)

eazzy

(310)
(730)

(740)

(5U)
(540)

31856/2020 (320) 13/08/2020
Yousuf Ali AZAREE
6C Raoul Le Jeune, Beau-Bassin
Republic of Mauritius
MC Law Office
5th Floor, Sterling House, Port Louis
(16)
AY & Logo

(310) 31858/2020 (320) 14/08/2020 (310)
(730) Varsha Kunthasami (730)

Royal Road, Argy, Centre de Flacq, 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (29 and 39)
(540) TAP LALANG (and logo) (740)

(511)
(540)

31859/2020 (320) 14/08/2020
BAL Properties Ltd.
c/o ENSafrica Fiduciary Ltd
19 Church St., Port-Louis
Republic of Mauritius
Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 
(25 and 41)
BAL logo (NBA PROPERTIES)(2019)

(310) 31871/202 (320) 14/08/2020
0

(730) Pernod Ricard
5, cours Paul Ricard, 75008 Paris 
France

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port 
Louis

(511) (33 and 35)
(540) PERNOD RICARD

(310) 31862/2020 (320) 14/08/2020
(730) CHUE WING & CO LTD (ABC FOODS) 

Trianon Avenue, Trianon, Quatre Bornes, 
Republic of Mauritius

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(511) (29 and 30)
(540) PRIMO
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(310)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

31860/2020 (320) 14/08/2020
BAL Properties Ltd.
c/o ENSafrica Fiduciary Ltd, 19 
Church St., Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius
Kashish International Limited (IP 
Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Borne 
(25 and 41)
Africa device (BAL) (NBA 
PROPERTIES) (2019) (and logo)

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

31865/2020 (320)
SOAMSHRA LTD
Coastal Road, Mont Choisy 
Republic of Mauritius 
(30)
TASTY PIZZA (and logo)

14/08/2020

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

31867/2020 (320) 14/08/2020
Neerooa Begum Saheen
Shah -E- Jabeen, La Caverne No 2, 
Vacoas, Republic of Mauritius 
(25 and 35)
ThreadLoft (and logo)

(310)
(730)

(511)
(540)

31868/2020 (320) 14/08/2020
Digital Kites Ltd
21, Dr Ernest Harel Street, Floreal
Republic of Mauritius
(35 and 41)
ZWE-FUN (and logo)

7)

(310) 31869/20 (320) 14/08/2020
20

(730) Mauritius Comestics Ltd 
Bonne Terre, Vacoas 
Republic of Mauritius

(511) (3)
(540) izee (and logo)

izee

(310) 31872/2020 (320) 14/08/2020
(730) Pernod Ricard

5, cours Paul Ricard, 75008 Paris, France 
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis
(511) (33 and 35)
(540) BLUE SUN Device

Opposition, if any, to be lodged with the Controller, The Industrial Property Office, Ministry of Foreign
Affairs, Regional Integration and International Trade (International Trade Division), 11th Floor, Sterling 
House, Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port-Louis, Republic of Mauritius by way of notice and within the delay 
prescribed by law (2 months) in accordance with the Patents, Industrial Designs and Trademarks Act 2002.

Date: 03 September 2020 Ag. Controller 
Industrial Property Office
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General Notice No. 1260 of2020

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 

(Regulation 53)

Notice is hereby given that the following marks have been registered under Section 39 of 
the Patents, Industrial Designs ¿¿Trademarks Act 2002:-

(111) 28046/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) N.V. Organon
(730) Kloosterstraat 6, 5349AB Oss, 

The Netherlands
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8 Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis
(510) Int Class 5, 9, 10, 42 and 44
(540) DOTS AND DASHES Device in Colour

(111) 28047/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) N.V. Organon
(730) Kloosterstraat 6, 5349AB Oss, 

The Netherlands
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8 Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis
(510) Int Class 5, 9,10, 42 and 44
(540) TREE AND DOTS Device in Colour

(111) 28048/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) N.V. Organon
(730) Kloosterstraat 6, 5349AB Oss, 

The, Netherlands
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 5, 9, 10, 42 and 44
(540) FLOWER AND DOTS Device in Colour

(111) 28049/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) DIS-CHEM PHARMACIES LIMITED
(730) 23 Stag Road, Glen Austin, Allendale, 

Gauteng, South Africa
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent

ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, Port- 
Louis

(510) Int Class 35
(540) Dis-Chem PHARMACIES Logo

Dis-Chem
PHARMACIES
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(111) 28050/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) MAKER'S MARK DISTILLERY, INC.
(730) 100 Mallard Creek Road, Suite 151, Louisville, 

Kentucky 40207, U.S.A.
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent

ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, Port- 
Louis

(510) Int Class 33
(540) MAKER'S MARK

(111) 28051/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) MAKER'S MARK DISTILLERY, INC.
(730) 100 Mallard Creek Road, Suite 151, Louisville, 

Kentucky 40207, U.S.A.
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent

ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, Port- 
Louis

(510) Int Class 33
(540) MAKER'S

(111) 28052/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Intercontinental Great Brands LLC
(730) 100 Deforest Avenue, East Hanover, New 

Jersey, 07936, U.S.A.
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent

ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19 Church Street, Port- 
Louis

(510) Int Class 5 and 30
(540) BREATHE FOR IT [SLOGAN]

(111) 28053/2020 (320) 03/03/2020
(330) VA2019 02383 22/10/2019 DK
(730) H. Lundbeck A/S

Ottiliavej 9, 2500 Valby, Denmark 
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

8 Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis 
(511) Int Class 5

<540) ZYEPTI
(111) 28054/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Safety First Développement
(730) 1 Rue du Limousin - Pa des Bethunes, F-95310

Saint Ouen L'aumône, France
(740) Pravin Barthia, Trademark Agent

ENSafrica (Mauritius), 19, Church Street, Port 
Louis

(510) Int Class 1, 9, 36, 37 and 45
(540) SAFETY FIRST and Logo___________

SAFETY 
FIRST

(111) 28055/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Mohammad Faizal Rawat
(730) 5 BK Muncipality Street, Camp Yoloff, 

Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius
(510) Int Class 25
(540) The Gentleman (and logo)

THE GENTLEMAN

(111) 28056/2020 (320) 06/03/2020
(330) UK00003457136 10/01/2020 UK 
(730) TdeltaS Limited

30 Upper High Street, THAME,
Oxfordshire, OX9 3EZ, United Kingdom 

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bomes 

(511) Int Class 5
(540) T Delta S & Device

(111) 28057/2020 (320) 06/03/2020
(330) UK00003457129 10/01/2020 UK 
(730) TdeltaS Limited

30 Upper High Street, THAME,
Oxfordshire, OX9 3EZ, United Kingdom 

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 
16,Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes, 
Mauritius

(511) Int Class 5
(540) Delta G Device
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(111) 28058/2020 (320) 06/03/2020
(330) UK00003457134 10/01/2020 UK
(730) TdeltaS Limited

30 Upper High Street, THAME,
Oxfordshire, 0X9 3EZ, United Kingdom

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes, 
Mauritius

(511) Int Class 5
(540) Delta H & Device

(111) 28059/2020 (320) 06/03/2020
(330) UK00003428828 16/09/2019 UK
(730) TdeltaS Limited

30 Upper High Street, THAME, Oxfordshire, 
OX9 3EZ, United Kingdom

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes, 
Mauritius

(511) 5 Int Class
(540) Delta Gold & Device

AGold
(111) 28060/2020 (320) 13/03/2020
(330) 40-2019-0182770 26/11/2019 KP
(730) Kia Motors Corporation

12, Heolleung-ro, Seocho-gu, Seoul,
Rep.of Korea

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney
No 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) Int Class 12
(540) KIA Logo (new)

KIXI

(111) 28061/2020 (320) 13/03/2020
(330) 40-2019-0182798 26/11/2019 KP
(730) Kia Motors Corporation

12, Heolleung-ro, Seocho-gu, Seoul,
Rep.of Korea

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney
No 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) Int Class 35
(540) KIA Logo (new)

KLSl
(111) 28062/2020 (320) 13/03/2020
(330) 40-2019-0182800 26/11/2019 KP
(730) Kia Motors Corporation

12, Heolleung-ro, Seocho-gu, Seoul,
Rep.of Korea

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney
No 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(511) Int Class 37
(540) KIA Logo (new)

(111) 28063/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) ALIBABA GROUP HOLDING LIMITED
(730) Fourth Floor, One Capital Place,P.O. Box 847, 

George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands
(740) Me. Vashish Bhugoo, Attorney-at-Law 

8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B, Georges 
Guibert Street, Port Louis

(510) Int Class 9, 35 and 42

<540> HOLOGRES



5 September 2020 3259

PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

(111) 28064/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Absa Bank (Mauritius) Limited
(730) Sir William Newton Street, Port Louis, 1116-07 

Republic of Mauritius
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis
(510) Int Class 9, 35 and 36
(540) Young Pro

(111) 28065/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) TOTO LTD.
(730) 1-1, Nakashima 2-Chome, Kokurakita-Ku, 

Kitakyushu-Shi, Fukuoka-Ken, Japan
(740) Mr Andre Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis
(510) Int Class 11
(540) WASHLET

(111) 28066/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) GLANBIA IRELAND DAC
(730) Glanbia House, Kilkenny, R95E866, Ireland
(740) Kashish International Limited, (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 29

(540’ AVONMORE

(111) 28067/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) TOTAL SA
(730) 2 place Jean Millier, La Défense 6, 92400 

Courbevoie, France
(740) Kashish International Limited

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 1
(540) COOLTECH

(111) 28068/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Carl Freudenberg KG
(730) Hoehnerweg 2-4, 69469 Weinheim, Germany
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bornes
(510) Int Class 25 and 26
(540) vilene

(111) 28069/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) INCOBRANDS (PROPRIETARY) LIMITED
(730) 11-13 St Andrews Road, Parktown, 

Johannesburg, 2193, Gauteng, Republic of 
South Africa

(740) Kashish International Limited, IP Agent
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bornes

(510) Int Class 3
(54°) WONDERSET

(111) 28070/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Pinotage Trustées Sàrl
(730) 14 Rue du Rhône, 1204 Geneva, Switzerland
(740) Kashish International Limited

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 33

(540) VAL DE VIE

(111) 28071/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) THE LION MATCH COMPANY (PROPRIETARY) 

LIMITED
(730) 20 Mahatma Gandhi Road, Point, Durban,

4001, Kwa-Zulu Natal, South Africa
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 4 and 5
(540) CLEARLITE (2Droplet design)
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(111) 28072/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) THE LION MATCH COMPANY (PROPRIETARY) 

LIMITED
(730) 20 Mahatma Gandhi Road, Point, Durban,

4001, Kwa-Zulu Natal, South Africa
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 4
(540) STRIKERS

(111) 28073/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) THE LION MATCH COMPANY (PROPRIETARY) 

LIMITED
(730) 20 Mahatma Gandhi Road, Point, Durban,

4001, Kwa-Zulu Natal, South Africa
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 3 and 8
(540) DUEL

(111) 28074/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) THE LION MATCH COMPANY (PROPRIETARY) 

LIMITED
(730) 20 Mahatma Gandhi Road, Point, Durban,

4001, Kwa-Zulu Natal, South Africa
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 4
(540) lighthouse

(111) 28075/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) THE LION MATCH COMPANY (PROPRIETARY) 

LIMITED
(730) 20 Mahatma Gandhi Road, Point, Durban,

4001, Kwa-Zulu Natal, South Africa
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 4
(540) LIGHTHOUSE device

H il

' • cr- » -

(111) 28076/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) THE LION MATCH COMPANY (PROPRIETARY) 

LIMITED
(730) 20 Mahatma Gandhi Road, Point, Durban,

4001, Kwa-Zulu Natal, South Africa
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 4
(540) pRICE'S

(111) 28077/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Gelmar Proprietary Limited
(730) 20 Rustic Close, Briardene Industrial Park, 

Durban, KwaZulu-Natal, South Africa
(740) KASHISH International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 35
(54°) GELMAR

(111) 28078/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) N.V. Organon
(730) Kloosterstraat 6, 5349AB Oss 

The Netherlands
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 5,10 and 44
(540) altrista

(111) 28079/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) N.V. Organon
(730) Kloosterstraat 6, 5349AB Oss, TheNetherlands
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 5, 9,10, 42 and 44
(54°) ORGANON
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(111) 28080/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) N.V. Organon
(730) Kloosterstraat 6, 5349AB Oss, 

The Netherlands
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8 Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis
(510) Int Class 5, 9,10, 42 and 44
(540) VREE

(111) 28081/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) ENGEN PETROLEUM LIMITED
(730) 8th Floor, Engen Court, Thibault Square, Cape

Town, 8001, Western Cape, South Africa
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 4, 30 and 35
(540) QUICKEES

(111) 28082/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) ENGEN PETROLEUM LIMITED
(730) 8th Floor, Engen Court, Thibault Square 

Cape Town, 8001 Western Cape, 
Republic of South Africa

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 
16,Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(510) Int Class 4, 30 and 35
(540) QUICKEES (Fig.) (and logo)

(111) 28083/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) ENGEN PETROLEUM LIMITED
(730) 8th Floor, Engen Court, Thibault Square 

Cape Town, 8001 Western Cape, 
Republic of South Africa

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 
16,Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes

(510) Int Class 4, 30 and 35
(540) FLAVORED FOR FAST TIMES

(111) 28084/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) MERCK KGaA
(730) Frankfurter Strasse 250, 64293 DARMSTADT, 

Germany
(740) R.C. Payen, Trademark Agent, IBL Ltd 

Trademarks Dept., Ground Floor, IBL House, 
Caudan, Port Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) PEDLUMI

(111) 28085/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) MERCK KGaA
(730) Frankfurter Strasse 250, 64293 DARMSTADT, 

Germany
(740) R.C Payen, Trademark Agent, IBL Ltd

Ground Floor, IBL House, Caudan, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 5
(540) AVELUMAB Logo

(111) 28086/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) NOVO NORDISK A/S
(730) Novo Allé, 2880 Bagsvaerd, Denmark
(740) Kashish International Limited, IP Agent

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bornes
(510) Int Class 5
(54°) Saxenda

(111) 28087/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) THE LION MATCH COMPANY (PROPRIETARY) 

LIMITED
(730) 20 Mahatma Gandhi Road, Point, Durban,

4001, Kwa-Zulu Natal, South Africa
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 4

(540) PRICE'S CANDLES
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(ill)
(730)

(730)

(740)

(510)
(540)

28088/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
THE LION MATCH COMPANY (PROPRIETARY) 
LIMITED
20 Mahatma Gandhi Road, Point, Durban, 
4001, Kwa-Zulu Natal, South Africa 
Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes 
Int Class 4
PRICE'S CANDLES logo (and logo)

(111) 28089/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) THE LION MATCH COMPANY (PROPRIETARY) 

LIMITED
(730) 20 Mahatma Gandhi Road, Point, Durban,

4001, Kwa-Zulu Natal, South Africa
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 3 and 8

15401 LOVING TOUCH

(111) 28090/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) THE LION MATCH COMPANY (PROPRIETARY) 

LIMITED
(730) 20 Mahatma Gandhi Road, Point, Durban,

4001, Kwa-Zulu Natal, South Africa
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 4 and 5
(540) CLEARLITE

(111)
(730)
(730)

(510)
(540)

28091/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
LE PRAJNA ILE (MAURICE) LTD
C/o Appt Al, Le Palmier, Flic en Flac, Republic 
of Mauritius
Int Class 41 and 45
LE PRAJNA (and logo)

(111)
(730)
(730)

(740)

(510)
(540)

28092/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
Quimicas Oro, S.A.
CV35 Valencia-Ademuz, Km. 13,1 izq. / 46184, 
San Antonio De Benagéber, Valencia, Spain 
André Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
Int Class 3 and 5
ORO & Device

(111)
(730)
(730)

(510)
(540)

28093/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
TECTONIC LTD
48 A/B, Mère Barthélémy St, Port-Louis,
Republic of Mauritius
Int Class 18 and 25
CHAMAREL LEATHERCRAFT (and logo)

CHAMAREL
LEATHERCRAFT
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(111) 28094/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Tipco Foods Public Company Limited
(730) 118/1 Rama 6 Road, Phayathai, Phayathai, 

Bangkok 10400, Thailand
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)

16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre Bornes
(510) Int Class 32
(540) Tipco (Logo)

TipdO

(111) 28095/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) G.T. PAPER CO., LTD. PUTIAN FUJIAN
(730) HAIXING ST., JIANGKOU TOWN, PUTIAN, 

FUJIAN 351115 CHINA, PEOPLES REPUBLIC OF 
CHINA

(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent)
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bornes

(510) Int Class 5
(540) Softlove (Stylized) (and logo)

(111) 28096/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) C. Hedenkamp GmbH & Co. KG
(730) Schierbusch 1, 33161 Hövelhof, Germany
(740) Mary Anne Philips, Attorney-at-Law 

Etude Philips International Ltd, Suite 310, 
St. James Court, St. Denis Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 5
(540) SUNLIFE & logo

SUNLIFE

(111) 28097/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Qatar Airways Group (Q.C.S.C)
(730) Qatar AirwaysTower, Airport Road P.O Box 

22550, Doha, Qatar
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 16 and 39
(540) QATAR AIRWAYS Logo and Arabian Oryx

Head Device with Arabic Script Black and 
white

(111) 28098/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) SOLOCAL GROUP
(730) 204 Rond-Point du Pont de Sèvres, 92100 

Boulogne Billancourt, France
(740) Yusuf Nazroo,Trademark Agent

12, Frere Felix De Valois Street, Port Louis
(510) Int Class 35, 36, 38, 41, 42 and 45
(540) SOLOCAL

(111) 28100/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Durban University of Technology
(730) 79 Steve Biko Road (formerly Mansfield Road), 

Berea, Durban, 4000, South Africa
(740) Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 

Kashish International Limited ,16,Autruches 
Avenue, Quatre Bornes, Mauritius

(510) Int Class 9 and 41
(540) EDUCATION GROWING ONLINE

(111) 28099/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Abbott Rapid Diagnostics International 

Unlimited Company
(730) Office 32, Verdala Business Center Level 2, LM 

Complex, Brewery Street, Zone 3, Central 
Business District, Birkirkara CBD 3040, Malta

(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis

(510) Int Class 1 and 5
(540) BIOLINE
(111) 28101/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Acti-Chem SA (Proprietary) Limited
(730) Surrey Park, Block C, 6 Barham Road, 

Westville, Durban, South Africa
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No.8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis
(510) Int Class 1, 2 and 5
(540) acticide
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(Hl)
(330)
(730)
(730)

(740)

(510)
(540)

28102/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
302020000004603 21/01/2020 IT 
ALPITOURS.P.A.
10126 TORINO, ITALY VIA ERNESTO LUGARO
15, Italy
Kashish International Limited, IP Agent
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bornes 
Int Class 16, 39, 41 and 43
ALPIBLU (fig)

olpiblu
(111)
(730)
(730)

(740)

(510)
(540)

28104/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
GIRNAR FOOD & BEVERAGES PVT. LTD 
401. Centre Point, Dr. B. Ambedkar Marg, 
Parel, Mumbai-400012, Maharashtra, India 
Kashish International Limited (IP Agent) 
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bornes 
Int Class 30
GIRNAR

(HI)
(730)
(730)

(151) 28/08/2020

(510)
(540)

28106/2020
Sekret Limited
C/o BTG Management Services (Mauritius) 
Limited , 1st Floor, Nautica Commercial 
Building, Block B, Royal Road, Black River, 
Republic of Mauritius
Int Class 5
Sekret

Sekret

(310)
(330)
(730)

(740)

(511)
(540)

(111)
(730)
(730)

(510)
(540)

(111)
(330)
(730)
(730)
(740)

(510)
(540)

28103/2020 (320) 11/02/2020
738123 09/09/2019 CH
Pharmalys Invest Holding AG
Gartenstrasse 4, 6300 Zug, Switzerland 
Kashish International Limited, IP Agent 
16, Autruches Avenue, Quatre-Bornes 
Int Class 5

NUTRILIFE

28105/2020
DUSS KGN LTD
Clairfonds No.l, Phoenix, 
Republic of Mauritius 
Int Class 21
TWINS DOLPHIN and Logo

(151) 28/08/2020

28107/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
30 2019 019 123.0 16/08/2019 DE
Volkswagen Aktiengesellschaft
Berliner Ring 2, 38440 Wolfsburg, Germany
André Robert, Senior Attorney
No. 8 Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
Int Class 9,12, 28, 35 and 37
VW in Circle Device (2019)
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(111) 28108/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Wellness Warehouse (Pty) Ltd
(730) 50 Kloof Street, Cape Town, Western Cape, 

8001, South Africa
(740) Me. Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney-at-Law 

8th Floor, Astor Court, Block B, Georges 
Guibert Street, Port-Louis

(510) Int Class 3, 5, 29, 30, 31, 32 and 35

(54°) WELLNESS WAREHOUSE

(111) 28109/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) N.V. Organon
(730) Kloosterstraat 6, 5349 AB Oss, The

Netherlands, Netherlands
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 5, 9,10, 42 and 44
(540) DOTS AND DASHES Device

(111) 28110/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) N.V. Organon
(730) Kloosterstraat 6, 5349 AB Oss, The

Netherlands, Netherlands
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 5, 9,10,42 and 44
(540) TREE AND DOTS Device

(111) 28111/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) N.V. Organon
(730) Kloosterstraat 6, 5349 AB Oss, The 

Netherlands, Netherlands
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 5, 9,10,42 and 44
(540) FLOWER AND DOTS Device

(111) 28112/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Emirates Fire Fighting Equipment Factory L.L.C
(730) Industrial Area 13, P.O. Box 22436, Sharjah, 

United.Arab Emirates
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No. 8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 9
(540) FIREX Logo with Flame and Stars Device (in 

Black & White

(111) 28113/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Acino Pharma AG
(730) Birsweg 2, 4253 Liesberg, Switzerland
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No.8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 5
(54°) Cerbelzen

FIREX
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(111) 28114/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Acino Pharma AG
(730) Birsweg 2, 4253 Liesberg, Switzerland
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No.8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 5
I540) Enklufex

(111) 28115/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) Acino Pharma AG
(730) Birsweg 2,4253 Liesberg, Switzerland
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No.8, Georges Guibert Street, Port-Louis
(510) Int Class 5
(540) Vyrsolis

(111) 28116/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) DuPont Nutrition Biosciences ApS
(730) Langebrogade 1, DK-1411 Copenhagen, 

Denmark
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No.8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis
(510) Int Class 1 and 5

<54°) NCFM

(111) 28117/2020 (151) 28/08/2020
(730) DuPont Nutrition Biosciences ApS
(730) Langebrogade 1, DK-1411 Copenhagen, 

Denmark
(740) André Robert, Senior Attorney

No.8, Georges Guibert Street, Port Louis
(510) Int Class 1 and 5
(54°) HOWARU

(111) 28045/2020 (151) 13/08/2020
(740) Global Link Overseas Ltd

Royal Road, Curepipe
(510) Int Class 16 and 21
(540) PAPPCO-GREENWARE (and logo)

pappcct
------- greenware--------

Date: 02 September, 2020
Ag Controller 

Industrial Property Office
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General Notice No. 1261 of2020

THE PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGN & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002
(Regulation 40)

Notice is hereby given that the following industrial design has been registered 
under Section 31 of the Patents, Industrial Designs & Trademarks Act 2002:

Description of Design: LES BIJOUX DE CLEMENTINE
Number & Date of Registration: 00245/2020 of 19 February, 2020
Name & Address of the registered owner: MARIE AGNES CATHERINE LALOUETTE
DALAIS of 4B Centaur II, Lallah Lane, Floreal, Republic of Mauritius
Name & Address of Creator: MARIE AGNES CATHERINE LALOUETTE DALAIS of 4B
Centaur II, Lallah Lane, Floreal, Republic of Mauritius
Filing Date: 19 February, 2020
Products: Jewellery
Class: 11
Representation of Designs:

BRACELET HILDA

PENDENTIF HILDEGARDE fr°nt t0P
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BRACELET THERESE ET CHAINE EMILIE

BRACELET AUGUSTINE

Date: 03 September, 2020
The Controller 

Industrial Property Office
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General Notice No. 1262 of2020

THE PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGN & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002
(Regulation 40)

Notice is hereby given that the following industrial design has been registered 
under Section 31 of the Patents, Industrial Designs & Trademarks Act 2002:

Description of Design: ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS
Number & Date of Registration: 00244/2020 of 19 February, 2020
Name & Address of the registered owner: HANS YATINDRANATH DWARKA of 8,
Xavier Nalletamby Rd., Phoenix, Republic of Mauritius
Name & Address of Creator: HANS YATINDRANATH DWARKA of 8, Xavier Nalletamby
Rd., Phoenix, Republic of Mauritius
Filing Date: 19 February, 2020
Products: Architects Plans
Class: 19-08
Representation of Designs:
Design 1
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PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued

GATE POST - SCHEDULE OF OPENINGS
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TRANSFORMER ROOM - SCHEDULE OF OPENINGS

REFUSE BIN - SCHEDULE OF OPENING
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PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued
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PATENTS, INDUSTRIAL DESIGNS & TRADEMARKS ACT 2002 — continued
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REFUSE BIN - SCHEDULE OF OPENING REFUSE BIN - SCHEDULE OF OPENING

Date: 03 September, 2020
The Controller

Industrial Property Office



5 September 2020 3277

General Notice No. 1263 of2020

The Patents, Industrial Designs and Trademarks Act 2002 and Regulations 2004

(Section 41, Regulation 54)

Notice is hereby given that the registration of the under-mentioned trademarks has expired 
on the date indicated therein. These marks may be renewed within a period of 3 months 
from the date of expiry, subject to the payment of a surcharge fee of Rs. 1050, failing 
which the marks will be removed from the Register.

TRADEMARK REGISTERED OWNER FILING 
DATE

REG.
NO.

DATE OF 
EXPIRY

CHAPPIE MARS INCORPORATED [US] 08/08/1975 6130 08/08/2020
OPAL WM WRIGLEY JR COMPANY [US] 11/08/1975 6135 11/08/2020
MARS MARS INCORPORATED [US] 11/08/1975 6136 11/08/2020
SPANGLES WM WRIGLEY JR COMPANY [US] 11/08/1975 6138 11/08/2020
GOGO GOH JOO HIN PTE LTD [SG] 09/08/1989 10110 09/08/2020

AMSUA AMSUA TRADING COMPANY 
LIMITED [HK] 10/08/1989 10115 10/08/2020

VOGUE & FLOWER 
SPRIG

AMERICAN CIGARETTE
COMPANY (OVERSEAS)
LIMITED [CH]

11/08/1989 10116 11/08/2020

TOYOTA TOYOTA JIDOSHA KABUSHIKI 
KAISHA [JP] 16/08/1989 10117 16/08/2020

WESCOBEE CAPILANO HONEY LIMITED [AU] 21/08/1989 10122 21/08/2020
PROMISE DABUR INDIA LTD [IN] 21/08/1989 10123 21/08/2020

LENOR THE PROCTER & GAMBLE 
COMPANY [US] 22/08/1989 10126 22/08/2020

PERT HENKEL AG & CO. KGAA [DE] 22/08/1989 10127 22/08/2020

C Logo CHONG & SONS (Rose Hill) LTD 
[MU] 30/08/1989 10141 30/08/2020

TRANSPULMIN MEDA PHARMA GMBH & CO. 
KG [DE] 31/08/1989 10145 31/08/2020

SCHERING- 
PLOUGH SCHERING CORPORATION [US] 11/08/1989 10216 11/08/2020

TIME-LESS ANTI-AGEING FOUNDATION 
(PROPRIETARY) LIMITED [ZA] 02/08/2010 10302 02/08/2020

GIVES YOU WINGS RED BULL GMBH [AT] 02/08/2010 10606 02/08/2020
VITAL VITAL HEALTH LTD [MU] 03/08/2010 10303 03/08/2020
COMPETITION 
COMMISSION OF 
MAURITIUS

COMPETITION COMMISSION OF 
MAURITIUS [MU] 04/08/2010 10645 04/08/2020

DOUBLE
DISTILLED RUM 
CHAMAREL

L'EXIL LIMITÉE [MU] 04/08/2010 10111 04/08/2020

CRYSTAL RUM 
CHAMAREL L'EXIL LIMITÉE [MU] 04/08/2010 10112 04/08/2020

GOLD RUM 
CHAMAREL L'EXIL LIMITÉE [MU] 04/08/2010 10113 04/08/2020

KGB MUSIC TOUR GRAYS INC. LTD [MU] 04/08/2010 10069 04/08/2020
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ARAB CITY GOLDEN CORPORATE 
HERITAGE SDN BHD [MY] 04/08/2010 10134 04/08/2020

MELTEM LUXURY 
HOUSE MAURITIUS 
ISLAND

MELTEM LTEE [MU] 04/08/2010 10946 04/08/2020

BLUEGLUE MARIE-LAURE BECQUELIN [ID] 04/08/2010 10354 04/08/2020

TASTE OF ASIA TASTE OF ASIA COMPANY LTD 
[MU] 05/08/2010 10114 05/08/2020

SEA BREEZE E.C. OXENHAM & CY. LTD. [MU] 06/08/2010 10693 06/08/2020
SKIPPER E.C. OXENHAM & CY. LTD. [MU] 06/08/2010 10694 06/08/2020
DIVINE E.C. OXENHAM & CY. LTD. [MU] 06/08/2010 10695 06/08/2020
SHIVER E.C. OXENHAM & CY. LTD. [MU] 06/08/2010 10696 06/08/2020
MOURJAN
MARINAS

G-MARIN CONSULTING 
LIMITED [MT] 06/08/2010 15800 06/08/2020

MOURJAN & 
DESIGN

G-MARIN CONSULTING
LIMITED [MT] 06/08/2010 15795 06/08/2020

SILVER TOUCH MR BALKUMAR RAMCHURN [MU] 06/08/2010 10116 06/08/2020
KWIKSET VARCO DISTRIBUTORS LTD [MU] 06/08/2010 10070 06/08/2020
OEC-OPEN 
EDUCATION 
CENTRE FUTURE 
STARTS WITH US

ATECH LTD [MU] 06/08/2010 10071 06/08/2020

CAPTAIN DODO 
ILE MAURICE MINOCULTURE LTD [MU] 09/08/2010 10861 09/08/2020

FWM 
INTERNATIONAL 
LIMITED -
MANAGEMENT 
COMPANY

FWM INTERNATIONAL
LIMITED [MU] 10/08/2010 10135 10/08/2020

WOODMARK LOGANADEN SOONDRAM [MU] 10/08/2010 10136 10/08/2020
MARINES 
REGIMENT & 
PATROL FOUR

SURAJSINGH KHEDOO [MU] 09/08/2010 10137 09/08/2020

ROCKEFELLER 
FINANCIAL AND 
GLOBE DESIGN

1979 FAMILY TRUST LICENSOR, 
LLC [US] 10/08/2010 10581 10/08/2020

MERCK SERONO 
LIVING SCIENCE, 
TRANSFORMING 
LIVES

MERCK SERONO [DE] 10/08/2010 10138 10/08/2020

LES P'TITS 
DEUCES MAURIDI STRIDOM LTD [MU] 11/08/2010 10276 11/08/2020

DODO JOY CREATIONS BIJEM LTEE [MU] 11/08/2010 10139 11/08/2020
MAXGE SWITCH 
ON THE FUTURE MAXGE (MTIUS) LTD [MU] 12/08/2010 10201 12/08/2020

OZONE TAMAK DISTRIBUTION LTD [MU] 13/08/2010 10161 13/08/2020
MONITHOR-
POWER...SMARTER LEAL EQUIPMENTS CIE LTEE [MU] 13/08/2010 10163 13/08/2020

MON CHOISY 
ESTATE

LA REVERIE DE MON CHOISY 
LTD [MU] 16/08/2010 10125 16/08/2020

INNATO MR MOHAMMAD IRFAAN 
MOOSBALLY [MU] 16/08/2010 10164 16/08/2020

SPEEDER SYNGENTA PARTICIPATIONS
AG [CH] 16/08/2010 10244 16/08/2020

SANSIRO - UN 
ÉCRIN DE 
VERDURE

UNIVERSAL SUPPLIES LTD [MU] 16/08/2010 10140 16/08/2020

WEST COAST VIEW 
-NEW
GENERATION OF 
SELF-CATERING

WEST COAST VIEW LTD [MU] 17/08/2010 10143 17/08/2020

AMIKA SUNRISE RETAIL LTD [MU] 17/08/2010 10127 17/08/2020
PURPLE OCTANE KGPRO LTD [MU] 17/08/2010 10203 17/08/2020

SUD OCEAN FERME MARINE DE 
MAHEBOURG LTD [MU] 18/08/2010 10128 18/08/2020

FIRE STOP SUPER HELP SRL [IT] 18/08/2010 10799 18/08/2020
SUPER HELP SUPER HELP SRL [IT] 18/08/2010 10800 18/08/2020
SUPER HELP SUPER HELP SRL [IT] 18/08/2010 10204 18/08/2020
RETURN WEAR MR. SUKKEE WONG [MU] 18/08/2010 10144 18/08/2020
LAILA A.A.R. OOSMAN & CO LTD [MU] 18/08/2010 10145 18/08/2020

OH GEL PENTEL SOUTH AFRICA 
(PROPRIETARY) LIMITED [ZA] 18/08/2010 10146 18/08/2020

WOW1GEL PENTEL SOUTH AFRICA 
(PROPRIETARY) LIMITED [ZA] 18/08/2010 10147 18/08/2020

PWC- MONO 
HALFTONE PWC BUSINESS TRUST [US] 18/08/2010 10995 18/08/2020

ADAMSON
SHOEZOBSESSION

MR MUHAMMAD HUSSAIN 
ADAM [MU] 18/08/2010 10148 18/08/2020

BK BURGER KING CORPORATION [US] 18/08/2010 10171 18/08/2020

BB BLANCHE BIRGER COMPANY 
LIMITED [MU] 19/08/2010 10172 19/08/2020

BIRGER INDIAN 
OCEAN

BLANCHE BIRGER COMPANY 
LIMITED [MU] 19/08/2010 10173 19/08/2020

BIRGER INDIAN
OCEAN 
SEYCHELLES

BLANCHE BIRGER COMPANY 
LIMITED [MU] 19/08/2010 10174 19/08/2020

BLANCHE, BIRGER 
INFORMATION 
TECHNOLOGY

BLANCHE BIRGER COMPANY 
LIMITED [MU] 19/08/2010 10175 19/08/2020

BLANCHE, BIRGER 
BUREAUTIQUE

BLANCHE BIRGER COMPANY 
LIMITED [MU] 19/08/2010 10176 19/08/2020

EDITIONS
EUGENIA EDITIONS BOMBASTE LTEE [MU] 20/08/2010 10177 20/08/2020

VISIT IN PARADISE MAURITIUS DUTY FREE 
PARADISE CO LTD [MU] 20/08/2010 10178 20/08/2020

PROFESSIONAL HAMILTON BRANDS 
(PROPRIETARY) LIMITED [ZA] 20/08/2010 10318 20/08/2020

UTILITY HAMILTON BRANDS 
(PROPRIETARY) LIMITED [ZA] 20/08/2010 10319 20/08/2020
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VIVA HAMILTON BRANDS 
(PROPRIETARY) LIMITED [ZA] 20/08/2010 10320 20/08/2020

SMX4 SUPERMAX INTERNATIONAL 
PVT LTD [IN] 20/08/2010 10179 20/08/2020

SYRINE SUPERMAX INTERNATIONAL 
PVT LTD [IN] 20/08/2010 10180 20/08/2020

LIQUOR EXPRESS 
THE EXPRESS 
PEOPLE

MBL DISTRIBUTION LTD [MU] 23/08/2010 10277 23/08/2020

SALSA FITS MY 
LIFE IRMAOS VILA NOVA, S.A. [PT] 23/08/2010 10149 23/08/2020

SAVINIA THE SAVANNAH SUGAR ESTATES 
COMPANY LIMITED [MU] 23/08/2010 10150 23/08/2020

SAVI FRESH THE SAVANNAH SUGAR ESTATES 
COMPANY LIMITED [MU] 23/08/2010 10181 23/08/2020

TULSIDAS IN 
STYLE

SUNSHEEL INTERNATIONAL 
LTD [MU] 24/08/2010 10152 24/08/2020

TOLARAM & 
TULSIDAS

SUNSHEEL INTERNATIONAL 
LTD [MU] 24/08/2010 10153 24/08/2020

AFRICA FORWARD 
TOGETHER

THE MAURITIUS COMMERCIAL 
BANK LIMITED [MU] 24/08/2010 10154 24/08/2020

ENERGEL X PENTEL SOUTH AFRICA 
(PROPRIETARY) LIMITED [ZA] 24/08/2010 10217 24/08/2020

CHAGOS MR L.J. ALAIN ESPITALLIER- 
NOEL [MU] 24/08/2010 10218 24/08/2020

CONSULTEC 
GROUP CONSULTEC LTD [MU] 24/08/2010 10205 24/08/2020

EL TORO GRAYS INC. LTD [MU] 25/08/2010 10219 25/08/2020
LES ALLEES DU 
GRAND CHAIS GRAYS INC. LTD [MU] 25/08/2010 10220 25/08/2020

LE PAVILLON DU 
VIEUX MOULIN GRAYS INC. LTD [MU] 25/08/2010 10182 25/08/2020

MARCEL PASTIS 
DE MARSEILLE GRAYS INC. LTD [MU] 25/08/2010 10206 25/08/2020

HOME INFINITY HOME PRIDE LIMITED [MU] 25/08/2010 10183 25/08/2020
OGEM EAT INTL LTD [MU] 25/08/2010 10184 25/08/2020
BESARCIO NOVARTIS AG [CH] 25/08/2010 10246 25/08/2020
LETEXIN NOVARTIS AG [CH] 25/08/2010 10247 25/08/2020
PERPETIX NOVARTIS AG [CH] 25/08/2010 10248 25/08/2020
RAMIZID NOVARTIS AG [CH] 25/08/2010 10249 25/08/2020
RETARPEN NOVARTIS AG [CH] 25/08/2010 10250 25/08/2020
SABUMALIN NOVARTIS AG [CH] 25/08/2010 10251 25/08/2020
SERVIZOL NOVARTIS AG [CH] 25/08/2010 10253 25/08/2020
UROBACID NOVARTIS AG [CH] 25/08/2010 10255 25/08/2020
XOLFOVEL NOVARTIS AG [CH] 25/08/2010 10256 25/08/2020
XORIM NOVARTIS AG [CH] 25/08/2010 10257 25/08/2020
ZANLAN NOVARTIS AG [CH] 25/08/2010 10258 25/08/2020
FLAGSHIP IRSHAD MALLAM-HASSAM [MU] 25/08/2010 10185 25/08/2020

OCEAN FRESH UNITED FISHING ENTERPRISES 
(PTY) LTD [NA] 25/08/2010 10305 25/08/2020
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Please disregard this notice ifpayment for the renewal of the registration of the mark has been 
effected prior to this publication.

OCEAN FRESH UNITED FISHING ENTERPRISES 
(PTY) LTD [NA] 25/08/2010 10306 25/08/2020

WATTIE'S HEINZ WATTIE'S LIMITED [NL] 25/08/2010 10410 25/08/2020
LE PRESTIGE 
LUXURY 
APARTMENTS

SODNAC PROPERTY 
DEVELOPMENT LTD [MU] 25/08/2010 10186 25/08/2020

CLIPTEC BIZCODE ASIA SDN BHD [MY] 26/08/2010 11497 26/08/2020

NEVADOR LA MONTAGNE EXPORT LTEE 
[MU] 26/08/2010 10207 26/08/2020

HP HOME PRIDE COMPANY LTD [MU] 26/08/2010 10187 26/08/2020
HP BODY 
MASSAGER HOME PRIDE LIMITED [MU] 26/08/2010 10188 26/08/2020

3 CHEFS LES TROIS CHEFS LTEE [MU] 26/08/2010 10190 26/08/2020
COPLAVIX SANOFI [FR] 26/08/2010 10259 26/08/2020
KI ZAFER KOT SA KI ZAFER KOT SA LTD [MU] 27/08/2010 13091 27/08/2020
SHRISHTI DESIGN 
STUDIO S.PEM AND CO LTD [MU] 27/08/2010 10192 27/08/2020

DELICES DU CHEF NEW MAURITIUS HOTELS 
LIMITED [MU] 30/08/2010 10193 30/08/2020

ACCA
THE ASSOCIATION OF 
CHARTERED CERTIFIED 
ACCOUNTANTS [UK]

30/08/2010 10221 30/08/2020

KETEL ONE 
ORANJE DOUBLE EAGLE BRANDS B.V. [NL] 30/08/2010 10355 30/08/2020

EAST PEACOCK HOME PRIDE LTD [MU] 31/08/2010 10223 31/08/2020

HBD
THE TRUSTEE FOR THE TIME 
BEING OF THE HBD 2 TRUST 

JVGJ___________________________
31/08/2010 10890 31/08/2020

Date:02 September, 2020 The Controller
Industrial Property Office
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CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Deo 

MOTEERAM and Mrs Marie Hortense Djessina 
MOTEERAM (bom CALIS) of Indira Gandhi 
Road, Caroline, Bel Air, Rivière Sèche, have 
applied to the Honourable Attorney-General for 
leave to change the names of their minor son Louis 
Fabiano Moksh into those of Louis Fabiano 
Moksh Morgan so that in the future he shall bear 
the names and surname of Louis Fabiano Moksh 
Morgan MOTEERAM.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 17/08/2020

Mr Deo MOTEERAM and 
Mrs Marie Hortense Djessina MOTEERAM 

(bom CALIS) 
Applicants 

(Rec No. 18/148237)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Deo 
MOTEERAM and Mrs Marie Hortense 
Djessina MOTEERAM (bom CALIS) of Indira 
Gandhi Road, Caroline, Bel Air, Rivière Sèche, 
have applied to the Honourable Attorney-General 
for leave to change the names of their minor 
daughter Kushika into those of Marie Whitney 
Kate Kushika so that in the future she shall bear 
the names and surname of Marie Whitney Kate 
Kushika MOTEERAM.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 17/08/2020

Mr Deo MOTEERAM and 
Mrs Marie Hortense Djessina MOTEERAM 

(bom CALIS) 
Applicants 

(Rec No. 18/148236)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Rajendra 

RAMTOHUL and Mrs Veemla RAMTOHUL 
(bom NARRAYEN) of Avenue Maurice Prudent, 
Sadally Vacoas have applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change the name 
of their minor daughter Deepnha into those of 
Deepna so that in the future she shall bear the 
names and surname of Deepna RAMTOHUL.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 17/08/2020

Mr Rajendra RAMTOHUL and 
Mrs Veemla RAMTOHUL (born NARRAYEN) 

Applicants 
(Rec No. 18/148234)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Shoubeerajsingh 

NYECHORAY of Post Office Road, Grand 
River South East, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney General for leave to change his name and 
surname Shoubeerajsingh NYECHORAY into 
those of Soubirajsingh SOOBARAH so that in 
the future he may bear the name and surname of 
Soubirajsingh SOOBARAH.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 18/08/2020

Mr Shoubeerajsingh NYECHORAY 
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148250)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Voon Paw 
YEUNG CHE LEUNG of Monseigneur Leen, 
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Quatre Bornes, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change his names 
Voon Paw into those of Patrick Voon Paw so that 
in the future he shall bear the names and surname 
of Patrick Voon Paw YEUNG CHE LEUNG.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 19/08/2020

Mr Voon Paw YEUNG CHE LEUNG 
Applicant 

(Rec No. 18/148276)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr and Mrs Navin 
HORIL of 33, L’Unite Avenue, Camp Benoit, 
Petite Rivière, have applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change the name 
of their minor son Madhav into that of Pranav 
so that in the future he shall bear the name and 
surname of Pranav HORIL.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney-General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 19/08/2020

Mr and Mrs Navin HORIL 
Applicants 

(Rec No. 18/148275)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME
Notice is hereby given that Mr Jherry Jean- 

Luc PARSAD and Mrs Marie Natacha PARSAD 
(born EUGÉNIE), electing their legal domicile 
in the office of Me. P. NATHOO, Attorney of 
10, Georges Guibert St, Port Louis, have applied 
to the Honourable Attorney General for leave to 
change the names of their minor adopted daughter 
Daminee Darshinee into those of Ruth Eugénie, 
so that in the future, she may officially be known 
under the names and surname of Ruth Eugénie 
PARSAD.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 17th day of August 2020.
Mr Jherry Jean-Luc PARSAD 

and Mrs Marie Natacha PARSAD 
(born EUGÉNIE) 

Applicants 
(Rec. No. 18/148302)

Third & Last Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Kengee SHEIK 
CHAN & Mrs Marie Estelle Désirée SHEIK 
CHAN (born ADELAIDE), electing their legal 
domicile in the office Me. Said BAICHOO, 
Attorney, has applied to the Honourable Attorney 
General for leave to change the names of their 
minor daughter Larishra Alaswanah Lorna into 
that of Léa, so that in the future, she may bear the 
name and surname of Léa SHEIK CHAN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 14th day of August 2020.

Mr Kengee SHEIK CHAN
& Mrs Marie Estelle Désirée SHEIK CHAN

(born ADELAIDE)
Applicants 

(Rec. No. 18/148302)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Jetha 
GOREEBA c/o Mr Stephen MIN SHING of 
40, Brabant Street, Port Louis, has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
his name Jetha into those of Galvin Jetha so that 
in the future he shall bear the names and surname 
of Galvin Jetha GOREEBA.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
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of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 24/08/2020

Mr Jetha GOREEBA
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/148332)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Mohammad 
Parwez NEEAMUTH and Mrs Shania Bibi 
NEEAMUTH (born ULYJAN) of Royal Road, 
Alma Verdun, have applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change the names 
of their minor son Zayn Husayn into those of 
Mohammad Zayn Husayn so that in the future 
he shall bear the names and surname Mohammad 
Zayn Husayn NEEAMUTH.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 25/08/2020

Mr Mohammad Parwez NEEAMUTH 
and Mrs Shania Bibi NEEAMUTH 

(born ULYJAN) 
Applicants 

(Rec No. 18/148348)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Veersing 
RAJUB and Mrs Seetal RAJUB (born DOMA) 
of Parbhudoyal Lane, Mare-Tabac, have applied 
to the Honourable Attorney-General for leave to 
change the names of their minor son Thanveer 
Sing into that of Thunushsing so that in the future 
he shall bear the name and surname Thunushsing 
RAJUB.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 25/08/2020
Mr Veersing RAJUB and 

Mrs Seetal RAJUB (born DOMA) 
Applicants 

(Rec No. 18/148345)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mrs Raksha JAIN 
(born DESHA) c/o Mr Madookur V. DESHA of 
164, Royal Road, Coromandel, has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
her name Raksha into those of Raksha Desha 
so that in the future she shall bear the names and 
surname of Raksha Desha JAIN (bom DESHA).

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 25/08/2020

Mrs Raksha JAIN (bom DESHA)
Applicant 

(Rec No. 18/148347)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Sehzad- 
Ally EMAMKHAN and Mrs Bibi Kawsar 
Banu AUHAMMUD EMAMKHAN 
(bom AUHAMMUD) of School Road, Calebasses, 
have applied to the Honourable Attorney General 
for leave to change the names of their minor son 
Muhammad Zayyan into those of Muhammad 
Junayd so that in the future he shall bear the 
names and surname of Muhammad Junayd 
EMAMKHAN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 26/08/2020
Mr Sehzad-Ally EMAMKHAN and 

Mrs Bibi Kawsar Banu AUHAMMUD EMAMKHAN 
(born AUHAMMUD) 

Applicants 
(Rec. No. 18/148358)
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Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms Varsha 
LILLMOND of Ashram Road. Calebasses, has 
applied to the Honourable Attorney General for 
leave to change her name Varsha into those of 
Varsha Kriti so that in the future she shall bear the 
names and surname of Varsha Kriti LILLMOND.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Ms Varsha LILLMOND
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/148359)

Second Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Bidvvantee 
BOOLAKEE, of 4212 Park Village Ct Fort Worth, 
Texas 76137 - U.S.A represented by her agent and 
proxy, Mr Laxmikant BOOLAKEE, electing legal 
domicile in the office of Me. Afzal AGOWAN, 
Attorney, has applied to the Honourable Attorney 
General for leave to change her name Bidvvantee 
into those of Reena Schuyler, so that in the future, 
she shall bear the names and surname of Reena 
Schuyler BOOLAKEE.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 24th day of August 2020.

Bidwantee BOOLAKEE
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148395)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Ms Bibi Umme 
Summaiyya IMANN BACCASS of 6 Ally 
Street, Port Louis, has applied to the Honourable 
Attorney-General for leave to change the name 

of her minor son RUHOMAULY into that of 
IMANN BACCASS so that in the future he shall 
bear the names and surname of Muhammad Eejaz 
IMANN BACCASS.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 01/09/2020

Ms Bibi Umme Summaiyya 
IMANN BACCASS 

Applicant
(Rec No. 18/148439)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Mr Rajvansh 
SESMUN c/o Mr Ganardhun SESMUN, 
49, Queen Street, Rose Hill, has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
his name Rajvansh into those of Rajvansh Evans 
so that in the future he shall bear the names and 
surname of Rajvansh Evans SESMUN.

Objections, if any, should be filed in the registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Date: 01/09/2020

Mr Rajvansh SESMUN 
Applicant

(Rec No. 18/148442)

First Publication

CHANGE OF NAME

Notice is hereby given that Doctor 
Ravindranant Tagore MEETOO of 46, Avenue 
des Alouettes, Residence St Daniel, Roches Brunes, 
electing his legal domicile in the office of Me. 
Vashish BHUGOO, Attorney, has applied to the 
Honourable Attorney General for leave to change 
his names Doctor Ravindranant Tagore into that 
of Nitish, so that in the future, he may officially 
be known under the name and surname of Nitish 
MEETOO.
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Objections, if any, should be filed in the Registry 
of the office of the Attorney General within a period 
of 28 days as from the last date of publication of 
the said notice in the papers.

Dated this 31st day of August 2020.

Doctor Ravindranant Tagore MEETOO
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148488)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
25th day of February, 2021 at 1.30 p.m. shall take 
place before the Master’s Court, Suprême Court 
situate at Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the 
Sale by levy of: ''Les biens et droits immobiliers 
ci-après désignés dépendant d'un immeuble située 
au quartier des Plaines Wilhems, lieu dit Les 
Casernes, érigé sur une portion de terrain de la 
contenance de deux cent vingt huit mètres carrés 
(228 m2), le tout plus amplement décrit et aborné 
au règlement de co-propriété ci-après relaté. 
(PIN Number:- 1743030080) Le dit immeuble 
soumis au Régime de la Copropriété et ayant fait 
l’objet d’un état descriptif de division, incorporé 
au Règlement de Jouissance- Règlement de 
Copropriété dressé par Me. Joseph Marcel Joson, 
Notaire, le 12/09/1994, enregistré et transcrit au 
Vol. 2881/66. DESIGNATION Le Lot No. 2:- Le 
premier étage couvrant une superficie de cent 
vingt deux décimal quatre vingt neuf mètres carrés 
(122.89 m2) comprend:- Deux chambres à coucher 
de dix décimal soixante quinze mètres carrés 
(10.75 m2) et douze décimal soixante mètres 
carrés (12.60 m2) respectivement; Un salon de 
seize décimal trente cinq mètres carrés (16.35 m2); 
Une salle à manger de neuf décimal cinquante 
mètres carrés (9.50 m2); Un couloir de six décimal 
quarante mètres carrés (9.40 m2); Une cuisine 
de quinze décimal mètres carrés (15.00 m2); Une 
salle de bains de quatre décimal dix mètres carrés 
(4.10 m2); Un water closet d'un mètre décimal vingt 
cinq mètres carrés (1.25 m2); Et un passage de cinq 
mètres décimal dix mètres carrés (5.10 m2); Une 
terrasse de quinze décimal soixante mètres carrés 
(15.60 m2); Et la cage des escaliers de neuf décimal 
quatorze mètres carrés (9.14 m2): Avec ensemble 
les cinq mille cinq cent soixante dix huit/dix 
millièmes (5,570/10,000*"™) de la propriété du sol 

et des parties communes y attachées. Together with 
all buildings, constructions and plantations existing 
thereon and all dependencies and appurtenances 
thereof, generally whatsoever without any 
exception or reservation, the whole as morefully 
described in tiltle deeds drawn up by Mr. Joseph 
Marcel Joson, Notary Public (i) on the 12/09/1994, 
registered and transcribed in Vol. 2881/66 and 
(ii) on the 03/05/1995, registered and transcribed on 
the 29/05/1995, in Vol. 3082/12.”. Land Zoning- 
Residential Site:- The regular shaped land has an 
even topography with a frontage of 10.67 metres 
to Andre Robert Street, Route du Jardin lies at a 
distance of approx. 75 metres from subject property. 
The site is serviced with all infrastructural utilities 
and facilities] Access:- Access to property is by 
means of a vehicular road. Services:- Electricity 
and domestic water supply are available on site. 
Neighbourhood:- Neighbourhood consists 
of semi-luxurious and luxurious residential 
buildings in a heavily built-up area. All amenities 
including public transport are available in the 
region. Building - Lot No. 2 Buildings:- The 
double storey (ground floor + 1st floor) residential 
building is made of reinforced concrete frame 
structure with concrete block walls under a partly 
flat and partly inclined reinforced concrete slab 
roof. Apartment - Lot No. 2 Apartment Lot No. 2 
is found on the first floor of building which is 
subject to a Règlement de Co-Propriété. Lot No. 2 
has a quote part of 5,578/10,000ths. (a) Area - 
122.89 m2 or 1,322.29 ft2; (b) State of repair - Good; 
(c) Finishes: Openings - Generally aluminium 
glazed doors and windows. Plastering and paint - 
External walls are rendered and painted.

The whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the above matter.

The sale is prosecuted at the request of The 
Mauritius Commercial Bank Ltd against 
Mr. Barlen CHELVANAIGUM also called 
CHELVANAIGUM Barlin and Anor.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such rights.

Under all legal reservations.
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Dated at Port Louis, this 1st day of September, 
2020.

Udhisteer K. Ragobur 
ENSafrica (Mauritius) 

19, Church Street, Port Louis. 
Attorney in charge of the sale.

(Rec. No. 18/148468)

SALE BY LEVY

Notice is hereby given that on Thursday the 
21st day of January 2021 at 1.30 p.m. shall take place 
before the Master’s Court, Supreme Court situate at 
Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, the Sale by levy of: 
“Une portion de terrain de la contenance de cinq 
cent soixante treize décimal quarante cinq mètres 
carrés (573.45 m2) située au quartier de Flacq, 
lieudit Queen Victoria. Il a été fait observer au titre 
de propriété ci-après relaté que la dite portion de 
terrain a été arpentée par Monsieur Somrajsing 
Roopun, arpenteur juré, suivant son rapport 
d’arpentage avec plan figuratif y joint, en date 
du 13/03/2014, enregistré au Reg. LS 99/23071 
et a été par lui trouvée être de la contenance de 
cinq cent cinquante cinq mètres carrés (555 m2) 
et est compris dans les abonnements suivants:- 
(PIN Number:- 1427020119) Du premier côté, par 
Celtric Lane “ex Impasse l’Ecole” sur une longueur 
de vingt quatre mètres quatre vingt (24 m 80); 
Du second côté, par le terrain appartenant à 
Monsieur Harryparsad Tacoory, sur une longueur 
de vingt quatre mètres soixante neuf (24 m 69); 
Du troisième côté, par le terrain appartenant à 
Monsieur Beedamree Dursun, sur une longueur 
de dix mètres dix (10 m 10) et partie par le terrain 
appartenant à Monsieur Devanand Meetooa, sur 
une longueur de dix mètres cinquante (10 m 50); 
Et du quatrième et dernier côté, par le terrain 
appartenant à Monsieur Rajen Govinden, sur 
une longueur de vingt cinq mètres zéro (25 m 00). 
Together with all buildings, constructions and 
plantations existing thereon and all dependencies 
and appurtenances thereof, generally whatsoever, 
without any exception or reservation the whole 
as more fully described in title deed drawn up 
by Mr. Dharmaveersing Roopun, Notary Public, 
on the 18/09/2014, registered and transcribed in 
TV 201409/001831. Land The zone is residential. 
The trapezoidal shaped land has an even topography 

with a frontage of 24.80 mètres to Celtic Lane 
(Ex-Impasse L’Ecole). Queen Victoria Road is 
about 30 metres away from subject property. The 
site is serviced with all infrastructural utilities 
and facilities. Access to property is by means of 
a tarred pedestrian lane. Electricity and domestic 
water supply are available on site. Neighbourhood 
mainly consists of semi-luxurious residential 
buildings in a built up residential zone. All 
amenities including public transport are available 
in the region. Buildings Residential building- 
Front part The single storey (Ground floor only) 
residential building is partly made of concrete 
block walls and partly of Corrugated Iron Sheets 
(C.I.S) under a C.I.S roof. Area: Approximately 
65 m2 or 699.40 ft2. Residential building-Rear part 
The single storey (Ground floor only) residential 
building is made of Corrugated Iron Sheets (C.LS) 
under C.LS roof.

The whole morefully described in the 
Memorandum of Charges filed in the above matter.

The sale is prosecuted at the request of 
The Mauritius Commercial Bank Ltd against 
Mr. Hugues Parfait ANDRIAMIALIVAO and 
Anor.

All parties claiming a right to take inscription of 
legal mortgage upon the said property are warned 
that they must do so before the transcription of the 
judgment of adjudication failing which they shall 
forfeit such rights.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 1st day of September, 
2020.

Udhisteer K. Ragobur 
ENSafrica (Mauritius)

19, Church Street, Port Louis. 
Attorney in charge of the sale.

(Rec. No. 18/148468)

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

SALE BY LEVY

On Friday the 18th day of September 2020 
at 11.00 a.m., at Market place, Flacq, I the 
undersigned Court Usher will sell by Public 
Auction and for cash, to the highest bidder and for 
cash the following moveables effects viz:-
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1. - A dining table.
2. - Six wooden chairs.
3. - One sofa set (3+1)
4. - One refrigerator of the make “Samsung”
5. - One Micro wave of the make “Akai”.

Seized at the request of Frens Specialty 
Chemicals & Equipment Ltd against Marie 
Christelle Arjunan of Sun City Lane, Bramsthan 
in virtue of a Distress Warrant issued out of the 
Commercial Division of the Supreme Court pursuant 
to a judgment of the said Court dated 8th May 2019 
in case Cause No. SC/COM/PET/0677/2018.

The above mentioned moveable effects may be 
seen at the place of sale one hour before the sale.

Dated this 31st July 2020.

D. Ramprosand
Senior Court Usher in charge o f the sale.

Supreme Court. 
(Rec. No. 18/148489)

SALE BY LICITATION

Notice is hereby given that on the 31st day 
of August 2020 has been filed in the Master’s 
Office, Supreme Court House, Port Louis, the 
Memorandum of Charges, containing all the 
clauses and conditions pursuant and according to 
which shall take place before the Master’s Bar, 
Supreme Court House, Port Louis the Sale by 
Licitation of a portion of land of the extent 426 m* 1 2 3 4, 
situate at La Louise, Quatre Bornes, and bordered 
as per report of Mr. L. Y. Sidney Sakir, Sworn Land 
Surveyor drawn up on the 17/04/1986 registered 
in Reg: L.S. 24 No. 6423 as follows: Au Nord 
Est, partie par Monsieur et Madame Ramprakash 
Ramkissen (341 mètres carrés, soit 89% toises, 
TV 1585 No. 107) - et partie par Monsieur 
Komalsing Dhunputh (425 mètres carrés, soit 
112 toises TV. 1596 No. 200) sur une longueur 
totale de vingt six mètres et un centimètres ou 
quatre vingt cinq pieds quatre pouces, au sud Est, 
par le surplus du terrain la présente portion est 
distraite sur seize mètres et trente six centimètres 
ou cinquante trois pieds huit pouces, au sud ouest, 
par la première portion décrite à la dite description 
au Mineur Vishal Deepchand, sur vingt six mètres 
et un centimètre ou quatre vingt cinq pieds quatre 
pouces et au nord ouest, par les réserves de un 

IN THE DISTRICT COURT OF FLACQ

(CIVIL SIDE) 
CN31/19

NOTICE OF SALE

Attorney: Me H. Hunma

On Friday the 25th of September 2020 at 
11.00 a.m. at the yard of Flacq District Court, 
Flacq, I the undersigned Court Usher will sell by 
public auction to the highest bidder and for cash 
the following movables:-

1. A Pc make apple colour grey

2. A wooden office table

3. Two leather chairs colour brown

4. One executive leather chair colour black

Seized by Me, and taken into execution upon 
Mr Jean Marc Kelvin Dardenne at the request 
of Mr Joel Bertrand Coindreau in virtue 
and in execution of a warrant to levy issued on

mètre et vingt deux centimètres ou quatre pieds de 
large longeant un chemin commun de trois mètres 
et quatre vingt seize centimètres ou treize pieds de 
large sur — seize mètres et trente six centimètres 
ou cinquante trois pieds huit pouces - L’équivalent 
de la mesure métrique est donné en pied anglais. 
On the said portion of land, stands a two storey 
concrete building for residential purposes which is 
currently occupied by the Respondent.

The said sale is prosecuted at the suit, instance 
and request of Irene Valentine Anne Theresa 
CHATELIER.

All Parties claiming a right to take inscription 
of legal mortgage upon the said immoveable 
property are warned that they must do so before 
the transcription of the judgment of adjudication 
failing which they shall forfeit such right

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Port Louis, this 1st day of September 
2020.

Georgy Ng Wong Hing 
of 702, Chancery House, 

Lislet Geoffroy Street, Port Louis
Petitioner s Attorney 

(Rec. No. 18/148487)
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3rd of February, 2020 by the District Court of Flacq 
(Civil Side) pursuant to a Judgment of the said 
Court delivered on 8th of August, 2019.

The above mentioned movable effects may be 
seen at the place of sale 30 minutes before the sale.

Dated this 25th day of August, 2020.

Mrs B. S. Rampersad-Woozeer 
Court Usher - Flacq District Court 

In Charge of Sale 
(Rec. No. 18/148459)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Traxi Continental Holdings Limited
(‘the Company’)
(In Liquidation)

Please be informed, that I, Vijay Bhuguth, has 
been appointed as liquidator by the shareholder 
of the Company vide a written resolution dated 
10 June 2020.

The date of commencement of the liquidation 
shall be effective from my date of appointment that 
is 10 June 2020.

For any queries, I shall be available on my phone 
number 210-5888 during weekdays as from 09.00 
to 16.30. Any enquiries may also be forwarded to 
my office address: C./o VBS Business Services, 
1st Floor, Hennessy Court, Port Louis.

Dated this 26th day of August 2020.

Vijay Bhuguth 
Liquidator

(Rec. No. 18/148462)

Chartered Accountants, 5th Floor, C&R Court, 
49 Labourdonnais Street, Port Louis, have been 
appointed Liquidator with effect from 25th August 
2020.

Notice is also given to any person, who reckons 
that the Company holds property belonging to him 
or property in which he has rights, should submit 
his claim in writing to the Liquidator with all 
supporting documents in respect of such ownership 
or right by 15th October 2020.

All persons holding any property, documents, 
books and records of the above Company 
are requested to deliver them forthwith to the 
Liquidator.

Further notice is given that all sums due to the 
Company should be payable to the Liquidator and 
receipts for such payments shall only be valid if 
they bear the signature of the Liquidator or his 
duly appointed representative/s.

All correspondences should be addressed to:

Kian-Fah Kim-Tiam CHUNG CHUN LAM
Liquidator
TENEO MANAGEMENT LTD
C/o Nexia Baker & Arenson
Chartered Accountants
5th Floor, C&R Court
49 Labourdonnais Street
Port Louis

(Rec. No. 18/148475)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137 OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

Traxi Continental Holdings Limited
(the ‘Company’)
In Liquidation

Notice is hereby given that via a written 
resolution of the shareholder dated 10th June 2020, 
the company has been put into liquidation and 
Mr. Vijay Bhuguth has been appointed as liquidator.

Dated this 26th day of August 2020.

Legacy Capital Co Ltd
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/148462)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 117(1) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

TENEO MANAGEMENT LTD
(In Liquidation)

Notice is hereby given that pursuant to 
a resolution of the shareholder of TENEO 
MANAGEMENT LTD (the “Company”) dated 
25th August 2020,1, Kian-Fah Kim-Tiam CHUNG 
CHUN LAM, FCCA, of Nexia Baker & Arenson,
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009
ECOGRAF (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder’s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 30 June 2020 
at 09hl5 in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company.

Dated: 30 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148424)

Dated: 30 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services 
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary
(Rec. No. 18/148424)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009
L & P FINANCIAL SERVICES LTD

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 08 June 2020 
at 1 lh30 in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company.

Dated: 19 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Administrators Limited
Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/148421)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

CHAUDURAN LTD

(‘the Company’)

(In Shareholder s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholders of the Company has passed 
the following special resolutions on 19 March 
2020 at 14h00 in accordance with Section 137(3) 
of the Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

SHIVSHANTI LTD

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholders of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 30 June 2020 
at 16hl 5 in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered 
to distribute to the Members, in specie or in 
kind, the whole or any part of the assets of 
the Company.
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2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered 
to distribute to the Members, in specie or in 
kind, the whole or any part of the assets of 
the Company.

Dated: 19 March 2020

Ocorian Corporate Administrators Limited 
Secretary

(Rec No. 18/148422)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

TALAO HOLDINGS LTD

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 30 June 2020 
at lOhOO in accordance with Section 137(3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company.

Dated: 30 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary 
(Rec No. 18/148424)

lOhOO in accordance with Section 137(3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency Act 
2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company.

Dated: 10 March 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services 
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary
(Rec No. 18/148424)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

WORLDAKORN PHARMA MAURITIUS

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 21 August 
2020 at 09h30 in accordance with Section 137(3) 
of the Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Feizal Allybokus of BDO 
Mauritius, 10 Frère Félix de Valois Street, 
Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius be appointed 
as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered 
to distribute to the Member, in specie or in 
kind, the whole or any part of the assets of the 
Company.

Dated: 27 August 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary
(Rec. No. 18/148423)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

UTILICO EMERGING MARKETS (MAURITIUS)

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company has passed the 
following special resolutions on 10 March 2020 at
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

GREEN HEDGE HOLDINGS

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholders ’ Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholders of the Company has passed 
the following special resolutions at a Shareholders’ 
meeting held on 31 March 2020 at llhOO in 
accordance with Section 137 (3) of the Insolvency 
Act 2009:
1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 

under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

Dated: 31 of March 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited 

(Rec. No. 18/148424) Secretary

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

JACANALTD

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 30 June 2020 
at 09h 15 in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:
1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 

under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company.

Dated: 30 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited 

(Rec. No. 18/148424) Secretary

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

BLACK RHINO INVESTMENTS

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder ’s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 16 June 2020 
at lOhOO in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company.

Dated: 16 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited 

(Rec. No. 18/148424) Secretary

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

ECO MEDIA TV

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholders ’ Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholders of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 16 June 2020 
at I Ohl 0 in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered 
to distribute to the Members, in specie or in 
kind, the whole or any part of the assets of 
the Company.

Dated: 16 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited 

(Rec. No. 18/148424) Secretary
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

FECAGAMARSA

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholders ’ Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholders of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 19 June 2020 
at 1 IhOO in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009;

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered 
to distribute to the Members, in specie or in 
kind, the whole or any part of the assets of 
the Company.

Dated: 19 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148424)

Dated: 25 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary
(Rec. No. 18/148424)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

KISHAR SECURITY SOLUTIONS BURKINA FASO

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder’s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 24 June 2020 
at lOhOO in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company.
Dated: 24 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148424)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

TECHNO BRAIN

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholders ’ Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholders of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 29 June 2020 
at 09hl 5 in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

KISHAR SECURITY SOLUTIONS CAMEROON

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder’s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 25 June 2020 
at lOhOO in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company.
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3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company. 

Dated: 29 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services (Mauritius) Limited 
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148424)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

TECHNO BRAIN BPO

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder’s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 25 June 2020 
at 09h30 in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company.

Dated: 25 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148424)

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company.

Dated: 25 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services 
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary
(Rec. No. 18/148424)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

TECHNO BRAIN IT SERVICES

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder’s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 26 June 2020 
at 09h00 in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered to 
distribute to the Member, in specie or in kind, the 
whole or any part of the assets of the Company.

Dated: 26 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148424)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009

INNSCOR SHARED SERVICES (MAURITIUS) LIMITED

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholders of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 30 June 2020 

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 137(3)(b) OF 
THE INSOLVENCY ACT 2009
TECHNO BRAIN INTERNATIONAL

(‘the Company’)
(In Shareholder’s Voluntary Winding-up)

The Shareholder of the Company have passed 
the following special resolutions on 25 June 2020 
at 09h00 in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.
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at 09h 15 in accordance with Section 137 (3) of the 
Insolvency Act 2009:

1. That the Company be wound up voluntarily 
under Sections 137 to 140 of the Insolvency 
Act 2009.

2. That Mr Afsar Ebrahim of BDO & Co of 10 Frère 
Félix de Valois Street, Port-Louis, Republic of 
Mauritius be appointed as liquidator.

3. That the liquidator be thereby empowered 
to distribute to the Members, in specie or in 
kind, the whole or any part of the assets of 
the Company.

Dated: 30 June 2020

Ocorian Corporate Services 
(Mauritius) Limited

Secretary
(Rec. No. 18/148424) 

appearance by electronic filing either through a 
legal adviser or in person at the Public Service 
Bureau located at the Commercial Division of the 
Supreme Court of Mauritius, Jules Koenig Street. 
Port-Louis. A copy of the Petition will be furnished 
to any creditor or contributory of the said Company 
requiring the same by the undersigned on payment 
of the required charge for the same, or may be 
obtained on the electronic filing system.

Dated at Port-Louis, this 27th day of August, 
2020.

Gérard H. de Froberville
19, Church Street, Port-Louis 

Attorney for Phoenix Beverages Ltd

(Rec. No. 18/148468)

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATION 
DEPARTMENT

Insolvency Service
OFFICIAL RECEIVER’S OFFICE

One Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis 
Tel. No.: 202 0600

My Ref: SC/COM/MOT/00456/2018

Invictus Global Insurance Protected Cell 
Company Limited

Petitioner

v/s

IVM PCC in respect of Cells 013, 014, 
015 & 017

Respondent

Notice is hereby given that the Bankruptcy 
Division of the Supreme Court of Mauritius has 
on 23rd day of July, 2018 at 11.30 a.m, ordered that 
a receiving order be issued against IVM PCC in 
respect of Cells 013, 014, 015 & 017 under the 
provisions of the Insolvency Act 2009 and that the 
Official Receiver, be appointed Receiver of IVM 
PCC in respect of Cells 013, 014, 015 & 017.

Notice is also given that the Meeting of 
Contributories will be held at the Corporate and 
Business Registration Department, 11th Floor, One 
Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, 
on 10th day of September, 2020 at 13.45 hrs and 
that the Meeting of Creditors will be held at the 
same place and on the same day at 13.30 hours.

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF MAURITIUS

(BANKRUPTCY DIVISION)

In the matter of:

The Insolvency Act

And

A nd in the matter of:

ConnectBev Ltd having its registered office 
at Royal Road, Palmar

And

Phoenix Beverages Ltd electing its legal 
domicile in the office of Me. Gérard Huet de 
Froberville of 19, Church Street, Port-Louis 
(hereinafter referred to as “the Petitioner”)

Notice is hereby given that a Petition for the 
Compulsory Winding Up (hereinafter referred to as 
“the Petition”) of the above named Company was 
on Friday the 27th August 2020 lodged by Phoenix 
Beverages Ltd by electronic filing under the Court 
(Electronic Filing of Documents) Rules 2012.

The said Petition is registered as Cause Number 
SC/COM/PET/000493/2020 and the returnable 
date is the 11th September 2020. Any creditor 
or contributory of the said Company desirous 
to support or oppose the making of an order on 
the Petition may do so by making the necessary
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Notice is also given that in case creditors having 
any claim whatsoever against the said IVM PCC 
in respect of Cells 013, 014, 015 & 017 and for 
that claim to be considered, a proof of debt verified 
by an affidavit in accordance with the Insolvency 
Act 2009 must be lodged with me not later than 
13.15 hours on the 10th day of September, 2019.

Persons having in their possession any goods, 
chattels and other property whatsoever belonging 
to IVM PCC in respect of Cells 013, 014, 015 & 
017 are warned that they must deliver over same 
to me.

Dated: 25th August, 2020

V. VIRASAMI 
Official Receiver & 

Provisional Liquidator 
(Rec. No. 18/148467) 

on 11th day of September, 2020 at 13.45 hrs and 
that the Meeting of Creditors will be held at the 
same place and on the same day at 13.30 hours.

Notice is also given that in case creditors 
having any claim whatsoever against the said IVM 
PCC CELLS 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 24, 25, 26, 
27, 28, 29, 30, 31 & 32 and for that claim to be 
considered, a proof of debt verified by an affidavit 
in accordance with the Insolvency Act 2009 must 
be lodged with me not later than 13.15 hours on the 
11th day of September, 2020.

Persons having in their possession any goods, 
chattels and other property whatsoever belonging 
to IVM PCC CELLS 18, 19, 20, 21,22, 23, 24, 25, 
26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31 & 32 are warned that they 
must deliver over same to me.

Dated: 25th August, 2020

V. VIRASAMI 
Official Receiver & 

Provisional Liquidator 
(Rec. No. 18/148467)

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATION 
DEPARTMENT

Insolvency Service
OFFICIAL RECEIVER’S OFFICE

One Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis 
Tel. No.: 202 0600

My Ref SC/COM/PET/00945/2017

Invictus Global Insurance Protected Cell 
Company Limited

Petitioner

v/s

IVM PCC in respect of Cells 001, 003, 006, 
007, 009 & 012

Respondent

Notice is hereby given that the Bankruptcy 
' Division of the Supreme Court of Mauritius has 

on 12th day of July, 2018 ordered that IVM PCC in 
respect of Cells 001, 003, 006, 007, 009 & 012 be 
wound up under the provisions of the Insolvency 
Act 2009 and that the Official Receiver be 
appointed Provisional Liquidator of the Company.

Notice is also given that the Meeting of 
Contributories will be held at the Corporate and 

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATION 
DEPARTMENT

Insolvency Service
OFFICIAL RECEIVER’S OFFICE

One Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis 
Tel. No.: 202 0600

My Ref: SC/COM/MOT/00456/2018

Invictus Global Insurance Protected Cell 
Company Limited

Petitioner

v/s

IVM PCC CELLS 18,19, 20, 21, 22, 23, 
24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31 & 32

Respondent

Notice is hereby given that the Bankruptcy 
Division of the Supreme Court of Mauritius has on 
23rd day of July, 2018 at 11.30 a.m, ordered that a 
receiving order be issued against IVM PCC CELLS 
18,19,20,21,22, 23,24,25, 26,27, 28,29, 30, 31 
& 32 under the provisions of the Insolvency Act 
2009 and that the Official Receiver, be appointed 
Receiver of IVM PCC CELLS 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 
23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31 & 32.

Notice is also given that the Meeting of 
Contributories will be held at the Corporate and 
Business Registration Department, 11th Floor, One 
Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis,
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Business Registration Department, 11th Floor, One 
Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, 
on 10th day of September, 2020 at 13.45 hrs and 
that the Meeting of Creditors will be held at the 
same place and on the same day at 13.30 hrs.

Notice is also given that in case creditors having 
any claim whatsoever against the IVM PCC in 
respect of Cells 001, 003, 006, 007, 009 & 012 
and for that claim to be considered, a proof of 
debt verified by an affidavit in accordance with 
the Insolvency Act 2009 must be lodged with 
me not later than 13.15 hrs on the 10th day of 
September 2020.

Persons having in their possession any goods, 
chattels and other property whatsoever belonging 
to IVM PCC in respect of Cells 001,003,006, 007, 
009 & 012 are warned that they must deliver over 
same to me.

Dated: 25th August 2020

V. VIRASAMI 
Official Receiver & 

Provisional Liquidator
(Rec. No. 18/148467) 

the Official Receiver, be appointed Receiver IVM 
PCC CELLS 33, 35, 36, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42 & 43.

Notice is also given that the Meeting of 
Contributories will be held at the Corporate and 
Business Registration Department, 11th Floor, One 
Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, 
on 14th day of September, 2020 at 13.45 hrs and 
that the Meeting of Creditors will be held at the 
same place and on the same day at 13.30 hours.

Notice is also given that in case creditors having 
any claim whatsoever against the said IVM PCC 
CELLS 33, 35, 36, 38, 39, 40, 41,42 & 43 and for 
that claim to be considered, a proof of debt verified 
by an affidavit in accordance with the Insolvency 
Act 2009 must be lodged with me not later than 
13.15 hours on the 14th day of September, 2020.

Persons having in their possession any goods, 
chattels and other property whatsoever belonging 
to IVM PCC CELLS 33, 35, 36, 38, 39, 40, 41,42 
& 43 are warned that they must deliver over same 
to me.

Dated: 25th August 2020

V. VIRASAMI
Official Receiver & 

Provisional Liquidator 
(Rec. No. 18/148467)

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATION 
DEPARTMENT

Insolvency Service
OFFICIAL RECEIVER’S OFFICE

One Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis 
Tel. No.: 202 0600

My Ref: SC/COM/MOT/00456/2018

Invictus Global Insurance Protected Cell 
Company Limited

Petitioner

v/s

IVM PCC CELLS 44, 46, 48, 49, 50, 51, 
52, 53, 54, & 55

Respondent

Notice is hereby given that the Bankruptcy 
Division of the Supreme Court of Mauritius has 
on 23rd day of July, 2018 at 11.30 a.m, ordered 
that a receiving order be issued against IVM 

CORPORATE AND BUSINESS REGISTRATION 
DEPARTMENT

Insolvency Service
OFFICIAL RECEIVER’S OFFICE

One Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis 
Tel. No.: 202 0600

My Ref: SC/COM/MOT/00456/2018

Invictus Global Insurance Protected Cell 
Company Limited

Petitioner

v/s

IVM PCC CELLS 33, 35, 36, 38, 39, 
40, 41, 42 & 43

Respondent

Notice is. hereby given that the Bankruptcy 
Division of the Supreme Court of Mauritius has 
on 23rd day of July, 2018 at 11.30 a.m, ordered 
that a receiving order be issued against IVM PCC 
CELLS 33, 35, 36, 38, 39, 40, 41, 42 & 43 under 
the provisions of the Insolvency Act 2009 and that
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PCC CELLS 44, 46, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, 
& 55 under the provisions of the Insolvency Act 
2009 and that the Official Receiver, be appointed 
Receiver IVM PCC CELLS 44, 46, 48, 49, 50, 51, 
52, 53, 54, & 55.

Notice is also given that the Meeting of 
Contributories will be held at the Corporate and 
Business Registration Department, 11th Floor, One 
Cathedral Square, Jules Koenig Street, Port Louis, 
on 15th day of September, 2020 at 13.45 hrs and 
that the Meeting of Creditors will be held at the 
same place and on the same day at 13.30 hours.

Notice is also given that in case creditors having 
any claim whatsoever against the said IVM PCC 
CELLS 44, 46, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 54, & 55 
and for that claim to be considered, a proof of 
debt verified by an affidavit in accordance with 
the Insolvency Act 2009 must be lodged with 
me not later than 13.15 hours on the 15th day of 
September, 2020.

Persons having in their possession any goods, 
chattels and other property whatsoever belonging 
to IVM PCC CELLS 44, 46, 48, 49, 50, 51, 52, 53, 
54, & 55 are warned that they must deliver over 
same to me.

Dated: 25th August 2020
V. VIRASAMI 

Official Receiver & 
Provisional Liquidator 

(Rec. No. 18/148467)

- A second portion of land of the extent of 
139.98Acres or 56Ha 3,403m2 belonging to 
the company “COMPAGNIE MAURICIENNE 
D’HIPPODROMES LIMITEE” as per title 
deed transcribed in Vol. 3391 No. 27;
The said survey will start on Monday 28th of 

September 2020 at nine thirty (9.30) o’clock in 
the morning and will continue on the following 
days if need be.

The owners of the adjoining properties of the 
portion of the land above referred to, are called 
upon to attend the survey on the aforesaid date and 
time and to produce to me or to any other Land 
Surveyor deputed by me in case of impediment, 
their relevant title deeds or any other document 
which will allow me to establish and fix the 
boundaries of the abovementioned property.

Under all legal reservations.

Dated at Suite 203, Sterling Tower, Poudrière 
Street, Port Louis, this 3rd September 2020.

Girish Beechoo
Land Surveyor 

(Rec. No. 18/148479)

NOTICE OF APPLICATION FOR 
BUILDING AND LAND USE PERMIT
NOTICE FOR PERMISSION FOR LAND USE

Take notice that I Mohammud Neguib 
Jummun will apply to the District Council of 
Savanne for a Building & Land Use Permit for a 
proposed warehouse and storage having the right 
to sell cement, iron and steel bars at Railway Road, 
Tyack.

Any person feeling aggrieved by the proposal 
may lodge an objection in writing to the above- 
named Council within 15 days as from the date of 
this publication.

Date: 03.09.2020.
(Rec. No. 18/148450)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

ZUTARI AFRICA

Notice is hereby given that “ZUTARI 
AFRICA”, a GBC 1 Company, having its 

NOTICE UNDER
THE CADASTRAL SURVEY ACT 2011

Section 9(2a) & 9(3)

Notice is hereby given that, I, Mr. Girish 
Beechoo, Land Surveyor, shall at the request of 
the company PRIME REAL ESTATE LIMITED, 
proceed with the survey and fixing of boundary 
stones of two contiguous portions of land situated 
in the district of Moka, place called les Guibies, and > 
belonging to the following company as follows:

- A first portion of land; being the surplus of 
a portion of land of the original extent of 
323.45Acres or 130Ha 1,885m2 belonging to the 
company “GUIBIES PROPERTIES LIMITED” 
as per title deed transcribed in Vol. 3428 No. 52; 
and
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registered office at C/o JurisTax Ltd, Level 3, 
Ebene House, Hotel Avenue, 33 Cybercity, Ebene 
72201, Republic of Mauritius has by way of a 
special resolution of the sole shareholder of the 
Company passed on 21st July 2020, changed its 
name to “Zutari Africa Limited” as evidenced by 
a certificate given under the seal of the Registrar of 
Companies on 20th day of August 2020.

Date this 1st September 2020.

JurisTax Ltd 
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148481)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that AKUO ENERGY 
MADAGASCAR, has by its shareholder’s 
resolution passed on 10th day of July 2020 changed 
its name to Tulear Green Power as evidenced of a 
certificate issued by the Registrar of Companies on 
the 20th August 2020.

Date this 2nd September 2020.

Imara Trust Company (Mauritius) Limited
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148478)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that DSV AIR & 
SEA LTD has, by special resolution passed on 
11th August 2020 changed its name to FAMS 
AIR & SEA (Mauritius) Ltd as evidenced by a 
certificate issued by the Registrar of Companies on 
18th day August 2020.

Date this 28th day of August 2020.

Financial Consulting Associates Ltd
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148481)

Software Solutions Ltd as evidenced by the 
certificate given under the Hand and Seal of the 
Registrar of Companies dated 28th July 2020.

Dated this 31st August 2020.

MITCO Corporate Services Ltd 
(Rec. No. 18/148474) Company Secretary

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
MARK THORNTON SAFARIS LIMITED has, 
by way of a special resolution changed its name 
to Remote Wilderness Ltd as evidenced by the 
certificate given under the Hand and Seal of the 
Registrar of Companies dated 20 August 2020.

Dated this 24 August 2020.
Mauritius International Trust

Company Limited 
(Rec. No. 18/148473) Company Secretary

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that ‘Novalis Ltd’ has 
by special resolution on 10 August 2020, changed 
its name to ‘YANCA LTD’ as evidenced by the 
Certificate of Incorporation on change of name 
given under the hand of the Registrar of Companies 
dated 21 August 2020.

This 31sl day of August 2020.
SUNIBEL CORPORATE SERVICES LTD

Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148463)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that IC Asset Managers 
Holdings Limited has, by a special resolution 
passed on 4 August 2020 changed its name to 
ICAM Holdings Limited as evidenced by a 
certificate issued by the Registrar of Companies 
on 18 August 2020.

Dated this 1 September 2020.
AXIS Fiduciary Ltd 

(Rec. No. 18/148464) Company Secretary

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the company 
PLAYA DISTRIBUTION LTD has, by way of 
a special resolution changed its name to Creative
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “LA BRIOCHE DES 
LES LTD” a domestic company has, by special 
esolution passed on the 7 August 2020, changed 
ts name and is now operating, as evidenced by a 
Certificate of Incorporation on Change of Name 
ssued under the hand & seal of the Registrar 
)f Companies on the 18th of August 2020, as 
‘Dreamnboon Ltd”.

This 8 August 2020.

Company Secretary 
Rec. No. 18/148447)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that MAHJONG LTD 
has by a Special resolution changed its name to 
PKF CORPORATE SERVICES LTD as evidenced 
by a certificate given under the hand and seal of 
the Registrar of Companies dated 14 August 2020.

Date this 27 August 2020.

Director 
(Rec. No. 18/148418)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“NuAfrica Gas Limited”, having by a special 
resolution changed its name, is now incorporated 
under the name of “Intrasia Securities Limited”, 
as evidenced by a Certificate given under the seal 
of office of the Registrar of Companies dated 
21st August 2020.

Date this 31st August 2020.

Aslam Kanowah 
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148425) 

its name to “BIH Algérie”, as evidenced by a 
Certificate of Incorporation on Change on Name 
given under the hand and seal of the office of 
the Registrar of Companies dated 20th day of 
August 2020.

Dated this 26th day of August 2020.
Trident Trust Company (Mauritius) Limited

Company Secretary 
(Rec No. 18/148417)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 304 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

SEA HORSE TECHNOLOGIES LTD

Notice is hereby given

(1) That the above Company holding a 
Category 1 Global Business Licence has by 
special resolution passed on 12th December 
2019 resolve to apply under Section 302 for 
the Company to be removed from the Register 
for the purposes of becoming incorporated 
under the law in force in Ras Al Khaimah as a 
RAKICC company.

(2) That any objection to the removal under 
Section 304 shall be delivered to the Registrar 
of Companies not less than 28 days after the 
date of the notice, 22nd September 2020.

Date: 25th August 2020

Capital Horizons Ltd 
Management Company 

(Rec. No. 18/148458)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 309(l)(d) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that PIED PIPER 
PARTNERS LTD, a domestic company and having 
its registered office at 20 Lapeyrouse Street, 
Belle Rose, Rose Hill is on the 2nd June 2020 
applying to the Registrar of Companies to be 
removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby given that the company, 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 36(2)(c) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“Africinvest Ltd” has by a Shareholders’ 
resolutions passed on 25 June 2020, changed
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Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by not later than 28 days from the date of the notice.

3 September 2020
Jessen Soobrayen 

Director 
(Rec. No. 18/148482)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 309(l)(d) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Nuevo Asia Global 
Opportunities Fund (the “Company”), holding a 
Category 1 Global Business Licence and having 
its registered office address at C/o ADANSONIA 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES LIMITED, Suite 1, 
PERRIERI OFFICE SUITES, C2-302, Level 3, 
Office Block C, La Croisette, Grand Baie, 30517, 
Mauritius is applying to the Register of Companies 
for the removal of the Company from the Register 
under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies 
Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by latest the 31 September 2020.

Dated this 31 August 2020.

ADANSONIA MANAGEMENT 
SERVICES LIMITED, 

Company Secretary 
(Rec. No. 18/148449)
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Notice is hereby given that the company, 
has ceased to carry business, has’ discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by not later than 28 days from the date of the notice.

Date: 03/09/2020
Director

(Rec. No. 18/148466)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Schiering Venture Capital

Notice is hereby given

(1) That the above Company holding a 
Category 2 Global Business Licence and 
having its registered office at C/O Rogers 
Capital Corporate Services Limited, 3rd Floor, 
Rogers House, No. 5 President John Kennedy 
Street, Port Louis, Mauritius is to be removed 
from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

(2) That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors and distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its constitution and 
the Companies Act 2001.

(3) That any objection to the removal under 
Section 313 shall be delivered to the Registrar 
of Companies not less than 28 days after the 
date of the notice, at latest by 01 October 2020. 

Date: 04 September 2020

Rogers Capital Corporate Services Limited 
Registered Agent 

(Rec. No. 18/148465)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the ZIMITI 
CONSTRUCTION LTD, a Domestic Company 
and having its registered office at Lupin House, 
Ramchandar Road, Central Flacq, is on this day of 

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that BAMA 
COMMUNICATION LTD., a domestic company 
and having its registered office at 28, Avenue des 
Jamalacs, Coromandel is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies to be removed from the Register 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.
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18th day of August 2020 applying to the Registrar 
of Companies to be removed from the Register 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the company 
has ceased to carry business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
by not later than 28 days from the date of the notice.

18th August 2020

Vikramaditya Chakravarty Jeetah
Director 

(Rec. No. 18/148452)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that QUALITY IMPEX 
(MAURITIUS) CO LTD a domestic company and 
having its registered office at Ducray Road, Notre 
Dame Pamplemousses is to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business 
and has discharged in full its liabilities to all known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
made to the Registrar of Companies not later than 
28 days after publication of the notice.

Dated this 25/08/2020.
Director 

(Rec. No. 18/148408)

registered office at Belle Rose, Quatre Bomes, 
Republic of Mauritius is applying to the Registrar 
of Companies for removal from the Register of 
Companies under Section 309(2) of the Companies 
Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to 
all its known creditors, and has distributed its 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001, should be 
filed with the Registrar of Companies by no later 
than 28 days from the date of the notice.

Dated this 24th day of August 2020.

The Director

(Rec. No. 18/148481)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Lager Ltd 
(the “Company”), a Domestic Company with 
registration number 086596 Cl/GBL and having 
its registered office at C/o Toukan Corporate 
Services Limited, 5th Floor, The Core, 62 Ebene, 
Cybercity 72201, Mauritius, is applying to the 
Registrar of Companies for its removal from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309( 1 )(d) of 
the Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its 
known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 

’ be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
not later than 28 days of the date of this notice.

Dated this 2nd day of September 2020.

Toukan Corporate Services Limited 
Company Secretary

(Rec No. 18/148484)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

In the matter of:

B.F.F. CONSULTANCY SERVICES LTD

Notice is hereby given:

That B.F.F. CONSULTANCY SERVICES LTD (the 
“Company”), a Domestic Company and having its
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company “KRP 
GP Co Limited” having its Registered Office at 
3rd Floor, 355 NEX, Rue du Savoir, Cybercity, 
Ebene, Mauritius, is applying under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 to 
the Registrar of Companies for its removal from 
the Register of Companies on the grounds that 
the Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its 
known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

Objections if any should be filed with the 
Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days from 
the date of publication of this notice.

Dated this 28th day of August 2020.

Vistra (Mauritius) Limited
Company Secretary

(Rec No. 18/148461)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT-2001

Notice is hereby given that the company “LSC 
TEXTILE COMPANY LIMITED” having its 
registered office at 19 Des Carpes Str Elizabethville, 
Tombeau Bay to be removed from the Register 
of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001, on the following ground:

The Company has ceased to operate and has 
discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets 
in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal, under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies within 28 days of the 
date of this notice i.e. not later than 01/10/2020.

Dated this 03/09/2020.

Mrs Lin Sin Cho Ah Kiao
Director

(Rec No. 18/148471)

(Rec No. 18/148461)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Tantalum Property 
Holding Company, a Category 1 Global Business 
Company, having its registered office at 8th Floor, 
Ebene Tower, 52 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius is to 
be removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under Section 
313 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered 
to the Registrar of Companies at latest 28 days 
after the date of publication of dissolution.

Dated this 2nd September 2020.

Anex Management Services Limited 
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/148477)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that the Company 
“KRP Manager Limited” having its Registered 
Office at 3rd Floor, 355 NEX, Rue du Savoir, 
Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius, is applying under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 to 
the Registrar of Companies for its removal from 
the Register of Companies on the grounds that 
the Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its 
known creditors and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

Objections if any should be filed with the 
Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days from 
the date of publication of this notice.

Dated this 28th day of August 2020.

Vistra (Mauritius) Limited
Company Secretary
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NOTICE GIVEN UNDER SECTION 311(2) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

(“the Act”)

Notice is hereby given that Maple Mountain 
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), having its 
registered office at Suite 11, First Floor, Plot 42 
Hotel Street, Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Mauritius 
is applying to be removed from the Register of 
Companies under Section 309(1 )(d) of the Act.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Act.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Act is to be made in 
writing to the Registrar of Companies by latest 
28 days from the date of this publication.

Dated this 28th August 2020.

GFin Corporate Services Ltd
Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148483)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Indi Yuva Ltd
Notice is hereby given that Indi Yuva Ltd, 

having its registered office at Fifth Floor, Ebene 
Esplanade, 24 Bank Street, Cybercity, Mauritius, is 
applying to the Registrar of Companies to remove 
the Company from the register of companies, 
in accordance with Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

The Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its known 
creditors, and has distributed its surplus assets in 
accordance with the Companies Act 2001.

Objections, if any, should be lodged with the 
Registrar of Companies, 1 Cathedral Square, Pope 
Hennessy Street, Port Louis, Mauritius, not later 
than 28 days from the date of the notice.

Dated this 28th day of August 2020.

International Proximity
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148476)

(Rec. No. 18/148483)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Econet Renewable Energy Systems Limited
Notice is hereby given that “Econet Renewable 

Energy Systems Limited”, a Category 2 Global 
Business Licence Company of 10th Floor, Standard 
Chartered Tower, 19 Cybercity, Ebene, Mauritius, 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies for its 
removal from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 on 
the grounds that the company has ceased to carry 
on business, has discharged in full its liabilities 
to all its known creditors and has distributed its 
surplus assets in accordance with its Constitution 
and the Companies Act 2001 effective as from 
30th August 2019.

Any objection under Section 312 of the 
Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to the 
Registrar of Companies not less than 28 days of 
the date of this notice.

Dated this 31st day of August 2020.

DTOS Ltd 
(Rec. No. 18/148481) Company Secretary

NOTICE GIVEN UNDER SECTION 311(2) 
OF THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

(“the Act”)

Notice is hereby given that Feedbridge Equity 
Holdings Limited (the “Company”), having its 
registered office at C/o GFin Corporate Services 
Ltd, Level 6, GFin Tower, 42 Hotel Street, 
Cybercity, Ebene 72201, Mauritius is applying to 
be removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Act.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with the Act.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Act is to be made in 
writing to the Registrar of Companies by latest 
28 days from the date of this publication.

Dated this 24th August 2020.

GFin Corporate Services Ltd
Company Secretary
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “HM FREEPORT 
LTD”, a domestic company, having its Registered 
office at 18 Edith Cavell Street, Port Louis is to 
be removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d)(i) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days 
after the date of publication of this notice.

Dated this 5 September 2020.

HM Secretaries Ltd. 
(Rec. No. 18/148485) Company Secretary

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “INDIALLEY 
LTD”, a domestic company, having its Registered 
office at 18 Edith Cavell Street, Port Louis is to 
be removed from the Register of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d)(i) of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days 
after the date of publication of this notice.

Dated this 5 September 2020.

HM Secretaries Ltd.
Company Secretary 

(Rec. No. 18/148485) 

having its Registered office at, 18 Edith Cavell 
Street, Port Louis is to be removed from the 
Register of Companies under Section 309(1 )(d)(i) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

Notice is hereby also given that the Company 
has ceased to carry on business, has discharged in 
full its liabilities to all known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal under Section 312 
of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered to 
the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days 
after the date of publication of this notice.

Dated this 5 September 2020.

HM Secretaries Ltd.
Company Secretary

(Rec. No. 18/148485)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that BOURBON 
COFFEE HOLDINGS INTERNATIONAL LTD 
(the “Company”), a Category 2 Global Business 
Licence Company, having its registered office 
at Suites 340-345, Barkly Wharf, Le Caudan 
Waterfront, P.O. Box 1070, Port Louis, Republic 
of Mauritius is to be removed from the Register of 
Companies in accordance with Section 309(1 )(d) 
of the Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on 
business, has discharged in full its liabilities to all 
its known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under 
Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be 
delivered to the Registrar of Companies not later 
than 28 days after the date of publication of this 
notice.

Dated this 27 August 2020.

AAMIL (Mauritius) Ltd 
Registered Agent

(Rec. No. 18/148443)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that “HAMAC EXPORT 
SERVICES LIMITED”, a domestic company,
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NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given that Fiducia Ventures 
Ltd a Domestic Company having its registered 
office at 205 Morcellement Terre D’Albion Albion 
is applying to the Registrar of Companies under 
Section 309(1 )(d) of the Companies Act 2001 to 
request the Registrar to remove the Company from 
the register.

Notice is also given that the Company has 
ceased to carry on business, has discharged in full 
its liabilities to all its known creditors, and has 
distributed its surplus assets in accordance with the 
Companies Act 2001.

Any objection to the removal of the Company 
under Section 312 of the Companies Act 2001 is to 
be made in writing to the Registrar of Companies 
at latest by 02.10.2020.

Date: 01/09/2020
Emi lien Natacha Amy 

Director 
(Rec. No. 18/148451)

NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT 2001

Notice is hereby given:

That BLUEWALL TRADING (the “Company”), 
a Category 2 Global Business License Company, 
having its registered office at Suites 340-345, 
Barkly Wharf, Le Caudan Waterfront, P.O. Box 
1070, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius is to 
be removed from the register of companies 
in accordance with Section 309(1 )(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.

That the Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its 
known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.
That any objection to the removal under Section 
312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered 
to the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days 
after the date of publication of this notice.

Dated this 27 August 2020.
AAMIL (Mauritius) Ltd 

(Rec. No. 18/148420) Registered Agent
NOTICE UNDER SECTION 311(2) OF 

THE COMPANIES ACT 2001
Notice is hereby given:

That Arinsky Global Ltd (the “Company”), a 
Category 2 Global Business License Company, 
having its registered office at Suites 340-345, 
Barkly Wharf, Le Caudan Waterfront, P.O. Box 
1070, Port Louis, Republic of Mauritius is to 
be removed from the register of companies 
in accordance with Section 309(l)(d) of the 
Companies Act 2001.
That the Company has ceased to carry on business, 
has discharged in full its liabilities to all its 
known creditors, and has distributed its surplus 
assets in accordance with its Constitution and the 
Companies Act 2001.

That any objection to the removal under Section 
312 of the Companies Act 2001 shall be delivered 
to the Registrar of Companies not later than 28 days 
after the date of publication of this notice.

Dated this 27 August 2020.

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Renuka Devi BEELUR of Royal Road 
Ripailles, Saint Pierre have applied to the Director 
General of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for 
the issue of a new licence of Retailer of Liquor and 
Alcoholic Products - Off in respect of premises 
situated at Royal Road Ripailles.

Any objection to the issue of the above licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, C/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Jayantee Seechum
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148411)

AAMIL (Mauritius) Ltd
Registered Agent

(Rec. No. 18/148420)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Varsha Jumangalsing of Royal Road, 
Belle Mare have applied to the Director General
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of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the issue 
of a new licence of Retailer in liquor and alcoholic 
products - off in respect of premises situated at 
Royal Road, Belle Mare.

Any objection to the issue of the above Licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, c/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis, within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Varsha Jumangalsing
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148444)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Preeti Rughoobin of Tagore Road, 
Pointe aux Piments have applied to the Director 
General of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for 
the issue of a new licence of Retailer in liquor and 
alcoholic products - off in respect of premises 
situated at Tagore Road, Pointe aux Piments.

Any objection to the issue of the above Licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, c/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis, within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Preeti Rughoobin
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148441)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Marie Shirley Lajolie of No. 28, Aimé 
Jocelyn Vigoureux, Roche Bois have applied to 
the Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the issue of a new licence of Retailer 
of liquor and alcoholic products - off in respect 
of premises situated at No. 28, Aimé Jocelyn 
Vigoureux, Roche Bois.

Any objection to the issue of the above Licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, c/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis, within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Marie Shirley Lajolie
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148438)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Rohoni Rungasamy of Middle Road, 
Plaine-des-Papayes have applied to the Director 
General of the Mauritius Revenue Authority for 
the issue of a new licence of Retailer in liquor and 
alcoholic products - off in respect of premises 
situated at Middle Road, Plaine-des-Papayes.

Any objection to the issue of the above Licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, c/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis, within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Rohoni Rungasamy
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148440)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

Xicom Ltd of Nenuphar Avenue, Flic en Flac 
has applied to the Director General of the Mauritius 
Revenue Authority for the issue of a new licence of 
Retailer of liquor and alcoholic products - Hotel/ 
Guest House in respect of premises situated at Cnr 
Nenuphar Avenue, Seabreeze Lane, Flic en Flac.

Any objection to the issue of the above Licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Bhee Foon Lung Tak Chuen of 
21, Joseph Rivière Street, Port Louis have applied 
to the Director General of the Mauritius Revenue 
Authority for the transfer of a licence of Retailer of 
beer and alcoholic beverages in respect of premises 
situated at 21, Joseph Rivière Street, Port Louis to 
Hong Kong Fast Food Ltd.

Any objection to the issue of the above Licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, c/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis, within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Bhee Foon Lung Tak Chuen
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148436)
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Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, c/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis, within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Xicom Ltd 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/148453)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mrs Bharty Boodhun of Royal Road, 
Bramsthan have applied to the Director General of 
the Mauritius Revenue Authority for the transfer 
of a licence of Retailer in liquor and alcoholic 
products - on & off in respect of premises situated 
at Royal Road, Bramsthan to Mr Prithviraj 
Boodhun.

Any objection to the issue of the above Licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, c/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis, within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mrs Bharty Boodhun
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148457)

has applied to the Director General of the Mauritius 
Revenue Authority for the issue of a new licence 
of Retailer of liquor and alcoholic products - 
Restaurant in respect of premises situated at Circle 
Square, Forbach.

Any objection to the issue of the above Licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, c/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis, within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Ava Catering Services Ltd 
Applicant

(Rec. No. 18/148481)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

I, Mr Pentanah Ramiah of D 5, Cité Longtill 
La Sourdine, L’escalier have applied to the Director 
General of the Mauritius Revenue Authority 
for the transfer of a licence of Retailer in liquor 
and alcoholic products - on & off in respect of 
premises situated at D 5, Cité Longtill La Sourdine, 
L’escalier to Mr Annandah Ramiah.

Any objection to the issue of the above Licence, 
should be made to the Director General, Mauritius 
Revenue Authority, Ehram Court, c/r Monseigneur 
Gonin & Sir Virgil Naz Streets, Port Louis, within 
21 days as from date published in the Gazette.

Mr Pentanah Ramiah
Applicant 

(Rec. No. 18/148480)

APPLICATION FOR THE ISSUE OF A LICENCE 
UNDER PART III OF THE EXCISE ACT

Ava Catering Services Ltd of Level 3, Ebene
House, Hotel Avenue, 33 Cybercity, Ebene 72201
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PUBLIC NOTICE

Revocation of the Banking Licence 
of Century Banking Corporation Ltd

2 September 2020

On 24 August 2020, the Bank of Mauritius (‘Bank’) revoked the Islamic Banking 
Licence of Century Banking Corporation Ltd (CBC) with immediate effect under 
section 17 of the Banking Act 2004.
In terms of section 17(3) of the Banking Act 2004, CBC was entitled to make 
representations to the Bank, within 7 days of the revocation of its Licence, that is by 
31 August 2020. The Bank did not receive any representation from CBC.
Members of the public are hereby informed that the Islamic Banking Licence issued to 
CBC on 3 September 2010 stands revoked with effect from 24 August 2020.

Bank of Mauritius

BANK OF MAURITIUS Sir William Newton Street, Port Louis, Mauritius

Telephone: +230 202 3800 Email: communications@born.mil Website: www.bom.mu

(Rec. No. 18/148491)

born.mil
http://www.bom.mu
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT END JULY 2020

July 2020 June 2020
Rs Rs

ASSETS Provisional Provisional
Foreign Assets __________________ ______________
Cash and Cash Equivalents 67,068,490,144 68,431,867,971
Gold Deposits 31,600,572,634 28,532,838,174
Financial Assets held at Fair Value Through Other 
Comprehensive Income 95,742,003,403 82,123,166,146
Financial Assets held at Fair Value Through Profit 
or Loss 111,104,690,000 109,864,540,768

305,515,756,181 288,952,413,059
Domestic Assets
Financial Assets held at Amortised Cost 31,463,881,606 31,696,329,950
Financial Assets held at Fair Value Through Profit 
or Loss 1,000,000,000 -
Computer Software 21,118,174 21,118,174
Property, Plant and Equipment 1,798,823,089 1,797,507,333
Other Assets 321,666,146 316,028,942

34,605,489,015 33,830,984,399

TOTAL ASSETS 340,121,245,196 322,783,397,458

LIABILITIES
Currency in Circulation
Demand Deposits

42,590,107,302 42,331,745,837

Government 25,654,019,221 26,964,258,755
Banks 114,505,860,609 110,215,588,447
Other Financial Institutions 369,959,023 755,544,219
Others 1,451,166,484 620,597,232

TOTAL LIABILITIES 289,121,786,548 277,481,853,864

141,981,005,337 138,555,988,653
Monetary Policy Instruments 87,490,683,978 79,636,899,823
Provisions 100,000,000 100,000,000
Employee Benefits 992,591,601 955,400,866
Other Liabilities 15,967,398,330 15,901,818,685

CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Stated and Paid Up Capital 10,000,000,000 2,000,000,000
Reserves 35,213,719,967 43,301,543,594

45,213,719,967 45,301,543,594
Total Comprehensive Income 5,785,738,681

TOTAL LIABILITIES, CAPITAL AND RESERVES 340,121,245,196 322,783,397,458

3 August 2020
(Rec. No. 18/148492)
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TR 209

Facts

G is a UK registered not-for-profit body corporate and is registered as a Scottish Charity. It 

offers degree programmes.

P is a company incorporated in Mauritius and is engaged in the provision of educational 

services. It is registered with the Tertiary Education Commission (“TEC”) in Mauritius but not 

registered with Mauritius Qualification Authority (“MQA”). G is not registered either with the 

TEC or the MQA.

G and P are not related entities. They have entered into an Agreement whereby G and P will 

collaborate to provide higher education to students in Mauritius and, in particular to facilitate 

learning to enable students to attain degrees which are conferred by G as the sole awarding 

body.

Delivery of teaching service will be at the premises of P.

The Agreement will span over 12 years for the delivery of the following degree 

Programme(s):

- BA (Hons) Business Management

BA (Hons) Social Sciences

- BSc (Hons) Computing

- BSc (Hons) Applied Psychology

The first year of the degree programmes will be delivered solely by P and the second, third 

and fourth year degree programmes will be provided by both G and P. However, in the case 

where P cannot deliver the correct level and skills of staff during the first year of the degree 

programme, G will take delivery and charge P a higher rate for same.

An academic year consists of 3 trimesters. Each trimester lasts an average of 15 weeks. It is 

estimated that overall the fly-in-fly-out staff of G will spend not more than 3 weeks in 

Mauritius in any trimester

The delivery model will be a blended service with part of the degree being delivered online to 

students via e-leaming and partly by face-to-face teaching. P will maintain at its own 
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expenses appropriate offices, teaching facilities, equipment, administration facilities and 

systems as may be necessary for the effective performance of its duties under the Agreement.

P will allow G and its authorised representatives, at any reasonable time, to have access to the 

teaching premises for the purpose of ongoing assurance and confirmation of the academic 

environment to support the delivery of the Programmes.

The Agreement between G and P further provides for, inter alia the following -

• G will have ultimate responsibility and discretion in respect of the award of 

qualifications to students.

• All Programme Documents and teaching materials or content provided by P for the 

purpose of delivering the Programme(s) will be reviewed and approved by G prior to 

use of the same on the Programme(s).

• Both G and P recognise that the financial arrangements applicable to the Programme 

will be monitored and reviewed by both parties throughout the Term. Any changes 

required to the financial arrangements as a result of any monitoring or review activity 

will be discussed and agreed in writing by both Parties before implementation by the 

Parties without prejudice to the remainder of the Agreement.

• The Parties recognise and agree that all publicity and promotional activity relating to 

all programmes and awards offered or made in its name, including the Programmes or 

use of G’s Trade Marks, service marks, trade names, logos or other references to G or 

other indicia is subject to final approval of G and P shall not issue any such public 

information or undertake any such publicity or use G’s Trade Marks, service marks, 

trade names, logos or make other references to G or other indicia, without the prior 

written consent of G. P shall not publicise the Programmes in any way without the 

prior written consent of G.

• The Parties recognise and agree that all publicity and promotional activity relating to 

the Programmes (whether or not reference is made to the G) is subject to final 

approval of G.

• P will develop and operate an educational institution which will conform to the 

standards already in practice at G. The programme management structure specified in 

the programme documents will be developed (recognising the different organisational 

structures and personel of P) to maintain the university’s quality assurance standards.
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• P shall recruit academic staff that, in the reasonable opinion of G, 'shall be 

appropriately qualified to support the delivery of the Programmes to the standard set 

out in G Quality Enhancement and Assurance Handbook.

• G will provide to P the current generic role profiles for academic staff and where 

applicable the specific role profiles for the Programmes which can be used by P when 

developing the role profiles of their academic staff.

• G will ensure that external examining procedures for the Programmes are comparable 

to those of internal programmes and that these are applied in accordance with the 

system set out in the University Assessment Regulations.

• The Parties recognise and agree that the admission requirements and acceptable entry 

qualifications for students joining the Programmes shall be set by and be at the sole 

discretion of G. The final decision as to whether a student is accepted onto each 

Programme rests solely with G.

• The Parties recognise and agree that the responsibility and control for the production 

of degree parchments and academic transcripts for students exiting the Programmes 

rests solely with G.

According to the Financial Arrangements between the Parties, G will invoice P for two types 

of costs each year, namely -

(i) Separately billable amounts ; and

(ii) Per student per annum charge.

The separately billable amounts are to be agreed annually ahead of the start of the academic 

year.

Points at issue

1. Whether G will be subject to income tax in Mauritius?

2. Whether G will be subject to Tax Deduction at Source (“TDS”) in Mauritius?

3. Whether payments made to G with relation to the services like access to G’s student 

on-line systems, access to library systems, student registration and administration 

services, graduation and brand will be considered as a royalty payment made by P?
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4. Whether employees of G coming to Mauritius for periods not exceeding six months to 

deliver courses with regards to the degree programmes will be subject to Pay As You 

Earn (“PAYE”) in Mauritius?

5. Whether G should be VAT registered in Mauritius?

6. Whether reverse charge should be applicable on the services provided by G to P?

Ruling

On the basis of the facts provided : -

1. G is conducting business in Mauritius on the premises of P for the delivery of degree 

programmes, the award parchment of which bears the signatures of the authorities of 

G only as the sole awarding body. G will therefore be considered to have a permanent 

establishment in Mauritius and will be subject to income tax in respect of the income 

it derives from the delivery of the degree programmes in Mauritius.

2. G will not be subject to TDS in Mauritius. It will have to submit an annual return of 

income declaring the income derived and the related allowable deductions.

3. In the light of the reply to question (1) and (2), the issue of royalty does not arise.

4. Since G will have a Permanent Establishment in Mauritius, Article 15 of the DTAA 

between UK and Mauritius will apply regarding the taxation of the teaching staff of 

G. In accordance with sections 2 and 82(1 )(c) of the Income Tax Act, G will be 

declared to be an absentee and P will be deemed to be an agent of the absentee 

respectively. P will be required to operate the PAYE system in respect of the lecturers 

sent by G. Being given that Article 15 is subject to Article 21 which provides for an 

exemption period of 2 years, the lecturers who qualify for the exemption may submit 

an income tax return on the due date and claim refund of the tax deducted under the 

PAYE system.

5. G will not have any obligation to apply for VAT registration in Mauritius since 

educational services provided in Mauritius is an exempt supply by virtue of item 16(a) 

of the First Schedule to the Value Added Tax Act.

6. Being given that G will have a Permanent Establishment in Mauritius and educational 

services are exempted from VAT, the question of reverse charge does not apply.
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TR 210

Facts

C, a company incorporated in Mauritius has received an order from D, a company based in 

Zimbabwe. Owing to foreign exchange controls in Zimbabwe, D has suggested that the order 

be channelled through M.

M currently holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence under the Financial Services Act 

and forms part of the same group of companies as D. M will report each transaction as a 

purchase of goods from C and a corresponding sale to D but the goods will not be subject to 

any process by M.

For purposes of the Bill of Lading, the shipper and the consignee will be C and D 

respectively. The terms of the shipment will be Free on Board. The goods will leave the 

warehouse of C and will be loaded directly to a ship such that M will not take any physical 

possession of the goods. However, on the Customs declaration, M will appear as the exporter 

and D will be the importer.

C will receive cash from M and the trade debt of M will be settled by its holding company. D 

and M have certain financial arrangements whereby the trade debt of D from M will be 

settled over a period of time.

Point at issue

Whether the sales made by C to M will qualify for the 3% tax rate on export of goods?

Ruling

Based on the above facts, C will be selling goods to M, a company incorporated in Mauritius. 

Consequently, the sales to M will not be a transaction falling under Section 44B of the 

Income Tax Act and will be subject to tax at the rate of 15%.
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TR211

Facts

Eisa UK registered not for profit body corporate and is a Scottish charity. It is tax resident in 

the UK and it delivers degree programmes.

P is a company incorporated in Mauritius and is engaged in the provision of educational 
services. It is registered with the Tertiary Education Commission (“TEC”) and Mauritius 
Qualification Authority (“MQA”) in Mauritius.

E and P which are not related entities have entered into a Collaboration Agreement whereby 

they will collaborate to deliver a degree programme in International Hospitality Management 

(“the Programme”) to students in Mauritius.

The course will run over 2 years. Each year will comprise of 3 trimesters. E will supply the 

undergraduate degree course materials. The tutors will comprise of local tutors appointed by 

P as well as 3 members of E’s staff who will teach in Mauritius for a total of 30 days per 

year.

Overall fees for the Programme in Mauritius will be collected by P. E will invoice P 50% of 

the overall fees. E will not contract directly with the Mauritius students.

The Collaboration Agreement between E and P is for an initial term of 5 years and may be 

renewed before the expiry of the term. The Agreement provides inter alia, for the following:-

• The degree Programme will be dispensed on the premises of P, which will have to 

maintain at its own expense appropriate offices, teaching facilities equipment, 

administration facilities and systems.

• E will have the responsibility for ensuring academic standards and quality assurance 

of the Programme. In particular -

o E will ensure that all procedures and decisions relating to the Programme 

provided under the Agreement are based on E’s Regulations which are 

systematic and open to scrutiny.

o E will ensure that the academic standards of all awards provided under the 

Agreement are compatible with relevant benchmark information recognised 

within the United Kingdom.

o The qualification conferred at the end of the Programme will be equal in 

academic standing to that conferred on successful completion of the same or 

comparable internal E programmes.



5 September 2020 3317

o Both E and P recognise that the final responsibility and accountability for the 

academic standards of the Programme, or any element of the Programme, rests 

with E.

o Both E and P recognise that final responsibility and accountability for quality 

assurance arrangements applicable to the Programme, or any element of the 

Programme, rests with E.

• Both E and P recognise that final accountability for the submission requirements and 

acceptable entry qualifications for students joining the Programme and the final 

decision as to whether a student is accepted rests with E.

• Both E and P recognise that final responsibility and accountability for the control and 

accuracy of all public information, publicity and promotional activity relating to all 

programmes and awards offered or made in its name, including the Programme or use 

of any E logo, name or indica rests with E and P shall not issue any such public 

information or undertake any such publicity or use any E logo, name or other indica, 

without prior written consent and approval of E.

• Both E and P recognise that final responsibility for the issue and control of award 

certificates, diploma supplements and transcripts associated with the Programme rests 

with E.

• Both E and P recognise that information provided to prospective students and to those 

registered on the Programme must be comparable with that given to internal E 

prospective or registered students.

Points at issue

1. Whether E will be treated as having a Permanent Establishment in Mauritius?

2. Whether E staff coming to Mauritius would be subject to PAYE?

3. Whether social security contributions are applicable for E staff sent to Mauritius?

Ruling

On the basis of facts mentioned above,

1. The Collaboration Agreement between E and P will span over several years and goes 

beyond the supply of course materials and three teaching staff for 30 days per academic 

year. Having regard to the many features or elements of a partnership business which is 

evident from the terms of the collaboration agreement, E will be considered to be 
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conducting business in Mauritius on the premises of P. E will therefore be treated as 

having a Permanent Establishment in Mauritius.

2. As E will have a Permanent Establishment in Mauritius, Article 15 of the DTAA between 

UK and Mauritius will apply regarding the taxation of the teaching staff of E. In 

accordance with sections 2 and 82(1 )(c) of the Income Tax Act, E will be declared to be 

an absentee and P will be deemed to be an agent of the absentee respectively. The Partner 

will be required to operate the PAYE system in respect of lecturers sent by E. Being 

given that Article 15 is subject to Article 21 which provides for an exemption period of 2 

years, the lecturers who qualify for the exemption period of 2 years, the lecturers who 

qualify for the exemption may submit an Income Tax return on the due date and claim 

refund of the tax deducted under the PAYE system.

3. E staff in Mauritius will not be required to pay social security contributions.
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VATR 86

Facts

B, a company incorporated in Mauritius has received an order from D, a company based in 

Zimbabwe. Owing to foreign exchange controls in Zimbabwe, D has suggested that the order 

be channelled through M.

M currently holds a Category 1 Global Business Licence under the Financial Services Act 

and forms part of the same group of companies as D. M will report each transaction as a 

purchase of goods from B and a corresponding sale to D but the goods will not be subject to 

any process by M.

For purposes of the Bill of Lading, the shipper and the consignee will be B and D 

respectively. The terms of the shipment will be Free on Board. The goods will leave the 

warehouse of B and will be loaded directly to a ship such that M will not take any physical 

possession of the goods. However, on the Customs declaration, M will appear as the exporter 

and D will be the importer.

B will receive cash from M and the trade debt of M will be settled by its holding company. D 

and M have certain financial arrangements whereby the trade debt of D from M will be 

settled over a period of time.

Point at issue

Whether the sales made by the company to M will be subject to VAT at zero-rate?

Ruling

Based on the above facts, B will be selling goods to M, a company incorporated in Mauritius. 

The supply of goods by B to M will not fall within the ambit of Item 1 of the Fifth Schedule 

to the VAT Act as the supply will not constitute goods exported from Mauritius under 

Customs control. Therefore, the supply will be subject to VAT at standard rate.

(Rec. No. 18/148486)
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REPORT OF THE

DIRECTOR OF AUDIT

On the Financial Statements
of the District Council of Rivière du Rempart 
for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016

———— NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE————_
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

Report of The Director of Audit

To The District Council of Rivière du Remp art

Report on the Financial Statements

I have audited the financial statements of The District Council of Rivière du Rempart which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2016, and the statement of 
comprehensive income, statement of changes in net assets/equity and the statement of cash flow 
for the six-month period then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements 
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), and for such internal 
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. 
I conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards of Supreme Audit Institutions. 
Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit 
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and 
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s 
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
misstatements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risks assessments, the auditor 
considers internal control relevant to The District Council of Rivière du Rempart’s preparation 
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of The District Council of Rivière du Rempart’s internal control. An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

14lh Floor, Air Mauritius Centre, John Kennedy Street, Port Louis - Mauritius 
Tel.: 212 2096-97/211 0882 Fax: (230)211 0880
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I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my qualified audit opinion.

Basis for Qualified Opinion

Public Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment - Rs 163,405,206

Property, Plant and Equipment allocated to The Rivière du Rempart District Council amounted 
to Rs 258,592,970 as at 1 January 2013, following the split of councils. The net book value of 
assets was however, accounted at Rs 45,121,428. This excluded land, buildings, roads, drains 
and street lighting networks. The accuracy of this opening balance could not be ascertained.

Survey of buildings were carried out and some Rs 66 million relating to prior years was 
accounted in financial statements for the six-month period ended 30 June 2016. Land, roads, 
drains and street lighting networks were not accounted for.

In the absence of an updated Fixed Assets Register and periodical survey of assets, the existence 
and conditions of assets could not be ascertained.

Cash and Cash Equivalent - Rs 61,071,983

The Council did not keep cash books nor perform bank reconciliations for the year ended 
31 December 2014. No explanation could be provided for adjustments made in respect of prior 
years. Hence, the completeness and accuracy of Cash and Cash Equivalent could not be 
ascertained.

Qualified Opinion

In my opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described in the Basis for Qualified 
Opinion paragraph, the attached financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of The District Council of Rivière du Rempart as at 30 June 2016 and of its statement of 
financial performance for the six-month period then ended in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Emphasis of Matter

I draw attention to Notes 32 and 33 of the financial statements, wherein it is reported that the 
Arbitrator has issued a final Award in favour of a contractor for the payment of compound 
interest until date of final settlement on capital payment of Rs 72.3 million. The contingent 
liability of Rs 427,324,630 was disclosed. The Council has lodged a case of Recours en 
Annidation to set aside the award as it has been issued after the prescribed mandate of arbitration.

My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.
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Other Matter

The current version of ISSAI 1700 -Forming an Opinion and Reporting on Financial 
Statements is effective for audits of financial statements for periods ending on or after 
15 December 2016. The form and content of this report are in accordance with the preceding 
version of the ISSAI as the financial statements relate to a period ending prior to 15 December 
2016.

Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Management’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial statements 
described above, management is also responsible for ensuring that the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in compliance with the laws 
and authorities which govern them.

Auditor’s Responsibility

In addition to the responsibility to express an opinion on the financial statements described 
above, my responsibility includes expressing an opinion on whether the activities, financial 
transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are, in all material respects, in 
compliance with the laws and authorities which govern them. This responsibility includes 
performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about whether The District Council of Rivière du 
Rempart's expenditure and income have been applied to the purposes intended by those charged 
with governance. Such procedures include the assessment of the risks of material 
non-compliance.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis 
for my qualified opinion.

Opinion on Compliance

Local Government Act

The financial statements of The District Council of Rivière du Rempart for the six-month period 
ended 30 June 2016 were submitted on 19 December 2016 that is more than one month after the 
statutory time limit. Following examination of financial statements, various amendments were 
deemed necessary. The amended financial statements were submitted on 14 November 2019.

In my opinion, except for the late submission of the financial statements, in all material respects, 
the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in 
compliance with the Local Government Act.



3324 The Mauritius Government Gazette

Public Procurement Act

The District Council of Rivière du Rempart is responsible for the planning and conduct of its 
procurement. It is also responsible for defining and choosing the appropriate method of 
procurement and contract type in accordance with the provisions of the Act and relevant 
Regulations. My responsibility is to report on whether the provisions of Part V of the Act 
regarding the Bidding Process have been complied with.

In my opinion, the provisions of Part V of the Act have been complied with as far as it appears 
from my examination of the relevant records.

C. ROMOOAH
Director of Audit

National Audit Office
Level 14,
Air Mauritius Centre
PORT LOUIS

24 August 2020
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT 30JUNE2016

31 December

NOTES 30 June 2016 2015
Restated

ASSETS

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Public Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment 4 163,405,206 153,670,612
Land 6 45,611,396 45,611,396
Intangible Assets 5 263,086 268,454
Investments 15 732,252 732,252
Receivables 8 1,046,873 1,502,742

211,058,814 201,785,456
CURRENT ASSETS

Inventories 7 3,442,955 1,892,058
Receivables 8 30,117,461 11,884,552
Work-in-Progress 30 2,179,615 2,128,728
Investments 15 10,000,000 10,000,000
Cash and Cash Equivalent 9 61,071,983 49,290,337

106,812,014 75,195,675

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Payables 10 150,294,935 35,902,371
Borrowings 11 2,224,000 2,224,000
Employee Benefits 12 13,218,716 13,357,640

165,737,651 51,484,011

NET CURRENT (LIABILITIES) / ASSETS ( 58,925,637 ) 23,711,664

LESS: NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 11 14,510,000 14,972,000
Deferred Income 14 101,406,938 87,268,725
Employee Benefits 12 54,419,348 50,361,596
Employee Retirement Benefit Obligation 13 231,585,464 219,219,188

401,921,750 371,821,509

NET LIABILITIES ( 249,788,574 ) ( 146,324,390 )

GENERAL FUND AND RESERVES

Accumulated Deficit ( 362,107,237 ) ( 258,475,453 )

Reserves 16 112,318,663 112,151,063

TOTAL NET LIABILITIES / EQUITY ( 249,788,574 ) ( 146,324,390 )

Approved by Council at its meeting of 30 October 2019.

CHAIRMAN

The notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of the financial statements.

1
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART 
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Notes
Six Months 

Ended 
30 June 2016

Year Ended 
31 December 2015

RS RS
Revenue

Trade Fees 17,488,400 33,385,700
Government Grant 14 98,218,825 171,523,029
Building & Land Use Permit Fee 4,895,078 7,851,727
Interest Income 473,928 1,121,598
Rent Income 17 2,840,955 5,605,760
Other Revenue 17 3,016,905 7,609,694

Total Revenue 126,934,091 227,097,509

Expenses by Nature:

Compensation of Employees 18 60,689,345 100,929,630
Utilities 19 11,329,979 23,023,459
Repair and Maintenance 20 2,177,694 7,909,588
Motor Vehicle Expenses 21 1,744,126 4,178,406
Employee Benefits 28 11,961,038 18,310,704
Audit and Legal fees 22 550,207 2,279,709
Grants and Subsidies 23 5,320,661 8,746,175
Other Goods and Services 24 100,777,416 23,850,155
Finance Cost 26 11,611,828 959,450
Depreciation of Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets 4 21,043,307 23,579,684

Total Expenses

Deficit/surplus for the period/ year

Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Employee Retirement Benefit Obligation 13

Total Comprehensive Deficit

227,205,601 213,766,959

( 100,271,510 ) 13,330,549

( 12,061,484 )

( 112,332,994 )

( 19,265,912 )

( 5,935,363 )

The notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of the financial statements.

2
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS / EQUITY

FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Surplus of cash of Rs 8,868,810 transferred to Council from the Ex-PRDC after winding-up.

Passage Fund
Land Revaluation 

Reserve
Accumulated 

Deficit Total

RS RS RS RS

Balance At 01 January 2015 0 83,165,221 ( 248,953,261 ) ( 165,788,041 )

Surplus for the year - - ( 5,935,362 ) ( 5,935,362 )
Prior year adjustments
Other Comprehensive Income for

- - ( 3,313,307 ) ( 3,313,307 )

the year 273,523 - ( 273,523 ) -
Land revaluation - 28,712,320 - 28,712,320

Balance At 31 December 2015 273,523 111,877,540 ( 258,475,454 ) ( 146,324,390 )

Balance At 01 January 2016 273,523 111,877,540 ( 258,475,454 ) ( 146,324,390 )

Prior year adjustment 8,868,810 8,868,810
Surplus for the period - - ( 112,332,994 ) ( 112,332,994 )
Other Comprehensive Income for 
the period 167,599 - ( 167,599 ) -

Balance At 30 June 2016 441,122 111,877,540 ( 362,107,237 ) ( 249,788,574 )

The notes Ito 33 are an integral part of the financial

3
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

The notes 1 to 33 are an integral part of the financial statements.

Notes
Six Months Ended 

30 June 2016

RS

Year Ended 31 
December 2015

RS
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Deficit for the year ( 100,271,510) ( 5,935,363)

Adjustments for:
Finance Charge 11,611,828 959,450

Provision for Employee Retirement Benefit Obligation 304,792 -

Depreciation of Fixed Assets and Intangible Assets 4 21,043,307 23,579,684
Movement in land revaluation reserve -

(67,311,583) 18,603,771

Movement in Working Capital:
(Increase)ZDecrease in Inventories ( 1,550,897) 701,346
lncrease/(Decrease) in Payables 114,392,564 ( 6,590,383 )
IncreaseZ(Decrease) in Other Payables 0 27,604,296
IncreaseZ(Decrease) in Deferred Income 14 14,138,213 0
IncreaseZ(Decrease) in Capital Grant 0 8,787,159
(Increase)ZDecrease in Receivables ( 17,777,041 ) ( 1,941,060)
(Increase)ZDecrease in Work-In-Progress ( 50,887 ) (619,093)
IncreaseZ(Decrease) in Employee Benefits 3,918,829 0

Net Cash flows from operating activities 45,759,198 46,546,036

Return of Investment and Servicing of Finance
Finance charge 27 - (959,450 )
Net return of Investment and Servicing of Finance - (959,450 )

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of Fixed Assets 4 ( 30,727,534 ) ( 36,313,604)
Acquisition of Intangible Assets 4 (45,000 ) (357,938)
Additions in Investments 0 ( 10,000,000)

Net Cash Flows used in investing activities ( 30,772,534 ) (46,671,542)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Repayment of Borrowings ( 462,000 ) (2,224,000)
Share of surplus fund from Ex-PRDC 8,868,810 -
Finance Charge ( 11,611,828) -

Net Cash Flows used in financing activities ( 3,205,018 ) ( 2,224,000)

Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 11,781,646 ( 3,308,955 )

Cash and Cash Equivalents at beginning of year 49,290,337 52,599,292

Cash and Cash Equivalents at end of year 61,071,983 49,290,337

4
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The District Council of Riviere du Rempart

Notes to Financial Statements for the half year ended
30 June 2016
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The District Council of Riviere du Rempart is a corporate body established under the Local Government Act 
2011, Part II Section 3 and 7. The place of management is at Royal Road, Mapou.

Activities of the Local Authority

The Council's principal activities are the provision of sound public infrastructure and its maintenance, 
household waste collection, licensing of business activities, issuing of development permit and the 
promotion of sport, leisure and welfare activities as stipulated under Section 50 of the Local Government 
Act 2011.

The District Council is responsible for overviewing the administration of the Riviere du Rempart District area 
and its 19 villages.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS AND 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.

A. Basis of Preparation and Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Section 133 of the Local Government Act 
2011, the International Financial Reporting Standards and the International Accounting Standards.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as disclosed in 
the accounting policies below.

The Financial statements are presented in Mauritian Rupees (RS) which is the functional currency of the 
Council and all values are rounded to the nearest rupee. The accounting policies have been consistently 
applied to all the years presented. The cash flow statement is prepared using the direct method and the 
financial statements are prepared on the accruals basis.

Following the amendment brought to the Finance and Audit Act the financial reporting was changed to 
period starting 01 July to 30 June. The first financial reporting period was for a period of six month ended 
30 June 2016.

B. Application of new and revised International Financial Reporting Standards

In current year, the Council has adopted all of the new and amended Standards and Interpretations issued 
by the International Accounting Standards Board (the "IASB") and the International Financial Reporting 
Interpretations Committee (the "IFRIC") of the IASB that are relevant to its operations and mandatory for 
application for the financial year. The adoption of these new or amended IFRS and interpretations has not

6
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

resulted in substantial changes to the accounting policies of the Council and have had no material effect on 
the amounts reported for the current or prior financial years.

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, the following Standards and Interpretations have 
already been issued but not effective:

Description Issue Date Effective Date Annual periods 
commencing on

IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of International 
Financial Reporting Standards 
(Amendments resulting from Annual 
Improvements 2014-2016 Cycle (removing short­
term exemptions)

December 
2016

Annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018

IFRS 2 Share-based Payment 
(Amendments to clarify the classification and 
measurement of share-based payment 
transactions)

June 2016 Annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018

IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
Amendments regarding the interaction of IFRS 4
and IFRS 9

September 
2016

An entity choosing to apply the 
overlay approach retrospectively 
to qualifying financial assets 
does so when it first applies IFRS 
9. An entity choosing to apply the 
deferral approach does so for 
annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018.

IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 
Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 
2014-2016 Cycle (clarifying scope)

December 
2016

Annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2017

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
September 
2015

Annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018

IFRS 16 Leases
x

January 2016 Annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2019

IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows
Amendments as result of the Disclosure initiative

January 2016 Annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2017

IAS 12 Income Taxes January 2016

7
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

Amendments regarding the recognition of deferred 
tax assets for unrealised losses

Annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2017

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint
Ventures
Amendments resulting from Annual Improvements 
2014-2016 Cycle (clarifying certain fair value 
measurements)

December
2016

Annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018

IAS 40 Investment Property
Amendments to clarify transfers or property to, or 
from, investment property)

December
2016

Annual periods beginning on or 
after 1 January 2018

IFRS 16 leases

The Council currently leases a hall for one of its village council. Under the IFRS 16 lease, the Council will 
have to account for right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability in its statement of financial position.

The Council anticipates that the adoption of the remaining standards in the future periods will have no 
material effect on the financial statements.

C. Significant Accounting Policies

(a) Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the District 
Council and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is received.

The general policy of the Council is to recognize revenue on an accrual basis with the substance of the 
relevant agreement.

(i) School fees, advertising fees and bus toll are accounted for as income on an accrual basis unless 
collectability is in doubt.

(ii) Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a 
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or 
loss due to its operating nature.

(iii) Building and land use permit fee, burial and incinerator fees are recognized on and actual basis, 
that is the amount actually received and/or collected.

8
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(iv) Trade fee is payable whenever an economic operator or any person carries out a classified trade 
as stipulated by the Local Government Act 2011 Section 122 (2). It is an offence to carry out 
such trade without the payment of the appropriate fees. However, there is a high risk that a 
trader is not operating his trade and has failed to complete the procedure for cessation and 
thus the probability of payment of outstanding trade fee in the following years is low. Hence, 
as the collectability of trade fee receivable is not reasonably assured, in accordance with IAS 18 
revenue, the District Council has not recognized trade fee on an accrual basis. Trade fee has 
instead been accounted on an actual basis.

(v) Interest income arising from investments of the Passage Fund is not accounted in the statement 
of profit or loss but is instead accounted as equity in the statement of financial position.

(b) Government Grants

Government grants are not recognized until there is reasonable assurance that the Council will comply with 
the conditions attached to them and that the grants will be received.

(i) Government grants whose primary condition is that the Council should purchase, construct or 
otherwise acquire non-current assets are recognized as deferred income in the statement of 
financial position and transferred to the statement of financial performance on a systematic 
and rational basis over the useful economic lives of the related assets.

(ii) Other government grants are recognized as income over the periods necessary to match them 
with the costs for which they are intended to compensate, on a systematic basis. Government 
grant-in-aid that are receivable as compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for 
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the Council with no future related costs 
are recognized in the statement of financial performance in the period in which they become 
receivable.

(c) Public Infrastructure, Plant and Equipment, Land and Intangible Assets

(i) Buildings

Buildings held for use in the supply of services and for administrative purposes are stated in the 
financial statements at cost or transfer value, being the fair value at the date of transfer of 
ownership less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and/or accumulated impairment 
losses. No revaluation is carried out unless required.

9
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(ii) Land is maintained at cost and is not depreciated.

Land vested by Morcellement promoters to the Council are in principle transferred to the 
Council at the token amount of MUR 1 per plot and the contract of the deed of sale clearly 
stipulates that the plot of land shall be used only for the purpose for which it has been vested 
to the Council under the Morcellement Act. The land shall be used only as green space or for 
social purpose without the right to dispose. These land have been capitalized.

Land vested to the Council by the Ministry of Housing and Lands are in fact vested to the 
Ministry of Local Government. These land are for community use for the inhabitants of that 
particular region where the development actually took place, however its maintenance and up­
lifting is handed over to Council. The Council has no right to sell it or use for any other purpose. 
These land have been disclosed in the notes to the Financial Statements.

(Hi) Construction of drains and roads, accommodation of playground and green space, and street 
lighting costs and resurfacing of existing roads are capitalized under public infrastructure. On 
the other hand, cost of patching of roads, cost of traffic signs and names plates, maintenance 
and repairs of public infrastructures are charged to the income statement as expenses in the 
year they are incurred.

(iv) Computer and Equipment, Furniture, Fixtures, Fittings, Motor Vehicles, Intangibles are stated 
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and stated at its 
carrying value.

Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost of fixed assets less the residual value at the annual 
estimated rates over their useful lives, using the straight line method. The estimated useful lives, residual 
value and depreciation method are reviewed at each year end, with the effect of any changes in estimate 
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is 
recognized in the statement of performance.

The annual rates are used in the calculation of depreciation:

Building 5%
Public Infrastructure 20%
Computerand Equipment 25%
Furniture, Fixtures and Fittings 10%
Motor Vehicles 20%
Intangible Assets 25%

10
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

(d) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Inventories are stated at weighted 
average value or weighted average price of lots of items where balance of the lot is greater than zero. Value 
for the item of stock is the cost charged by supplier. The Council practices the first in first out basis (FIFO) 
for the issue of stock items.

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus/deficit, loans and receivables, 
held to maturity investments, and the Council determines the classification of its financial assets at initial 
recognition.

(e) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank, cash in hand and short term deposits with financial 
institutions. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of change in value.

(f) Receivables and Impairment

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in 
an active market. They are presented as current assets, except for those expected to be realised later than 
12 months after the balance sheet date which are presented as non-current assets.

Receivables are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at carrying value after adjusting 
for impairment loss. Impairment loss is charged to the statement of comprehensive income.

A provision for impairment of fees is established when there is objective evidence that the Council will not 
be able to collect all the amounts according to the original terms of receivables.

(g) Held-to-Maturity Financial Assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments 
and fixed maturities that the District Council has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. If the 
District Council were to sell other than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity financial assets, the 
whole category would be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. They are presented as non-current 
assets, except for those maturing within 12 months after the balance sheet date which are presented as 
current assets.

11
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at their value through surplus or deficit or loans and 
borrowings, as appropriate and the classification is determined at the initial recognition date. They are 
recognized at fair value and in the case of loans and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

The Council's financial liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables.

Financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 
expires.

Financial liabilities and financial assets are offset and the net amount if any is either settled or realize the 
assets.

(h) Trade and Other Payables

Trade and other payables are stated at their nominal value. All known trade payables are recognized at its 
cost. They are classified as current liabilities if payment is due within one year. Otherwise, they are 
presented as non-current liabilities.

(i) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the District Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 
of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. The amount recognized as a provision is the 
best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking 
into account the risks and uncertainties required to settle the present obligation. When the economic 
benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party, the receivable is 
recognized as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the 
receivable can be measured reliably.

(j) Contingent liabilities

The Council does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingency in the notes 
to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources is remote.

(k) Retirement Benefit Costs

(i) State Plan

The Council contributes 6 % of the gross emoluments of part-time employees and employees 
who are not on a permanent and pensionable establishment to the National Pension Fund.

12
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THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016

The Council also contributes 2.5% of the gross emoluments of all employees to the National 
Savings Fund.

The above contributions are charged to statement of profit or loss in the year they are due.

(ii) Defined Contribution Plan

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which the District Council 
pays fixed contributions (12% of gross emoluments) into another entity, the State Investment 
Company of Mauritius Limited ("SICOM Ltd"), for new full time employees who joined the Local 
Authorities from 1 January 2013 onwards. The district council has no further payment 
obligations once the contributions have been paid. These contributions are charged to 
statement of profit or loss in the year they are due.

(¡¡I) Retirement Pension To Retirees Before 1 July 2008

The Council pays retirement pension to those employees who retired before 1 July 2008. This 
is charged to statement of profit or loss in the year it is due.

(iv) Compassionate Allowance

In accordance with the Local Authority Employees (Allowance) Regulations 1964 (GN 159 of 
1964) the Council also pays Compassionate Allowance to part time employees who have been 
in service for more than 5 years on their retirement. This has been computed based on the 
number of year of services up to the year end, average annual wage for the last 5 years.

(v) Defined Benefit Plan

The Council operates a defined benefit plan, administered by and invested with SICOM Ltd. The 
pension plan is funded by payment of contribution to the fund (Council: 12% of gross 
emoluments and employee: 6% of gross emoluments) taking account of the recommendations 
of the Pay Research Bureau (PRB) report.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit pension plans other than defined 
contribution plans. Defined benefit plans typically define the amount of benefit that an 
employee will receive on or after retirement, dependent on factors such as years of service and 
compensation.

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of a defined benefit pension plan is the 
present value of the defined benefit obligation at the reporting date less the fair value of plan 
assets, together with adjustments for unrecognised past-service costs. The defined benefit

13
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obligation has been calculated by independent actuaries from SICOM Ltd using the projected 
unit credit method. The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by 
discounting the estimated future cash outflows using market yields on bonds.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited 
to equity in other comprehensive income in the period when they arise.

Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

(vi) Bank of Sick Leave

Employee entitlements to bank sick leave as defined in the PRB report are recognized as and 
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the estimated liability for bank sick 
leave.

(vii) Unutilized Vacation Leave

Employee entitlements to vacation leave as defined in the PRB report are recognized as and 
when they accrue to employees. An accrual is made for the estimated liability for unutilized 
vacation leave.

(l) Nature and Purpose of Reserves

The Council creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements.

Passage Fund

Enacted under Section 81 of the Local Government Act 2011, a passage fund has been created by the Council 
to finance the payment of passage benefit to officers transferred from other Local Authorities, from the 
public service, from a statutory body or from any other institution.

Income derived from investment of the unutilized passage benefit payable to employees of the Council is 
transferred to equity under the item passage fund.

(m) Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or manufacture of qualifying fixed 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use 
are added to the cost of those fixed assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their 
intended use.

14
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Investment income earned on the temporary investment of the specific borrowings pending their 
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Otherwise 
all other borrowing costs are recognized in the statement of financial performance in the period in which 
they are incurred.

The interest rate payable on the government loan is fixed at 5% throughout the repayment period.

D. Critical Accounting Estimates, Assumption and Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies and 
Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the District Council to make 
certain accounting estimates and judgements that have an impact on the policies and the amounts reported 
in the financial statements. Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and based on historical 
experiences and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable at 
the time such estimates and judgements are made, although actual experience may vary from these 
estimates.

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing adjustment to carrying amounts of 
assets and liabilities are discussed below:

(i) Provision for Bad Debts
Provision is made when there is objective evidence that the District Council will not be able to 
collect certain debts. This is made based on detailed analysis and historical experience.

(ii) Defined Benefit Obligations
The present value of the post-employment pension obligations depends on a number of factors 
that are determined on an actuarial basis using a number of assumptions such as discount rate, 
expected salary increase and mortality. Any change in these assumptions will impact the 
carrying amount of pension obligations.

2. FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT RISK

The District Council is exposed to financial, credit and liquidity risks. The overall risk management of the 
District Council is focused on the mitigation of liquidity and credit risks and seek to minimize potential 
adverse effects on the financial performance and service delivery of the Council.

Credit risk

Credit risk arises from credit exposures to customers. The Council does not consider the need to have an 
independent rating of its customers. In fact no trade fee receipt is issued on credit while three month credit 
facilities are allowed to holders of market stall in principle.

15
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Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through 
an adequate amount of credit facilities. The Council has appropriate management policy in place to ensure 
that there is sufficient cash to meet its financial obligations.

16
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4 PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Building
Public 

Infrastructure
Computer & 
Equipment

Furniture, Fixtures & 
Fittings

Motor Vehicles Total

RATE 
COST:

Restated
RS 
5%

RS 
20%

RS 
25%

RS 
10%

BS 
20%

Restated 
RS

As at 01 January 2016 84,406,910 40,798,520 13,158,432 1,897,984 22,982,408 163,244,254

Additions - 30,172,696 483,048 71,790 - 30,727,534

As at 30 June 2016 84,406,910 70,971,216 13,641,480 1,969,774 22,982,408 193,971,788

DEPRECIATION:
As at 01 January 2016 4,303,331 16,122,458 3,982,229 738,594 11,548,331 36,694,942

Charge for the year 2,110,173 5,716,227 1,705,185 196,977 2,298,241 12,026,803

As at 30 June 2016 6,413,504 21,838,685 5,687,414 935,571 13,846,571 48,721,745

Carrying Value

As at 30 June 2016 77,993,406 49,132,531 7,954,066 1,034,203 9,135,836 145,250,043

As at 31 December 2015 ______ 80,103,579 24,676,062 9,176,203 _________ 1,159,390 11,434,077 126,549,312

Note:

The net book value of the fixed assets approximate their fair values and / the carrying amount.

All the fixed assets were acquired out of government grant.

Prior year restatement:

The accumulated depreciation on building as at 01 January 2016 has been increased by Rs.3,313,307 representing depredation on revaluation of Rs.66m. not accounted in 2015

THE DISTRICT COUNCIL OF RIVIERE DU REMPART 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE HALF YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2016________

4 PUBLIC INFRASTRUCTURE, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

FOR FIXED ASSETS ACQUIRED AFTER JULY2008 AND BEFORE 31 DECEMBER 2012 Capital Outlay ofEx-PRDC ( Fixed Assets I

Capital Outlay and its corresponding Capital Grant Applied of the Ex-Pamplemousses/Rlviere du Rempart District Council was distributed equally.

Building
Public 

Infrastructure
Computer 8t 
Equipment

Furniture, Fixtures &
Motor Vehicles Total

Fittings
COST

Net Book Value Allocated to Council 12,427,119 23,095,638 525,225 1,110,375 7,963,071 45,121,428
Depreciation 31 December 2013 621,356 4,619,128 131,306 222,075 1,592,614 7,186,479
Net Book Value as at 31 December 2013 11,805,763 18,476,510 393,919 888,300 6,370,457 37,934,949
Adjustment relating to prior years (Liquidated
damages- Goodlands Market) 1,957,619 1,957,619
Depreciation charged _________(621,356) ......  (4,797,093) (131,306) (222,075) (1,592,614) (7,364,444)
Net Book Value as at 31 December 2014 11,184,407 15,637,036 262,613 666,225 4,777,843 32,528,124
Additions Liquidated damages released on Market 3,559,313 3,559,313
Depreciation on LD (1,779,657) (1,779,657)

Depreciation charged (621,356) (4,619,128) (131,306) (222,075) ___________(1,592,614) _

3,185,229

(7,186,479)
Net Book Value as at 31 December 2015 12,342,707 11,017,908 131,307 444,150 27,121,301
Additions - - - -
Depreciation charged (2,401,013) (4,619,128) (131,307) (222,075) (1,592,614) (8,966,137)
Net Book Value as at 30 June 2016 9,941,694 6,398,780 • 222,075 1,592,615 18,155,164

Note:
The net book value of the fixed assets approximate their fair values and / the carrying amount.
All the fixed assets were acquired out of government grant.
Buildings and Village halls have been recognised at fair value which Is the market value for construction of similar type building 

The rate used was Rs Rs 11,345 per meter square based on a recent construction.
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5 INTANGIBLE ASSETS - SOFTWARE 2016 2015

Cost

RS RS

As at 01 January 357,938 •
Addition 45,000 357,938
As at 31 December

Depreciation

402,938 357,938

As at 01 January 89,484 -
Charge for the year 50,367 89,484
As at 31 December 139,851 89,484

Carrying Value 263,086 _ 268,454

6 LAND 2016 2015

Land transferred to Council RS RS

As at 01 January 45,611,396 16,899,076

Vested - 28,712,320

As at 31 December _______ 45,611,396 45,611,396

The land acquired relates to land sold to Council at the token amount of Rsl per plot and the contract of the deed of sale clearly stipulates that the plot of
land shall be used only for the purpose for which it has been agreed under the Morcellement Act. The land shall be used only as green space or for social 
purpose without the right to dispose. The land has been computed at MUR 100,000 per perche.

The District Council has accounted for land acquired prior to 2014, in the accounts for the financial year ended 31 December 2015. In previous years, land 
acquired for green space was not accounted for.

Land Vested to Council for maintenance and administration

Land belonging to Ministry of Housing and Lands and the Ministry of Local Government which have been handed to the Council for maintenance purpose only 
are as disclosed below. These land have not been capitalised.

Area/m2 Area/m2

Land for Cremation Grounds and Cemetries 9,857 9,857

Land for Village Halls 15,233 15,233

Land for Recreational Activities 88,880 88,880

Land for Green Space 11,783 11,783

Land for Markets 12,060 12,060

Land of Traffic Centres 22,350 22,350

__________ 160,163 _ 160,163
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10 PAYABLES 2016 2015
RS RS

Accounts Payables to Suppliers 30,753,078 11,221,254
Prepayment and Other Payables 1,149,952 560,323
Deposits 5,667,489 6,438,114
Wayleaves 2,941,440 2,941,440
Provisions 95,041,734 -
Liquidated damages payable to Alphamix Ltd 3,559,313 3,559,313
Interest on Rs 3,075,000 arbitration interim award 11,181,928 11,181,929

150,294,934 35,902,372

Retention money of Rs 3,075,000 plus VAT and an unpaid invoice were settled upon mutual agreement for the sum of
Rs 3,559,313. Interest at the rate of 15.35% was awarded on the retention money of Rs 3,075,000 and same was paid 
on 04 August 2016.

11 BORROWINGS 2016 2015
Restated

RS RS

Balance at Start 17,196,000 19,420,000
Reimbursement ( 462,000 ) ( 2,224,000 )
Balance at Close 16,734,000 17,196,000

Payable as follows:
Current - Before One Year 2,224,000 2,224,000

After One Year and Before Five Years 3,696,000 4,850,000
After Five Years 10,814,000 10,122,000
Non-Current 14,510,000 14,972,000

The borrowing comprising of loan, advance from the Government and advance Government Grant In Aid is unsecured.
The loan is repayable in instalments by 30 June 2032 whilst the advance by 30 June 2017. The advance Government 
Grant in Aid has been paid during the financial year.
Interest is fixed at 5%. Advance Government Grant in Aid is not subject to interest.
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12 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2016

RS

2015

RS

Provision for Unutilised Sick Leave Pay 3,248,562 2,885,049

Provision for Passage Benefit 9,397,730 9,836,944
Provision for Retirement Benefit 54,991,772 50,997,243

67,638,064 63,719,235

Current Liabilities 13,218,716 13,357,640

Non-Current Liabilities 54,419,348 50,361,595

Provision for retirement benefit includes provision for unutilised vacation, provision for bank of sick leave and 
provision for compassionate allowance payable on retirement to eligible employees.

13 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION 2016 2015

RS RS

Amounts recognised in statement of financial position at end of period/year:
Defined benefit obligation 303,088,258 284,277,564

Fair value of plan assets (71,502,794) ( 65,058,376 )

Liability recognised in statement of financial position
at end of period/year 231,585,464 219,219,188

Amounts recognised in income statement:
Service cost:

Current service cost 3,989,750 8,029,977
(Employee contributions) (1,879,027) ( 3,409,142 )
Fund Expenses 130,199 180,874
Net Interest expense _____ 7,583,062 14,560,057
Income statement charge 9,823,984 19,361,766

Remeasurement:
Liability loss 11,939,818 4,860,959

Assets loss --------- 1,042,825 14,484,422
Total Other Comprehensive Income (OCI) recognised 12,982,643 19,345,381

Total . ...... ■
22,806,627 38,707,147
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13 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION - CONTINUED 2016 2015

Movements in liability recognised in statement of financial position:

RS RS

At start of period/ year 219,219,188 198,623,513
Amount recognised in P&L 9,823,984 19,361,766
(Actuarial Reserves transferred in) (921,159) (79,469)
(Employer Contributions) (3,756,896) (6,815,495)
(Direct benefits paid by Employer) (5,762,296) (11,216,508)
Amount recognised in OCI __ 12,982,643 19,345,381
At end of period/year ___ 231,585,464 219,219,188

Actual return on plan assets: ___ 449,803 1,431,113

The plan is a defined benefit arrangement for the employees and it is only funded for pensionable service as from 1 
July 2008. The assets of the funded plan are held independently and administered by The State Insurance Company of 
Mauritius Ltd.

Reconciliation of the present value of defined benefit obligation
Present value of obligation at start of period/year
Current service cost
Interest cost
(Benefits paid)
Liability loss
Present value of obligation at end of period/year

284,277,564
3,989,750
9,949,715 

(7,068,589) 
11,939,818 

303,088,258

263,951,189
8,029,977

19,796,339 
(12,360,900)

4,860,959 
284,277,564

Reconciliation of fair value of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at start of period/year 65,058,376 65,327,676
Expected return on plan assets 2,366,653 5,236,282
Employer contributions 3,756,896 6,815,495
Employee contributions 1,879,027 3,409,142
Actuarial Reserves transferred in 921,159 79,469
(Benefits paid, Assurance, Fees and Other Outgoings) (1,436,492) (1,325,266)
Asset loss (1,042,825) (14,484,422)
Fair value of plan assets at end of period/year 71,502,794 65,058,376
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13 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION - CONTINUED 2016 2015

17 Years

Distribution of plan assets at end of period/year
2016 2015

Percentage of assets at end of year
Fixed Interest Securities and cash 58.40% 58.10%
Loans 4.50% 4.30%
Local equities 14.60% 15.90%
Overseas bonds and equities 21.80% 21.00%
Property ___________0.70% 0.70%
Total _________100.00% 100.00%

Additional disclosure on assets issued or used by the Council
2016 2015

Percentage of assets at end of period/year (%) (%)
Assets held in the entity's own financial instruments - -
Property occupied by the entity - -
Other assets used by the entity - -

Asset experience loss during the period/year ( 1,042,825 ) (14,484,422)

Liability experience loss during the period/year ( 10,241,724 ) (3,240,577)

(11,284,549) (17,724,999)

Year 2017
Expected employer contributions (RS) 7,753,896

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation
(Calculated as a % change in PV of liabilities for a 1% change in discount rate)

The plan is exposed to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, interest rate risk, longevity risk and salary risk. The risk 
relating to death in service benefits is re-insured.

The cost of providing the benefits is determined using the Projected Unit Method. The principal assumptions used for 
the purpose of the actuarial valuation were as follows:
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13 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATION - CONTINUED

2016
RS

2015 
RS

Discount rate 7.00% 7.50%
Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.00% 7.50%
Future salary increases 4.50% 5.00%
Future pension increases 3.00% 3.00%
Mortality before retirement A 6770 Ultimate Tables
Mortality in retirement PA (90) Tables rated down by 2 years
Retirement age As per Second Schedule of Statutory Bodies Pension Funds Act

The discount rate is determined by reference to market yields on bonds.
Significant actuarial assumptions for determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary 
increase and mortality. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based reasonably on possible changes of 
the assumptions occuring at the end of the reporting period.
If the discount rate would be 100 basis points (one percent) higher (lower), the defined benefit obligation would 
decrease by Rs 30.7 M (increase by Rs 38.5 M) if all other assumptions were held unchanged.

If the expected salary growth would increase (decrease) by 100 basis points, the defined benefit obligation would 
increase by Rs 19.5 M (decrease by Rs 17.0 M) if all assumptions were held unchanged.
If life expectancy would increase (decrease) by one year, the defined benefit obligation would increase by Rs 5.1 M 
(decrease by Rs 5.1 M) if all assumptions were held unchanged.
In reality one might expect interrelationships between the assumptions, especially between discount rate and 
expected salary increases, given that both depends to a certain extent on expected inflation rates. The analysis above 
abstracts from these interdependence between the assumptions.

14 GOVERNMENT GRANT 2016
Rs

2015
Rs

Grant-In-Aid 73,486,749 149,745,539

Project Related Revenue Grant 49,313,274 30,529,801
122,800,023 180,275,340

Less: Capital Grant Deferred During the Year ( 43,252,094 ) ( 32,331,995 )

Less: Revenue Grant Deferred During the Year ( 715,757 )
78,832,172 147,943,345

Add: Deferred Income charged to Income Statement ( Depreciation ) 19,386,553 23,579,684
X ■

Recurrent Revenue 98,218,725 171,523,029

DEFERRED GRANT

Deferred Income 90,544,018 77,121,563
Deferred Grant 10,862,920 10,147,162
Total Deferred Grant 101,406,938 87,268,725
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INVESTMENTS 2016
RS

2015
RS

Non-Current 732,252 732,252
Current 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total Investment 10,732,252 10,732,252

The figure in 2016 relates to fixed deposits held with financial institutions having floating interest rate of 4% being
0.75% over SBM Savings Rate. The maturity date is 27 January 2017.
In 2016, the investment is current in nature and has been classified as short term deposits under cash and cash 
equivalents.
The short term deposits pertain to fixed deposits held with financial institutions. The details are as per below:

Amount/MUR Interest rate Maturity date
10,000,000 Fixed rate of 5% 31-Aug-16

732 252 F'oat'ng rate' over SBM sav'n8s rate 27-Jan-17

RESERVES 2016 2015

RS RS

Balance at Start
Land Revaluation Reserve
Passage Fund

112,151,064 
0 

167,599

83,165,221
28,712,320

273,523
Balance at Close 112,318,663 __112,151,064

Interest income earned from cash held for payment of passage benefit has been re-classified from Accumulated Deficit
to Passage Fund in order to comply with S81 (5) (b) of the Local Government Act 2011.

RENTAL INCOME 2016 2015
RS RS

Market Stall Fee 2,637,600 5,182,000
Rental Income 203,355 423,760

2,840,955 5,605,760

OTHER REVENUE 2016 2015

RS RS

Occassional Trade Fee - 102,750
Advertising Fee 871,225 1,593,950
School Fee 61,600 104,000

Bus Toll 742,850 4,057,700

Burial & Incineration Fee 258,200 659,150
Donation to the Council 755,000 -
Other 328,030 1,092,144

3,016,905
26 ----------

7,609,694
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19 COMPENSATION OF EMPLOYEES 2016 2015
RS RS

Salaries and Wages 36,192,945 63,958,521

Overtime and Allowances 3,682,655 4,209,131
Uniform and Protective Equipment 958,386 1,079,491

Councillor's Allowance 1,663,876 2,634,13:

Retirement and Social Contributions 5,515,522 8,676,071

Provision for Passage Benefit 1,388,386 3,490,11'

Travelling and Transport 4,839,741 8,516,63',

Training Cost 85,796 19,15!

Provision for Unutilised Sick pay 3,294,696 2,999,75!

End of Year Gratuity 3,032,042 5,346,61(

Staff Welfare 35,300 -
60,689,345 100,929,63'

20 UTILITIES 2016 2015
RS RS

Electricity 9,686,126 21,347,652
Water 304,872 655,691

Gas 908,094 406,241

Telephone 430,888 613,874
11,329,979 23,023,458

21 REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE 2016 2015
RS RS

Furniture, Fittings and Equipment 137,936 194,429

Roadsand Traffic Sign 789,613 4,033,136

Street Lighting 193,318 568,260

Playground, Play Equipment and Green Space 1,287 172,106

Public Infrastructure and Buildings 402,402 1,863,053

Cemetry, Incinerator and Cremation Ground 404,556 587,305

Other 248,583 491,298

2,177,694 7,909,587

22 MOTOR VEHICLE EXPENSES x 2016 2015
RS RS

Fuel and Oil 961,408 2,781,969

Repairsand Maintenance 782,718 1,396,437

_______ 1,744,126 4,178,406
27
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23 AUDIT AND LEGAL FEES 2016 2015
RS RS

Audit fee 100,000 200,000
Legal and Professional fees 450,207 2,079,709

550,207 2,279,709

24 GRANT AND CONTRIBUTION 2016 2015
RS RS

Grant to Village Council 5,245,661 8,596,175
Contribution to Association of District Councils 75,000 150,000

5,320,661 8,746,175

25 OTHER GOODS AND SERVICES 2016 2015
RS RS

Printing, Postage & Stationery 349,344 854,857
Notice and Publications 106,008 161,566
Books and Periodicals 123,333 222,125
Committee expenses 55,629 84,911
Entertainment 3,525 168,945
Bank charges and fee 18,205 33,891
Security services 731,117 1,792,712
Hired Scavenging Service 8,446,020 15,977,355
Cleaning and Waste Disposal 4,422,436 585,588
Insurance 1,402,263 1,502,591
Rent 29,500 75,000
Social, Cultural, Sport and Educational Activities Note 25 813,312 2,249,304
Sundries 178,717 141,309
Provision for bad debts 238,200 -
Compensation on damages (Arbitration Case) 83,859,806 -

100,777,416 23,850,154

26 ACTIVITIES AND PROJECTS 2016 2015
RS RS

Social Activity ( including grant to NGO ) 439,096 706,648
Cultural Activity 257,508 164,707
Sport Activity ( including grant to NGO ) 110,697 707,255
Twinning Activity 3,000 -
Educational Activity 3,012 18,480
Environmental Activity - 652,214

813,312 2,249,304
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Compound Interest of Rs 11,181,928 payable on Liquidated damages of Rs 3,075,000 at 15.33% for the period 22

27 FINANCE COST 2016 2015
RS RS

Loan Interest 429,900 959,450
Other Interest - ( Arbitration Case ) 11,181,928 -

11,611,828 959,450

A special grant of Rs 72 Million was approved by the Ministry of Finance and Economic Development for the uplifting of 
public amenities and Rs 10 Million was also approved for minor capital projects.

September 2005 to 24 September 2015 in connection with the arbitration case between Council (Ex-PRDC) and 
Alphamix Ltd.

28 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 2016 2015
RS RS

Provision for Unutilised Vacation Payment on Retirement 1,923,930 4,176,930
Provision for Bank of Sick Leave Pay on Retirement 2,880,780 427,841
Provision for Compassionate Allowance (81,114) (57,091)
Provision for Passage Benefit (439,214) 2,169,297
Retirement Benefits Obligation - Note 13 304,792 1,329,764
Provision for Unutilised Sick Leave Pay 363,514 291,441
Pension and Gratuities 7,008,350 9,972,522

11,961,038 18,310,704

29 HUMAN RESOURCE 2016 2015

Permanent and Pensionable employees 278 286
Part-time Employees 20 20

298 306

Female Employees 47 47
Male Employees 251 259

298 306
Vacant Posts 54 43

352 349

30 COMMITMENTS 2016 2015
Capital Commitments
Authorised but not yet contracted:

RS RS

Public Infrastructure 5,000,000 84,249,456
Approved and Contracted
Public Infrastructure 54,572,500 858,287
Total Capital Commitments 59,572,500 85,107,743
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31 WORK-IN-PROGRESS 2016 2015

RS RS
Balance at start 2,128,728 1,509,634
Addition during the year (Administrative building) 50,887 2,158,647
Conversion of work in progress to Building - (1,539,553)
Balance at close _______2,179,615 2,128,728

As at 31 December 2014, the extension to the second floor of the administrative building which was meant to be used 
as a mini conference and social hall for the Council was under construction by In-house labour and was therefore 
classified as current asset.

As at at 31 December 2015, the extension has been completed and the building has been re-classified to property, 
plant and equipment. The work in progress of around Rs 1.9 million as at 31 December 2015 relates to construction of 
Village Complex / Hall at Petit Raffray. The total estimated cost of construction is around Rs 3.6 Million.

32 CONTINGENCIES

The Council is a defendant in several legal actions involving the non-issue of building and land use permit and cases on 
illegal construction.

On 3rd January 2019, the arbitrator in the arbitration case between Council and Alphamix Ltd, has issued a final award 
in favour of the contractor for the payment of compound interest on the capital payment of Rs 72.3 M at the rate of 
3.5% up to the date of final settlement.
Upon the advise received from the parent ministry. Council has lodged a case of "Recours en Annulation“ to the award 
issed by the rabitrator outside the agreed mandate of the arbitration.

The amount of interest turn around Rs 427,324,630.

33 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

As at the date of approval of the financial statements no such post balance sheet even was known which may 
materially effect the financial reporting and the fair and true view of the financial position with the exception of the 
above contingent liability of Rs 427,324,630 which has been recognised in the financial statements as adjusting events.

34 APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved by the full council and authorised for its issue at its meeting of
30 October 2019.
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